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CORPORATE PROFILE
DRI

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (HKSE: 00951) is mainly engaged in the
manufacturing and sale of lead-acid motive batteries and other related products.
These batteries are widely used in electric bikes, electric vehicles and special-
purpose electric vehicles, etc. The Group also manufactures and sells storage
batteries and lithium-ion batteries. The Group employs advanced production
techniques and technology. The Group is one of the very few enterprises in the
PRC which successfully adopted the Enclosed Battery Formation Process in large
scale production, and is the only lead-acid motive battery manufacturer in the
PRC who has fully adopted the gel battery technology.

The Group’s manufacturing and management headquarters is located at
Changxing County, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, while its manufacturing facilities
have been extensively distributed in regions with higher demand for lead-acid
motive batteries, namely Shandong, Jiangsu, Henan, Zhejiang, Anhui, Jiangxi and
Hebei Provinces. As at 31 December 2014, the annual production capacity of
lead-acid motive batteries of the Group was 130 million units.

For the primary market, the Group supplies original batteries to most of the well-
known electric bike manufacturers in the PRC. As to the secondary market, the
Group has a nationwide distribution network of 2,013 independent distributors as
at 31 December 2014.
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Solid market leadership,

steering industry development
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o

Collaborates with MOLL on the development of

automotive start and stop batteries e
HERMolt A AEREEnEREFEIE

ERNEF Revenue amounted to approximately RMB

18,187.1 million, the highest in the industry
WA NEEA181.87HET > BIT¥EES

o

Achieved 100% cadmium-free
production and over 95% of the
production capacity has adopted
the Enclosed Battery Formulation

Market share increased to 42.9%,

Process 1l ranked the first in the industry*
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Granted the most prestigious environment

award — the “Chinese Baosteel Environment Ranked among the “Top 500 Chinese

Award” Enterprises” and “Top 500 Listed

ERPEIRRRmE—[hEEMRER] Companies in China”
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* Source: Frost & Sullivan
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
M RE

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are pleased to announce the following financial highlights:

BEBHERERAR(ERT D RERBA
A([AEEDMAEMUATHBRHE :

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—HLFE

2014 2013
—E—MmEF =5
RMB’000
AREETT
Revenue WA 18,187,060 14,973,221
Gross profit EF 2,046,855 2,026,707
Profit/(Loss) attributable to the owners AARER AEN
of the Company K, (Ei8) (28,955) 310,238
Eamnings/(Losses) per share — Basic (RMB) &R & 7|,/ (&5i8) — EAR(ARKIT) (0.03) 0.31
Proposed final dividend per share (RMB) BHAERARERE(ARET) - 0.093

Revenue (RMB mn)
WA (AREBEETT)

21.5%

2014

2013

Revenue Breakdown by Product (RMB mn Proportion of Total Revenue)
WARERED (AREESTHAWALLA)

Li-ion Battery $28f 7 Eth Others HEAt

%6€°0
%20
%91°€
%86°2

2014 2013 2014 2013

Electric vehicle Battery and
Special-purpose Electric vehicle Battery

EHEEHUREHAREDESH

2014 2013

Storage Battery f#&EE

%90

%120

2014 2013

Electric Bike Battery EE)H {TEEth

2014 2013
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT HIGHLIGHTS

The Group has achieved total cadmium-free production, which complied
with the “Entry Requirements of the Lead-acid Battery Industry” ({E5E &t
TTEEE AMEEY) (the “Entry Requirements”).

To enforce the requirements, the Ministry of Environmental Protection (“MEP”)
and Ministry of Industry and Information Technology (“MIIT”) of the People’s
Republic of China have continued their inspection of all recycled lead and
lead-acid batteries manufacturers. Lists of both compliant and non-compliant
enterprises would be announced accordingly. In the list of “Enterprises
Engaging in Lead-acid Batteries Production and Recycling Operations in
Compliance with Environmental Protection Laws and Regulations”, a total
of 50 enterprises were approved at the end of 2014, including six of the
Group’s subsidiaries, namely T # & EREGR 25 (Henan Chaowei
Power Co., Ltd.), STFE T E 8 0 88RRHE AR 2 7 (Jiangxi Xinwei Power
Technology Co., Ltd.), SIE KZERK B AR L F (Jiangsu Yongda
Power Co., Ltd.), ILRBRHERER AT (Shandong Chaowei Power
Technology Co., Ltd.), ZEBREFEER 2 3 (Anhui Chaowei Power
Co., Ltd.) and WRBHERER QA AHES 27 (Ciyao Branch of
Shandong Chaowei Power Co., Ltd.).

As at 31 December 2014, over 60% of the Group’s production capacity
has been approved by the MEP in compliance with environmental laws and
regulations. The Group remains confident that all production capacity of the
Group can pass the required inspections by the end of 2015.

Market Share in terms of Sales

= %Eﬁi
Volume in E-bike Lead-acid Peer 1 {1RSRA

30.9%

Battery Market in China in 2014
(Jan-Sept)*

—E-mE(-AEAR) FEHEH
BTE$HBESWIREEETT TS

Peer 2 1T¥ 2 8%2
ha xR

3.1%

Cadmium-free Production over Total Production Capacity
of Lead-acid Batteries

EREEMEBEDAERL R
Total Production Capacity (mn units)
BER(BEME)
Proportion of
83% 100% 100% Caamin e
Product Capacity
@ EEEE
2012 2013 2014
* Source: Frost & Sullivan

** Based on the production volume of 10,000 units of 6DZM12 battery
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Others HAth
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Advantage of Enclosed Battery
Formation Process Vs Traditional
Battery Production Process**
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GARNERING AWARDS FOR OUTSTANDING ACHIEVEMENTS

FRARTEIR ERETRER

Advanced Enterprise in
Information Statistics in
China Lead-acid Battery
Industry
HWRMEEMTEEE
Biat TERESN

Top 10 Most Influential

Brands of Electronic Vehicle

Battery

TREEZEImE

Top 500 Chinese
Manufacturing Enterprises

B 4l 35 2 1 #50058

Advanced Group in
Statistical Work in China
| ead-acid Battery Industry
2EMMESMITHE
Bat THESTESRRE

Top 500 Chinese
Enterprises

AR 1350058
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GARNERING AWARDS FOR OUTSTANDING ACHIEVEMENTS

Excellence in Leadership
(Global) — No.1 in Revenue
in Global Motive Battery
Industry

RRBHEMTHEAEER

Top 100 Technical
Innovation Enterprises in
Zhejiang Province

AR RIFTRE D B iR

Excellence in Growth
(Global) — Highest Growth
in Global Motive Battery
Industry

RRPABMTHEIBERE

The 8th China Baosteel
Environment Awards

FENETFEERRRESR

Excellence in Innovation
(China) — Innovation
Leadership in Chinese
ead-acid Motive Battery
Industry
PEI BB D BT
SRR

Top 10 New Energy
Battery Enterprises in
China’s Light Industry
B TEHERE M
TR
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

On behalf of the Board (the “Board of Directors” or the “Board”) of the
Company, | am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

The Group rounded out a successful year of 2014 marked by significant
achievements. At Frost & Sullivan’s 2014 Best Practices Awards Gala, the
Group was presented the awards of “Excellence in Leadership (Global) —
No. 1 in Revenue in Global Motive Battery Industry”, “Excellence in Growth
(Global) — Highest Growth in Global Motive Battery Industry” and “Excellence
in Innovation (China) — Innovation Leadership in Chinese Lead-acid Motive
Battery Industry”, a testimony to the Group’s ambitious innovations and
market leading position. In acknowledgement of its leadership, the Group
ranked among “Top 500 Listed Chinese Companies” compiled and released
by Fortune magazine and was also shortlisted for “Top 500 Chinese
Enterprise”, the only domestic lead-acid battery manufacturer to be named
on the list. These results demonstrated the Group’s effective execution of
planned strategies and the Group’s strong performance was driven by the
below factors:

1. Concerted Efforts to Gain Market Share

Market conditions remained challenging in 2014. Nevertheless, the
Group has gradually developed its business over the years to forge a

AARREARFESEE([EFE])  MEM
BRMAREAEEHEEZ_T—NF+_-A
=t HUEFEZE2FEERS °

T NFRERAEELRENN—F o
EZT—NFEHBENE— DR (Frost &
Sullivan) S =& B 4258 58I | - AREMmE 42
BE2IRENEMITHEEEERE] [ 2T
hEBITESBIE RS M P ESEE N END
TEIBAIFE] BROETAEEESE
BIGHATIER TFRAIFTE - RETEEEND
ERE - B AEBRE(E ) HEEG
#9[ B _E A R150058 | R AGET R B %500
3] BABINEEE BT IE —E A
BRI EE o iE U (B MK AR B A AN R (B Y BB
WITRB I © BEHBUSELRE - ZEIR
IUTEFENREE
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BE T —F  mSkEDNE - KF
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

EREHE

Market share in the electric bike
lead-acid battery

market reached 42.9%
BEBRTEEMT
SIEBERE42.9%

leading market position. During the year, the Group ranked first in terms
of market share, production capacity, production volume, sales volume
and revenue, and has widened the gap with its competitors. Clinging to
consolidation opportunities arising from favourable policies, the Group
has made further inroads towards technique improvement, network
expansion, “CHILWEE” brand enhancement, as well as research and
development (“R&D”) strengthening in elevating its competitiveness.
As a result, the Group has successfully bolstered its market share to a
record high of 42.9% and topped the industry for the second year in a
row.

Building a Professional Team to Further Step up R&D
Capabilities

Product quality is the key to market consolidation. The strong R&D
capabilities of the Group were the direct result of the combined efforts
of a talented team. The Group possessed an all rounded professional
high-tech team and has established R&D partnerships with leading
R&D organisations and professional institutions in order to enhance
its R&D capability, resulting in a number of patented technology and
revolutionary achievements.

BB TS - REBEFANE
mmishAE  EiE - EE  HENUE
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

A major highlight in the Group’s development for the year was the
launch of new products and entry into new markets. During the year,
the Group has collaborated with Akkumulatorenfabrik MOLL GmbH
& Co. KG (“MOLL"), a renowned German lead-acid motive battery
manufacturer, in the development of start and stop batteries. This
bilateral collaboration brought enormous strategic significance for the
Group, enabling it to explore new markets and provide new momentum
for development.

Best known for high quality, reliable and durable, the award-winning
patented products of the Group have fulfilled customer needs and
received overwhelming responses. To encourage future growth,
the Group is committed to distinguish itself through innovation
and patented technologies as core elements in developing its new
products.

Commitment to and Investment in Green Production to
Reinforce the Green Energy Brand

During the year, the MEP and the MIIT continued to enforce the
requirements in respect to environmental protection and pollution
control. Environmental inspections have been conducted, with
substandard and obsolete capacities gradually being weeded out. The
implementation of the policies have raised the entry barrier for the lead-
acid motive battery industry and accelerated the consolidation process.
In general, the accelerated industry consolidation and progressive
elimination provided opportunities for the Group as the market leader,
which can be seen in its rising and record-breaking market share.

In parallel with its business expansion and production enhancement,
the Group also adhered to the philosophy of partnership and integration
with environment. The Group strived to minimise consumption of
resources, pollution and emissions in developing new products.
Hence, all products of the Group are environmental friendly. Moreover,
pollution and emissions are also controlled within or better than legal
requirement. As an industry pioneer in green production, the Group
has adopted cadmium-free enclosed battery formation processes
in its production in strict accordance with the Entry Requirements
promulgated by the PRC government. Through concrete actions, the
Group is positioned to become China’s No.1 green energy brand.
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Co.KG(IMOLL |) IE A FAfF B R Z B ot
EHEAIE - WRBEAEHAEEmS
BEERNBRMEREER  URAMERH
TS MEREHTE N -

AEBENENERELRBERE &
RufEr o BE  UERERMANERS
B FOMET EPIENR - AEE
HIBICRITREE RENBIDEA R
WHEMRTD - HERRMIER -

BEREUZELEENARNRA » TEF
BZBEERE —me

RERN - RIRE R TEHEERERIT
BRARRRENDIETRIDANER
WA FERMREZETE  EEAX
TRARIBEERERR - BEROEFT
B e i B B N B BUETT MY /EAFT
o ARHOIRTITENEE XK 17
FERERE KR - RTISEEN
AEBBEHENNBREE - KR
AHSIERE - BERIFS -

ERNBREBNEEEETENRF
- AEE—EREFEEREHFOM
Bt - EERMBB/ED  AKEE
SRAKFERE - RIS - BN - MELM
MEMERRER  LEBRETHRIL
AREHEEMBELBE - BR[ZE
HE] BT RS RISEEEMITE
RE#R SEEEXELELGEZ
B+ AN ER B S R R B IR A AT
- REEBRTFERABEBAECKT
g WRARSTE2EEBCEENR
BEITE  AREBBEENTE 8
TERBEELBTNTERERIRSE
—anhg o



Annual Report 2014 F 3

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited 2 E 2 D12 G R A 7 01 3

4. Brand Enhancement to Consolidate Market Leading Position

Currently, annual production capacity of the Group reached
approximately 130 million batteries, the highest in the industry. The
Group intended to consolidate its advantages through continuous
technique improvement, innovation fostering and capacity expansion.

In respect of sales, the Group has further uplifted its secondary market
and is committed to reducing intermediaries within sales channels.
The Group has placed greater emphasis on training independent
distributors in improving their management as well as loyalty towards
CHILWEE brand. Marketing strategy of the Group has evolved from
extending distribution network to building its own brand, including
enhancing pre-sale and after-sale services to increase customer loyalty.

In the long run, it is expected that the accelerated consolidation and strong
demand for electric bike battery will drive further growth in the industry. The
Group will closely monitor the market and seize every opportunity that may
arise. With its solid business foundation and advanced technology, the Group
is confident to achieve sustainable growth going forward. To maintain steady
growth and retain its market leading position, the Group will continue to put
greater efforts in brand building. It will also enhance its R&D capabilities and
further refine its marketing strategies. At the same time, the Group will strive
to become an enterprise setting green benchmarks for the industry.

During the year, the Group has peddled forward to gain market share and
maintained its long-term growth trend by diligently executing carefully-
formulated plans. Riding on the rising market share over the years, the
Group is ready for another year of growth in 2015. On behalf of the Group, |
would like to express my gratitude to the Group’s shareholders, customers
and business partners for their unwavering support. | would also like to
thank the Board of Directors, management and staff for their wholehearted
commitment to the Group’s success. Their continued excellent work and
team spirit will lead the Group to exciting new heights and opportunities in
the future.

Zhou Mingming
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

31 March 2015
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The Group will strive to achieve higher profitability by increasing operational
efficiency. It also resolves to attain the strategic objective of “maintaining
leadership in talent and technology, product quality and cost controls as
well as market branding”, accelerate its entry into the international market,
actively identify high potential projects in the electric vehicle and new energy
segments and reach the goal of “shaping technological development and
creating a new benchmark for production model”.

REERSBEBREALENRIANRESEANED » WHEEU ATRKREL &
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEBNmR D

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of lead-acid
motive batteries and other related products widely used in electric bikes,
electric vehicles and special-purpose electric vehicles. It also manufactures
and sells lithium-ion batteries. As the overall market leader in the lead-
acid battery industry for two consecutive years, the Group has successfully
expanded its market share in PRC to approximately 42.9% and further
sustained its pre-eminent position in the entire industry. Owing to its
continued efforts to develop the market, technical innovations and stepped-
up brand-building efforts, the Group’s market share, capacity, production,
sales and revenue all ranked first in the entire industry in 2014, underscoring
a year of excellent performances.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Steady increase in market demand

Electric bikes provide a convenient mode of transportation at a low cost
for Chinese urban residents, thus alleviated the demand for motorcycles
and automobiles as well as the strain on the traffic congestion. Moreover,
electric bikes offering environmentally-friendly and energy-saving features
complement policies introduced by the PRC government and significantly
contribute to carbon reduction, spurring ever-increasing demand as can be
seen in the steady growth of the electric bike market in recent years across
the country. According to a Frost & Sullivan survey, the sales volume of
electric bikes in China will continue to grow from 2014 to 2017, representing
a CAGR of 9.5%. Ownership of electric bikes in China was approximately
189 million units in 2014.

Furthermore, the demand for electric tricycles as transportation by the elderly
and for short-distance cargo transport has surged driven in large measure
by the rapidly aging population and the increasing need for transport of
agricultural products. Keen demand for electric vehicles is also anticipated
to support China’s burgeoning logistics industry. The rising market demand
for electric bikes and special-purpose vehicles supports the continuous
growth of the primary market for lead-acid motive batteries. In addition,
the continuous increase in the demand of electric bikes is expanding the
vast base of electric bikes forming the foundation for the secondary market
created by the periodic need replacement purchases of lead-acid motive
batteries. According to Frost & Sullivan, it is expected that sales volume of
lead-acid batteries for electric bikes in China will reach 456.1 million units in
2015, representing an increase of 12.6% from 2014, being a strong indicator
of continued growth in future demand.
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Sales Volume of Electric Bikes in China

TEEBATEHER

2014E-2017E CAGR
2014 FEE2017ETBBES
FHRERER 9 5%)

(W% 5) (Suun uw)

i B ) (Suun uw)

(

2014E 2017E
20144 (f551) 20174 (f551)

Ownership of Electric Bikes in China
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Sales Volume of Electric Bike Lead-acid
Batteries in China
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Continuous elimination of substandard enterprises in the industry TESFEABER

In recent years, several regulatory measures were enacted, such as Entry — ¥14F - ZIEAREERIVEAEN (B2 BS
Requirements, the “12th Five-Year Plan on Comprehensive Prevention — Z4R&FA1+ = T J37 1) R E B4 EL
of Heavy Metal Pollution” ((ZE€B/5REEMAIT 2R FE)) and EEHNBENEERGBEENZR)(HE
“Directive on Promoting the Regular Development of the Lead-acid Battery RS R |)EEEHE - 2EIETEIEES S
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and Recycled Lead Industries” (BB E B M B A E X R
ErER)) (“Regular Development Opinions”). Environmental requirements
to be imposed on the business development, production and facilities of
the lead-acid motive battery industry have therefore been overhauled and
substandard enterprises are being eliminated as the industry consolidates.
Due to its demonstrated commitment to environmentally-friendly production
and technical innovation, the Group can further assimilate the market share
subsequently created.

The Regular Development Opinions has required substandard enterprises
not passing the environmental inspections to be phased out by the end of
2015. To enforce the requirements, the MEP and the MIIT of the People’s
Republic of China have continued their inspection of all recycled lead and
lead-acid batteries manufacturers. Lists of both compliant and non-compliant
enterprises would be announced accordingly. In the list of “Enterprises
Engaging in Lead-acid Batteries Production and Recycling Operations in
Compliance with Environmental Protection Laws and Regulations”, a total
of 50 enterprises were approved at the end of 2014, including six of the
Group’s subsidiaries, namely ;A FE#EE EIRBER AT (Henan Chaowei
Power Co., Ltd.), JTFAFTEE) LR AR A A] (Jiangxi Xinwei Power
Technology Co., Ltd.), JT&#KZEEBRERMDER A F (Jiangsu Yongda Power
Co., Ltd.), ILEBEHBRAFR AT (Shandong Chaowei Power Technology
Co., Ltd.), B E IR B E A 7 (Anhui Chaowei Power Co., Ltd.) and [
BEERERATZES AT (Ciyao Branch of Shandong Chaowei Power
Co., Ltd.). At present, more than 60% of the Group’s production capacity
have passed the inspections. In particular, STFE#EE) 4L ERHE AR A
7] (Jiangxi Xinwei Power Technology Co., Ltd.) was also selected as one of
the first batch of enterprises that fulfilled the Entry Requirements. The Group
remains confident that all subsidiaries of the Group can pass the required
inspections by the end of 2015.

Moreover, two lists of lead-acid battery enterprises with obsolete and
redundant capacities to be eliminated were issued by the MIIT in July
and August 2014, respectively. None of the Group’s production facilities
were cited for shortcomings, proving the Group’s excellent capability in
environmental control.
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More than 60% of the production capacity has passed the official MEP
inspection and subsequently been certified as fulfilling environmental laws and regulations.
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
Actively expanding the market share

Having seized the growth opportunity presented by industry consolidation
and favorable government policies, the Group raised its all-round
competitiveness by technique improvement, R&D strengthening, network
expansion and “CHILWEE” brand enhancement. As a result, the Group’s
market share rose to approximately 42.9% and marked its market-leading
position.

As the leading and most competitive enterprise in the entire industry, the
Group will actively respond to industrial changes and further expand the
market share of its products by optimising the sales network and fully
leveraging the technologies it has developed and accumulated over the
years.

Constantly striving for technical innovation in product development
through a team of talent

The Group aims to distinguish itself through its product quality by exploring
new possibilities to seek innovation and achieve breakthroughs in its
products. During the year, the Group has continued to strengthen its R&D
capabilities and recruit top talent across the country and all over the world.
The Group’s cardinal principle is to strive for excellence in terms of product
development, enhancing its production processes, conservation energy and
reducing emissions. The Group closely monitors the market and launches
diversified products to capture new market opportunities and further enlarge
market share.

The R&D team of the Group is a collection of industry elites specialising
in lead-acid motive battery technology, whose expertise spans from
basic theory, materials, industrial batteries, motive batteries and lithium-
ion batteries. Leading members of our talent pool include Academician
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Chen Liquan, Academician Yang Yusheng, Academician Tian Zhaowu,
Academician Chen Qingquan, Dr. Patrick T. Moseley (UK), Dr. Robert F.
Nelson (US), Prof. JueRgen Garche (Germany) and Academician Detchko
Pavlov (Bulgaria). These leaders provide regular training or on-site instruction
to its technical staff in research work, enhancing the overall research
capability of the Group in all respects to catch up with the development
trends prevailing in the market.

In April 2014, a framework investment agreement in relation to the
cooperation in the development of the start and stop battery technology for
automobiles was entered into between the Group and MOLL, a German
lead-acid motive battery manufacturer. The start and stop battery technology
for automobiles is a highly practical energy-conservative and emission-
reducing technique. The start and stop battery automatically shuts down
and restarts the engine but maintains power supply in the automobile to
reduce the amount of time the engine spends idling, thereby reducing fuel
consumption and emission. This bilateral cooperation enables the Group
to grasp the core production techniques of start and stop batteries within a
shorter timeframe, preparing us to enter the start and stop battery market in
China.

Meanwhile, the Group has also achieved impressive progress in R&D
projects for batteries for special-purpose electric vehicles, storage batteries
and lithium-ion batteries. With the solid achievements of traditional motive
batteries for electric bikes and vehicles, we have stepped up efforts in
the R&D of new energy batteries for automobiles in order to enhance our
competitiveness and seize further development opportunities.
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As at 31 December 2014, the Group owned a total of 879 patents. During
the year, the research input contributed by the Group was approximately
RMB417,059,000, representing 2.3% of the total revenue.

The vanguard of green production - enhancements in the enclosed
battery formation process

The Group has maintained its commitment to improve its production
processes through a focus on the balance between commercial interests
and environmental concerns. It is one of the very few enterprises in China
which can successfully adopt the Enclosed Battery Formation Process
in its production. Apart from that, it is the only lead-acid motive battery
manufacturer in China that has fully adopted gel battery technology.

During the year, the Group won the second-class award in the Ecological
Conservation Scientific Technology Awards 2014 by the MEP for its “Multi-
stage Enclosed Battery Formation Process of Cadmium-free Lead-acid
Batteries”. The Group is the first enterprise in the lead-acid motive battery
industry to have garnered the award. The “Multi-stage Enclosed Battery
Formation Process of Cadmium-free Lead-acid Batteries” has also been
implemented, which can reduce emissions of lead and other harmful and
toxic solvents and reduce the production of such high-risk pollutants at
the source. While at the vanguard of green enterprise, the Group is not
satisfied with merely fulfilling the industry standard. The Group further
curtails the production and emission of pollutants to an extent far above the
standard required. We believe that such a high standard could facilitate the
transformation of the industry into a greener mode of production.

As at the end of 2014, the portion of the Group’s capacity which
implemented the Enclosed Battery Formation Process has drastically
increased to 95% and ranked first in the entire industry. Since 2004, the
Group has conducted research and development on gel battery technology
on its own. After further research and refining, gel battery technology has
been fully utilised in all of its battery products since 2011. Thanks to the
gel battery technology, the performance, stability and consistency of the
Group’s products have been further improved. Meanwhile, the Group
strived to reduce waste, control pollution, save energy and minimise its
carbon emissions during its operation. As a result, health hazards have
been curtailed. Meanwhile, waste is also disposed in a safe and responsible
manner.

The Group insists on implementing its environmentally-friendly principle,
emphasising the minimisation of energy consumption, pollution and
emissions. Environmental protection and resource recycling are the Group’s
chief concerns in establishing “CHILWEE” as a premium green energy brand
in China.
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Distribution of Independent Distributors of CHILWEE and JINCHAOWEI
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&

Total number of independent distributors for the
CHILWEE brand (inculding CHILWEE, JINCHAOWEI
and CHANGWEI) in secondary markets
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Optimising distribution network to establish the brand

The Group’s nationwide sales and distribution network covers both the
primary and secondary markets. In the primary market, the Group supports
various top electric bike manufacturers which include Ever Master, Yadea,
Bidewen, Lima, etc.

The distribution network of the Group in the secondary market covers the
entire country. As at 31 December 2014, independent distributors operating
under the “CHILWEE” brand grew from 1,650 in 2013 to 2,013 in 2014,
representing an increase of 22%.

At present, the Group adopts a sophisticated approach to manage the
distributors, to decrease the intervening layers in our sales channels and
enhance the loyalty of the end customers. The Group also provides the
technical training and consultancy services to the independent distributors to
enhance their management capability. At the same time, the Group has fully
optimised its marketing strategies to establish the brand while strengthening
customer services. During the year under review, the Group put a lot of effort
in promoting “CHILWEE” brand outlets and continued engagement with
international movie star Mr. Donnie Yen as its brand spokesperson in order
to promote and enhance the brand reputation.
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Strategically located production facilities to
seize market opportunities

REMEEEMRE RBATEEHHE

The Group’s production facilities have
been trategically located in regions
with higher demand of lead-acid motive
batteries
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Strategic production plan

The Group has strategically located its production facilities in regions with
higher demand of lead-acid motive batteries, including Shandong, Jiangsu,
Henan, Zhejiang, Anhui, Jiangxi, and Hebei. This production strategy enables
it to respond to market dynamics in a more timely manner, while reducing
costs through effective storage and logistics arrangements. As such, it
consolidates its position as a leading player in the entire industry in terms of
market share.

During the year under review, the Group has actively upgraded the existing
production facilities and built new production lines to capture the market
share of those companies eliminated because of their obsolete capacities. As
a result, total capacity has continued to increase. The Group’s market share
has been effectively boosted by the strategic production location approach
complemented by the upgrade of facilities and addition of production lines,
which has helped us secure business opportunities, gain market share and
further expand our capacity.

A fruitful year with multiple awards

The Group has firmly established itself as a leader in the lead-acid motive
battery industry and has won many awards in different fields. In 2014, the
Group garnered a number of awards, which include the “Excellence in
Leadership (Global) — No. 1 in Revenue in Global Motive Battery Industry”,
“Excellence in Growth (Global) — Highest Growth in Global Motive Battery
Industry” and “Excellence in Innovation (China) — Innovation Leadership in
Chinese Lead-acid Motive Battery Industry” from Frost & Sullivan. Meanwhile,
the Group has been selected among the Top 500 Listed Companies in China
compiled by Fortune magazine and was shortlisted for “Top 500 Chinese
Enterprises”, the only enterprise in the lead-acid battery industry in China to

BRI

BREEEMRR

REBERBRBBEUENEERR - BEERBE
RAMRMEP HELFRRENES - B3
WER -~ OTE R DT - RN TR
EEEED - REBRIEWSECELTE R
REGAEE R  ERVBAERERS - RE
BIE(EH R E -] TRIFNTISER -

BEFA - NEEBGARRE EERELE
EATEELR - RIS TRBARER IR TS
DR - MRERLFTEIRTT - BESMAEMRR - Tt
MEFEEERERERGEE - ARULES
TASENTHNE  E—TERERER -

AEECEHBRY N EMTERIBELL
TMENRIA R D EERR - —F—[0%F - K
SEESZEZR  BREERENT —DNX
BT 2B HERTEREEE]  [2F
NEHITRFBIR RN P ERERE N EL
TEFBEHE] - A ARERE(T=RE)
FEFSE MY P E LA RI50058 | R AGET H
BI%500%8 | - RABEANRERE HEBITE
R EAZBENRE - AEE—RX—K
At ERRRTEERELENES - K%



026 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited R B hiZRER QT

Annual Report 2014 F 3§

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEBNmR D

be named on these lists. The Group thus demonstrated to the general public
yet again its reputation as the market leader. The Group was also granted
the most prestigious environmental award, the “China Baosteel Environment
Award,” in May 2014, the first-ever lead-acid motive battery enterprise
to receive this award since its inception. At the Group, corporate social
responsibility means conducting business in a truly responsible manner. The
Group fulfills its obligations to society through real actions and takes seriously
its commitment to the long-term development in China. The Group adheres
to its commitment to the community which emphasizes “sharing resources,
mutual benefit, developing hand-in-hand and enduring harmony”. These
awards are an affirmation of the past achievements of the Group and the
fruit yielded by the shared efforts of the Group’s employees across different
strata.

Future Development

Riding on the industry uptrend, demand for motive batteries used in electric
bike is expected to grow. According to the forecast of Frost & Sullivan, the
sales volume of electric bikes will expand to more than 45.9 million units in
2017, with a market scale of 250 million units in aggregate. The management
team is optimistic about the prospects for the development of the industry
and the Group itself, and is confident that with execution of effective
strategies, the Group can generate an even greater room for development.
Looking forward to 2015, the Group will continue to focus on:

1. Strengthening the leading market position

The Group was active in seizing market share and has been pre-
eminent in the entire industry for two consecutive years. In the future,
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the Group intends to strengthen its existing leadership and raise its
profitability. Beyond expanding our market share, the Group is also
continuing to improve its competitive strength. After launching its
collaboration with MOLL for start and stop batteries for automobiles,
the Group is pursuing potential business opportunities and seeking
more chances for cooperation in order to enter new markets.

Commitments to green production with technical innovation and
enhancement

The Group resolves to pursue product innovation and enhance its R&D
capabilities while optimising operating costs, improving efficiency and
enhancing its competitiveness. Through this course of action, product
life will lengthen, as product performance becomes more stable and
production becomes more eco-friendly.

Optimising distribution channels and build its brand

The Group will continue to implement strategies that effectively extend
its distribution network. Specifically, it will execute a multi-brand and
multi-channel strategy to expand the coverage and penetration of the
sales network as well as to promote the brand. The Group will step
up investment in promotion of “CHILWEE”, as it further enhances our
reputation and increases the value-added of its branded products in
order to achieve steady and continuous growth of profitability.
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The Group will fully leverage its edge as the market leader as it becomes a
premium brand of green energy of China while adhering to the core principle
of “Advocate Green Energy, Perfect Human Life.”
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue amounted to approximately RMB18,187,060,000
in 2014, increased by approximately 21.5% over approximately
RMB14,973,221,000 for 2013, which was primarily attributable to the growth
in sales volume of lead-acid motive batteries as a result of the expansion of
the demand and the Group’s market share.

Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit amounted to approximately RMB2,046,855,000 in
2014, representing an increase of approximately 1.0% over approximately
RMB2,026,707,000 for 2013, which was primarily attributable to a higher
sales volume of lead-acid motive batteries in 2014. The gross profit margin
in 2014 was approximately 11.3% (2013: approximately 13.5%) and the
decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the increase in rebates
given to customers as a result of pricing competition in the industry.

Other Income

The Group’s other income amounted to approximately RMB121,640,000
in 2014, representing an increase of approximately 38.6% from other
income of approximately RMB87,748,000 in 2013, which was mainly due
to government grants of approximately RMB74,552,000 in 2014 (2013:
approximately RMB51,467,000) and interest arising from the entrusted loan
of approximately RMB19,484,000 in 2014 (2013: RMB12,514,000).

Distribution and Selling Expenses

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses amounted to approximately
RMB928,808,000 in 2014, representing an increase of approximately
64.1% over approximately RMB565,982,000 for 2013, which was
primarily attributable to increases in other after-sales service cost, staff
costs, advertising expenses and transportation costs in 2014. For 2014,
the distribution and selling expenses as a percentage of revenue were
approximately 5.1% (2013: approximately 3.8%).

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses were approximately RMB504,240,000
in 2014, representing a rise of approximately 15.4% over approximately
RMB436,947,000 for 2013, which was primarily attributable to increases in
staff expenses, depreciation and professional fees in 2014. The increase in
administrative expenses was in line with the Group’s business expansion.
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Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses amounted to approximately
RMB417,059,000 in 2014, representing an increase of approximately
4.8% over approximately RMB397,970,000 for 2013, which was primarily
attributable to increases in costs of research materials and staff as a result of
a greater number of research and development projects being undertaken,
including research and development in new products.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by approximately 37.0% from
approximately RMB152,946,000 for 2013 to approximately RMB209,570,000
for 2014, which was primarily attributable to 1) an increase in interest
expenses on bank borrowings as a result of the increase in average
outstanding bank borrowings, 2) an increase in interest expenses on the
convertible bonds issued in September 2012 and short-term financing note
issued by Chaowei Power, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in
February 2013 and in January 2014, and 3) incurrence of interest expenses
on corporate bonds issued by Chaowei Power, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company in August 2014.
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Profit before Tax

For the above reasons, the Group’s profit before tax decreased by
approximately 85.4% to approximately RMB73,355,000 in 2014 (2018:
approximately RMB501,716,000).

Taxation

The Group’s income tax expenses decreased by approximately 69.0%
to approximately RMB35,067,000 in 2014 (2013: approximately
RMB113,179,000). The decrease in taxation was in line with the decrease in
operating profit. The higher effective tax rate of approximately 47.8% in 2014
(2013: approximately 22.6%) was mainly due to losses of certain subsidiaries
of which tax losses were not recognised.

Loss or Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

In 2014, loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB28,955,000. Profit attributable to owners of the Company
for 2013 was approximately RMB310,238,000.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB84,276,000 (31 December 2013: net current assets
of approximately RMB590,011,000). Cash and bank balances were
approximately RMB1,016,555,000 (31 December 2013: approximately
RMB1,120,630,000). Total borrowings, short-term financing notes, corporate
bonds and convertible bonds were approximately RMB3,830,962,000 (31
December 2013: approximately RMB2,904,373,000), which were mainly used
to finance the purchases and daily working capital of the Group. They were
denominated in RMB or HKD, of which approximately RMB2,984,164,000
bore interest at fixed rates and approximately RMB2,719,475,000 were
repayable within one year. The Group adopts centralised financing and
treasury policies in order to ensure that the Group’s funding is utilised
efficiently and it monitors its interest rate risks in a conservative manner.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s current ratio (current assets/
current liabilities) was 1.0 (31 December 2013: 1.2) and gearing ratio (total
borrowings/total assets) was approximately 40.6% (31 December 2013:
approximately 36.2%). The Group has sufficient cash and available banking
facilities to meet its commitments and working capital requirements. This
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strong cash position enables the Group to explore potential investment and  #EAFWIRE LAl BIRTTRLE © BIATENEAYE
potential business development opportunities to expand its domestic market REEELHFE - BYNIE SRR EAREF T

share. BRECRERBCEBERIES  HRBR
TSN °
Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk RSl

As the Group’s operations are mainly conducted in China and the majority HRAEBEKTENHELE  THESET
of the sales and purchases are transacted in RMB, the Directors are of the ZBUARKER S  EERAREER LERS
view that the Group’s operating cash flow and liquidity are not subject to  RRREFE S NFEEAINEERER
significant foreign exchange rate risks.

Contingent Liabilities RAREE
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 RZ-ZZ—MNFE+-A=+—H0  ~AEEHE
December 2014 (31 December 2013: nil). AREAXABB(ZTE—=F+=-A=+—

B )
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BRI W R

Charge on Assets

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s assets were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The aggregate
carrying amounts of the assets of the Group pledged at the end of each of

the reporting periods are as follows:

EEEMA
RIFE AR ARBEERETEEERR
TRTAKBERTRENER - REBEME
R ARECEMEENEREELT

2014 2013
—2-mF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREBFT
Buildings EF 327,550 414,113
Land use rights b {E A A 92,085 67,582
Trade receivables FEUNE SR - 153,921
Bills receivable FEM =0k 19,591 -
Restricted bank deposits ZIRHIRITER 275,054 70,087
Capital Commitments BAREE
2014 2013
= ===
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARBTFT
Contracted but not provided for Bt T B T AR RS
— acquisition of property, plant and equipment — WEEWE - BB R& 232,142 227,148
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Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 7 June 2010. The
Company has not granted any shares options for the year under review.

Human Resources and Employees’ Remuneration

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed a total of 20,236 (31
December 2013: 19,401) staff members in the PRC and Hong Kong.

During the year under review, the total cost of employees amounted to
approximately RMB934,676,000. The Group sought to further strengthen
staff training by offering focused training programmes and study tours to
management and professional technical personnel, and disseminating the
latest information of government policy on the lead-acid motive battery
industry to staff. The Group continued to strive for the enhancement of
professional standards and overall qualities of its staff. The Group also
provided competitive salary packages to its staff, encouraging them to be
fully dedicated in their work and to leverage their capabilities in serving its
customers.

Final Dividend

The Board resolved not to declare any final dividend (2013: RMB0.093 per
share) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 29 May
2015 to 2 June 2015 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of determining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company (the “Annual General Meeting”), during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for
attending the Annual General Meeting, shareholders should ensure that all
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, No0.183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration by no later
than 4:30 p.m. on 28 May 2015.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Mingming (/EBH8H), aged 46, is the founder of the Group, the
chairman of the Board, an executive Director and the chief executive officer
of the Group. Mr. Zhou is mainly responsible for the Group’s overall strategy
planning and investment decisions. Mr. Zhou received a bachelor degree in
chemistry from Hangzhou Normal University (5N Bf#&5E255) in July 1990,
and has over 15 years experience in the lead-acid battery industry. Mr. Zhou is
the younger brother of Mr. Yang Xinxin, and the son of Mr. Zhou Longrui and
Ms. Yang Yunfei, all being executive Directors. Also, Mr. Zhou is the spouse
of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-executive Director.

Mr. Zhou Longrui (E#EH), aged 76, is an executive Director of the Group.
He is mainly responsible for the overall supervision of the technical aspects
of our production process. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in January 1998.
Mr. Zhou has rich experience in the lead-acid battery industry gained at the
Group and through previous employment. Early in 1994 and since then,
Mr. Zhou published several professional articles in the field of lead-acid
batteries on various magazines such Batteries ( (&) ), International
Power Information ( (R EJRRE1E) ) and Power Technologies ( { EJRH;
fiT) ), etc. Mr. Zhou was appointed the vice-chairman of the First Session of
Lead-acid Battery Committee (£ —[EinAE B M EX LT EFRITEEE) by
China Electrotechnics Technology Academy (F Bl E&E T & T2 &) in August
2008 and member of National Lead-acid Battery Standardization Technology
Committee (% B #514 T M IZ (L T2 B ) in July 2007. He is the father of
Mr. Zhou Mingming and Mr. Yang Xinxin and the spouse of Ms. Yang Yunfei,
all being executive Directors. He is also a father-in-law of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a
non-executive Director.

Ms. Yang Yunfei ({8Z&7), aged 72, is an executive Director of the Group.
She is mainly responsible for the management of the Group’s procurement
and building. She has been with the Group since January 1998. Ms.
Yang has worked in several battery manufacturing factories, responsible
for manufacturing or overall operation of the factories and worked for the
establishment preparation of the Group. Ms. Yang has accumulated rich
experience in the lead-acid battery industry gained at the Group and through
previous employment. Ms. Yang Yunfei is the mother of Mr. Zhou Mingming
and Mr. Yang Xinxin and the spouse of Mr. Zhou Longrui, all being executive
Directors. She is also a motherin-law of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-executive
Director.
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Mr. Yang Xinxin (#2#7%7), aged 48, is an executive Director of the Group.
He is mainly responsible for assisting Mr. Zhou Mingming in the discharge of
Mr. Zhou’s duties in the overall management of the Group. Mr. Yang joined
the Group in August 2011. He has vast experience in the management of
sizeable organisations. Immediately prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yang was
the secretary of the party committee (£Z £Z52) and deputy head (gfz &) of
Zhejiang Design Institute of Water Conservancy and Hydroelectric Power (7
ST KFKEEAIZREBL), and had served in such positions since August
2006. Mr. Yang was the deputy head (&8 ) of the People’s Government
of Anji County, Zhejiang Province (I & LS % ARBM) between
June 2001 and August 2003. Mr. Yang was the deputy director of Water
Resources Department of Zhejiang Province (#1%& 7K Fl|EE) between August
2003 and August 2006. Mr. Yang is a professor-level senior engineer (Z{#%
4 = 4 TA2AM). Mr. Yang obtained a master degree from Zhejiang University
(HIARE) in March 1991 and a bachelor degree from Anhui University of
Science & Technology (Z#32 T K&, formerly known as Huainan Mining
Institute CEMIEEERT), in July 1988. Mr. Yang is an elder brother of Mr.
Zhou Mingming, the son of Mr. Zhou Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, all being
executive Directors. He is also a brother-inlaw of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-
executive Director.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Fang Jianjun (5 ZE), aged 46, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Group on 17 November 2013. Ms Fang received a bachelor’s
degree in chemistry from Hangzhou Normal University (7 BF &5 AE2) in
July 1990. From August 1990 to October 1998, Ms. Fang was a teacher at
Hongxi Middle School (41 &) in Zhejiang Province, the PRC. Ms. Fang
is the spouse of Mr. Zhou Mingming, an executive Director, the chairman
of the Board, and the controlling shareholder (as defined under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”)) of the Company. She is also a daughter-in-law
of Mr. Zhou Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, a sister-in-law of Mr. Yang Xinxin,
all being executive Directors.

Mr. Ng Chi Kit (R&#t), aged 41, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Group on 2 December 2010. Prior to the appointment, Mr.
Ng was the Group’s chief financial officer and company secretary. Mr. Ng
holds a bachelor degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 1997 and is an Associate Member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow Member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Ng worked
in the Assurance and Advisory Business Service Department of Ernst &
Young and was a senior manager of Ernst & Young since 2004. Mr. Ng has
over 10 years of experience in accounting and auditing.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jiqiang ((F#38), aged 75, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Group. Mr. Wang has more than 40 years of experience in the
field of electrochemistry. Before he retired in December 2008, Mr. Wang has
been working in the 18th Research Institute, China Electronics Technology
Group Corporation (FBEF R EE QRS+ /\FFEH) since October
1962 as a vice-chief engineer and mainly in charge of battery technology
development. In addition, Mr. Wang received various national awards for his
expertise on battery technology, such as the first class award on science
and technology advancement (B2 1T 26— 48) from the Ministry of
Information Technology of the PRC (ff# A R L FNEI{Z EEZE6) on his
research on lithium rechargeable battery technology in October 1999. Mr.
Wang received a bachelor degree in electrochemistry from Fudan University
in 1962.

Prof. Ouyang Minggao (&[5 85), aged 56, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Group. Prof. Ouyang graduated from the Technical
University of Denmark with a doctorate degree in Engineering in 1993. He
worked at Tsinghua University (i 2= X £2) since 1994 at which he held various
titles including Ministry of Education Scholar Chang Jiang Special Professor
FHB BRI EEFIEZHIR) and supervisor of the National Key Laboratory
for Automobile Safety and Energy-saving Research (R % & HETFEH
REEEZTT). Prof. Ouyang is a Standing Member of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (F B A
RECAHEeZ2BAEES@HKZES). Prof. Ouyang is also an independent
nonexecutive Director of Sinotruk (Hong Kong) Limited (Stock Code: 3808),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, Shanghai Diesel
Engine Company Limited (Stock Code: 60084 1) (/G5 HkpE D AR A
7l), a company listed on the Main Board of Shanghai Stock Exchange and
Chongaing Changan Automobile Company Limited (Stock Code: 000625) (&
BREZSERHERAT), acompany listed on the Main Board of Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Prof. Ouyang also served as independent non-executive
Director of Aerospace Hi-Tech Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (Stock Code:
000901) (IR BHIEREER (AR A7), a company listed on the Main
Board of Shenzhen Stock Exchange from December 2011 to March 2013.
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Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai (Z=7&1F), aged 60, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Group. Mr. Lee received a bachelor’s degree in arts
from the Kingston University (formerly known as the Kingston Polytechnic) in
London in July 1980 and obtained his postgraduate diploma in business from
the Curtin University of Technology in Australia in February 1988. Mr. Lee
served as a partner of Ernst & Young for 29 years until 2009 and had held
key leadership positions in the development of such firm in China. Mr. Lee is
a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales,
The Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Macau Society of Registered Accountants. Mr. Lee
currently also serves as an independent non-executive director of West
China Cement Limited (Stock Code: 2233), China Modern Dairy Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1117), GOME Electrical Appliances Holding Limited
(Stock Code: 493), Tibet 5100 Water Resources Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code:
1115), CITIC Securities Company Limited (Stock Code: 6030), NVC Lighting
Holding Limited (Stock Code: 2222) and Yashili International Holdings Ltd
(Stock Code: 1230), all being companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, since July 2010, October 2010, March 2011, April 2011,
November 2011, November 2012 and November 2013. Mr. Lee also served
as an independent non-executive director of China Taiping Insurance
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 966) listed on the Main Board of Stock
Exchange between October 2009 and August 2013 and Sino Vanadium
Inc. (Stock Code: SVX), a company listed on the TSX Venture Exchange in
Canada between October 2009 and December 2011. Mr. Lee has been
appointed as a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Hunan Province in China since 2007 .

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Jingning (FR#& &), aged 41, is the investment director and
head of the new energy division. Mr. Chen graduated from the University
of Science and Technology of China (F BRI 2517 K2 with a bachelor
degree in Industrial Automation in 1995 and obtained a Master of Business
Administration from University of Science and Technology of China in 2005.
Mr. Chen joined the Group in 2003 as assistant to chairman and has since
2011 held his current position as investment director.
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Prof. Chen Tixian (FR#1), aged 76, is the head of the research and
development department and is responsible for leading the research
activities of the Group. Prof. Chen graduated with a bachelor’s degree in
chemistry and physics from Xiamen University (EF9.X22) in 1961. Prof. Chen
has over 30 years of experience in the lead-acid battery industry. Prof. Chen
lectured in the chemistry department of Xiamen University between 1961 and
1989 when he retired as a professor. Prof. Chen joined the Group in April
2004 and has since held his current position as the head of the research
department of the Group.

Mr. Pan Xuexiang (B2 %), aged 40, is the marketing director and is
responsible for, among others, marketing planning, brands management and
products planning. Mr. Pan graduated with a bachelor’s degree in economic
management from Hefei University of Technology in Anhui in June 1997.
Mr. Pan joined the Group in 2009 and has held several positions including
deputy director of sales channel department and marketing director.

Mr. Qian Shunrong (£]E%¥), aged 45, is the head of the production
department of the Group and assistant to Mr. Yang Xin Xin and is
responsible for the overall management of the production department. Mr.
Qian completed his junior high school education in 1985. Mr. Qian joined
the Group in 2003 and has held several positions in the Group including
deputy general manager of Henan Chaowei, head of the supervision and
management department and deputy general manager of the production
department.

Mr. Leung Wai Yip (R{&3£), aged 39, was appointed as the Group’s chief
financial officer and company secretary, on 2 December 2010. Prior to joining
the group, Mr. Leung was the financial controller and the company secretary
of Tiangong International Company Limited X TEIFRER A 7)) (Stock
Code: 826), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, from June 2007
to November 2010. Prior to such appointment, Mr. Leung was an internal
auditor of the Swire Group and was previously a manager with the assurance
and advisory business services department of Ernst & Young, Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Leung graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce
degree from the University of Alberta in Canada in 1998 and obtained a
Master of Business Administration degree from the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in 2010. He is a member of the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Leung is currently an
independent non-executive director of Miko International Holdings Limited, a
listed company on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1247).
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The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance. The Company acknowledges the important role of its Board
in providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s business,
and ensuring transparency and accountability of the Company’s operations.
The Board sets appropriate policies and implements corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Group’s business.

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders. The Company has complied
with all code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix 14 (the “Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout
the year under review, except for the deviation as stated below.

Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code requires the roles of chairman of the Board
and chief executive officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou Mingming is currently
both the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the Company.
The Board considers that the current arrangement facilitates the execution of
the Group’s business strategies and maximizes efficiency of its operation and
is therefore beneficial to the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership, control and management of
the Company and oversees the Group’s business, strategic decision and
performances in attaining the objective of ensuring effective functioning
and growth of the Group and enhancing value to investors. The Board
has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing business
strategies and management of the daily operations of the Group’s business
to the management. The Board exercises a number of powers which include:

° formulating long-term strategy
° approving public announcements
° approving financial statement, including interim and annual results

° approving major acquisitions, disposal and capital projects

° authorising significant changes to the capital structure and material
borrowings

° any issue or buy-back of equity securities under the relevant general
mandates

o making recommendations and/or declaration of dividend and reviewing
dividend policy

° approving appointments to the Board

° setting the Group remuneration policy

° reviewing operational and financial performance

° reviewing the effectiveness of internal control
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The Board meets at least four times a year and additional meetings are
held when required to discuss significant events and issues. The company
secretary assists the chairman of the Board in preparing agenda for Board
meetings. Board meetings are held with at least 14 days’ advance notice,
and all Directors would be served with an agenda with supporting papers
at least 3 days before the Board meetings, so as to ensure that there is
timely access to relevant information. The Group ensures that all the Board
members are informed of the Group’s latest developments and thereby
assists them in the discharge of their duties. The Directors may take
independent professional advice as and when appropriate, at the Company’s
expenses. Minutes of the Board and Board committees are taken by the
company secretary. Such minutes of the Board and Board committees,
together with supporting papers, are made available for inspection by any
Director following reasonable notice. Draft and final versions of minutes are
sent to all Directors for their comment and records.

The Company has arranged directors and officers liability and company
reimbursement insurances for its directors and officers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance. It includes the review and monitor of the
training and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management; the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; the development, review and monitoring of
the code of conduct of the Company’s employees and directors; and review
the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors (Mr. Zhou Mingming,
Mr. Zhou Longrui, Ms. Yang Yunfei and Mr. Yang Xinxin), two non-executive
Directors (Ms. Fang Jianjun and Mr. Ng Chi Kit) and three independent
non-executive Directors (Mr. Wang Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang Minggao and
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai). Among the executive Directors, Mr. Zhou
Mingming is the younger brother of Mr. Yang Xinxin. They are both sons
of Mr. Zhou Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, and Mr. Zhou Longrui is the
spouse of Ms. Yang Yunfei. Also, Ms Fang Jianjun is the spouse of Mr.
Zhou Mingming. Biographical details of the Directors of the Group as at
the date of this report are set out on pages 34 to 37 of this annual report.
Independent non- executive Directors account for one-third of the members
of the Board. The independent non-executive Directors come either from
the battery industry or have related professional background, bringing
valuable expertise and experience that promotes the best interests of the
Group and its shareholders. The role of the independent non-executive
Directors is to provide independent and objective opinions to the Board
for its consideration. The Company has received confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director about his independence as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and continues to consider each of them to be
independent.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board has held a total of 4
Board meetings for the main purposes of formulating business development
and prospects of the Group, reviewing and considering the financial and
operating performance.

The attendance of each director at the Board meetings are set out below:
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Attendance/
Number of
Board Meetings

Name of Director EEEE HERY, EEEEHRAY
Mr. Zhou Mingming BEEEEDHES 4/4
Mr. Zhou Longrui BB E 4/4
Ms. Yang Yunfei HERLZ L 4/4
Mr. Yang Xinxin TGRS 4/4
Ms. Fang Jianjun FRER L 2/4
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REGEE 4/4
Mr. Wang Jigiang et 4/4
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B 5 B = 2 4/4
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai FREEE 4/4
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code requires the roles of chairman of the Board
and chief executive officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou Mingming is currently
both the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the Company.
The Board considers that the current arrangement facilitates the execution of
the Group’s business strategies and maximizes efficiency of its operation and
is therefore beneficial to the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time either
by shareholders’ resolutions in general meetings or by resolutions of the
Board. New Directors appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board
during the year are required to retire at the first general meeting following
their appointments and new Directors appointed by the Board to fill a causal
vacancy during the year are required to retire at the first general meeting
following their appointments, and in both cases, the acting Directors will be
eligible for re-election at such general meeting. All Directors are required
to retire by rotation at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting, subject to re-election by the shareholders. All non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are appointed for a
term of not more than three years.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. All Directors are encouraged
to participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Directors have been informed of the
requirement under Code Provision A.6.5 of the Code regarding continuous
professional development. The Company updates Directors on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year, the Company has also organised one training session for the
Directors of the Company conducted by its Hong Kong legal advisers. The
training session covered topics including, among others, the requirements
of the Code, the disclosure of inside information and establishment of an
internal control system.
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According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of training
received by the Directors during the year is as follows:

TRERME

R BIRENI - BENERE TSI
ST

Type of continuous
professional development

programmes
Directors EEEH BESERRTEER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhou Mingming AR %A A B
Mr. Zhou Longrui BBEmiEE A B
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERL L A B
Mr. Yang Xinxin TSR S A B
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Fang Jianjun FRER L A B
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REGEEE A B
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKEHTES
Mr. Wang Jigiang et vt A B
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B 5 B = % A B
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai TREEE A B

Notes:
A attending training sessions and/or seminars

B: reviewing materials and updates relating to the latest development of the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee for
overseeing the particular aspects of the affairs of the Company. All Board
committees have been established with defined written terms of reference,
which are posted on the Company’s website “www.chaowei.com.hk”
and the website of the Stock Exchange and are available to shareholders
upon request. All the Board committees would report to the Board on their
decisions or recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company comprises one non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Ng Chi Kit, and all three independent non-executive Directors of
the Company, namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai, Mr. Wang Jigiang, Prof.
Ouyang Minggao. Mr. Lee is the chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Lee
has professional qualification and experience in financial matters.

Under its terms of reference, the audit committee is mainly responsible
for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system and internal
procedures, reviewing the financial information of the Company and
overseeing the relationship with external auditors. These include reviewing
and recommending for the Board’s approval of the interim and the annual
financial statements; reviewing the external auditors’ independence,
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process; and reviewing
and recommending to the Board for approval of the external auditors’
remuneration and reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors’ attendance of the
meetings of the audit committee is set out as follows:
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Attendance/Number

of audit

committee meetings

HERE,

Name of Director BEEEB ERZEEEERARE
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REMGEE 2/2
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai TREEE 2/2
Mr. Wang Jigiang LR S 2/2
Prof. Ouyang Minggao R 5 BA = U 2/2

The meetings were held together with the external auditors of the Company
and the chief financial officer of the Company, and discussed auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters which included the review of
the interim and annual financial statements.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Zhou Mingming, and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Wang Jigiang. Mr. Lee
is the chairman of the remuneration committee. The principal responsibilities
of the remuneration committee include making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure and the
remuneration packages of Directors and members of senior management.
The remuneration committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration packages
of the Directors and senior management of the Group were reviewed and
discussed at the meetings of the remuneration committee. The Directors’
attendance of the meetings of the remuneration committee is set out as
follows:
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Attendance/Number
of remuneration
committee meetings

HERE,
Name of Director BEEEB FHEZEEEEERE
Mr. Zhou Mingming JERREA S & 1/1
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai TREEE 1/1
Mr. Wang Jigiang TR A 11

Details of the remuneration of each Director of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note 10 to the financial statements
contained in this annual report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr.
Zhou Mingming (“Mr. Zhou”), and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Wang Jigiang. Mr. Zhou is the
chairman of the nomination committee. The principal responsibilities of the
nomination committee include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board at least annually and making recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the corporate strategy.
The nomination committee is also responsible for 1) identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships; 2) assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors of the Company; and 3) making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of directors of the Company and
succession planning for directors of the Company, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive.

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy. The purpose of
the policy is to set out the basic principles to be followed to ensure that
the Board has appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives necessary to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and
to maintain high standards of corporate governance. Under the policy,
the selection of Board candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model and specific
needs, including but not limited gender, race, language, cultural background,
educational background, industry experience and professional experience,
which are the measurable objectives for implementing the policy.

The nomination committee has primary responsibility for identifying suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board and shall give
adequate consideration to this policy in selection of Board candidates. Board
nomination and appointments will continue to be made on merit basis based
on its business needs from time to time while taking into account diversity.

The nomination committee is also responsible for reviewing the policy,
developing and reviewing measurable objectives for implementing the policy
and monitoring the progress on achieving these measurable objectives. The
review of the policy and the measurable objectives shall be carried out at
least annually to ensure the continued effectiveness of the Board.

During the year under review, the nomination committee has considered
the board diversity policy and whether the Board has the appropriate
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of
corporate governance. After due consideration, the nomination committee
has concluded that based on the Company’s existing business model and
specific needs, the current composition of the Board satisfies the board
diversity policy for the year under review.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors’ attendance of the
meetings of the nomination committee is set out as follows:

AN £ 3/
1E E/ﬂ#ﬁ%
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Attendance/Number
of nomination
committee meetings

HERE,
Name of Director BEEEH REZEEERIE
Mr. Zhou Mingming JERBRR S 1/1
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai TREEE 1/1
Mr. Wang Jigiang TR A 1/1

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014, which were
prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The reporting responsibility of the external auditors of
the Company on the consolidated financial statements of the Group are set
out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 67 to 68.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Wai Yip, the company secretary of the Company, reports to the
chairman of the Board. The details of his biography is set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report. Mr. Leung
also confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 December 2014.

INTERNAL CONTROL

A sound internal control system enhances the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, ensures compliance with laws and regulations and mitigates the
Group’s business risk. The Board is responsible for the system of internal
control of the Group and reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board and the Group’s management hold meetings on a regular basis to
review and evaluate the Group’s business operations, production processes
and financial reporting processes in order to achieve reasonable assurance
of the following:

° Effectiveness and efficiency of operations

° Reliability of financial reporting

° Compliance with applicable laws and regulations
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To maintain an effective internal control system that helps the Group to
achieve its business objectives and safeguard its assets, the Group has
implemented measures including: (i) establishing written policies and
work flow for major operations and production cycles; (ii) having in place
appropriate segregation of duties; (i) setting proper authorization levels and
(iv) establishing an internal audit function for regular monitoring of the internal
control system.

The Board, through the audit committee, reviewed the internal control
system of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and considered
that the system of internal control of the Group had been in place and had
been functioning effectively.

In addition, the internal audit department of the Company conducts regular
and independent reviews of the effectiveness of the internal control system.
The audit committee reviews the findings and opinion of the internal audit
department on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and
reports to the board on such reviews.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit department of the Company performs independent internal
audit reviews for different business units and functions in the Group on a
systematic and ongoing basis. The frequency of review of individual business
units or functions is determined after an assessment of risks involved. The
audit committee endorses the internal audit plan annually. It submits regular
reports for the audit committee’s review in accordance with the approved
internal audit plan. Concerns which have been reported by the internal audit
department are monitored by management by taking appropriate remedial
actions.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s external auditors are Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified
Public Accountants. In order to maintain their independence, objectivity
and effectiveness in performing the audit services, the audit committee pre-
approved all audit services and discussed with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
Certified Public Accountants the nature and scope of the audit services.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid or payable to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants in respect of audit services
was RMB1,800,000. The fee paid or payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
Certified Public Accountants for non-audit services, namely review of
unaudited interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2014, was RMB800,000.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding directors’
dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Own Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Each Director has been given a copy of the
Own Code. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, each of them has
confirmed that they have complied with the Own Code and the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company and/or its securities. No
incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by relevant
employees was noted by the Company during the year under review. The
Company will notify the Directors and relevant employees of any restricted
period for dealings in the Company’s securities in advance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board and senior management of the Group recognize the importance
of communication with shareholders and accountability to shareholders.
Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational and financial
performance information to shareholders. The Group’s senior management
also maintains close communication with investors, analysts and the media
by other channels including roadshows, briefings and individual meetings.
The Group has set up its own website http://www.chaowei.com.hk, which is
updated on a regular basis, as a means to provide updated information on
the Company to investors.

GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s Annual General Meeting provides a useful platform for direct
communication between the Board and shareholders. Separate resolutions
are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the general meetings.
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The 2014 Annual General Meeting was held on 5 June 2014. The attendance
record of the Directors at the 2014 Annual General Meeting is set out below:

—ENEEERBEFAECR-_FTEFX
RAB#T - EFR _ZE—NFERRAFK
G HECEHIMT

Directors Attendance/

Number of
general meetings
EEHERE
Directors = BRAERE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zhou Mingming JERRRA % & 11
Mr. Zhou Longrui R & 11
Ms. Yang Yunfei CESi e 11
Mr. Yang Xinxin TSR S 01
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REGEE 11
Ms. Fang Jianjun TEELZ LT 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKEHTES
Mr. Wang Jigiang TR A 1/1
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B 5 BR m % 11
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai TREEE 0/1

The Company’s external auditors also attended the 2014 Annual General
Meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure
requirement under Paragraph O of the Code:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”) to be called by the Board. The written requisition must
specify the business to be transacted on the meeting, which shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition at the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 907, Level 9 Fairmont
House, 8 Cotton Tree Drive, Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary.
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If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the Board
fails to proceed to convene an EGM, the shareholder(s) concerned may
themselves convene an EGM, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
shareholder(s) making the requisition as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed by the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details are as
follows:

Address: Unit 907, Level 9, Fairmont House, 8 Cotton Tree Drive, Central,
Hong Kong
Email: ir@chaowei.com.hk

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholder(s)’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to respond to the shareholder(s)’ questions.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings by
shareholders

Any shareholder of the Company who wish to put forward proposals at
general meetings of the Company shall submit such proposals to the Board
in writing for the Board’s consideration not less than 7 days prior to the
date of a general meeting through the Company Secretary of the Company
whose contact details are set out in the paragraph “Procedures for directing
shareholders’ enquiries to the Board” above.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no change in the memorandum and articles of association of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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The Board is pleased to submit the annual report together with the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
which have been audited by the Company’s auditors Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants and reviewed by the audit committee
of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing and sales of lead-
acid motive batteries and other related products. The principal activities and
other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 69 to 183.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 69.

The Board resolved not to declare any final dividend for the financial year
ended 31 December 2014.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year under review
amounted to RMB3,160,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year under
review are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2014, calculated
in accordance with the Companies Law (Cap. 22) (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
RMB178,712,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of
the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year
under review are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Mingming
Mr. Zhou Longrui
Ms. Yang Yunfei
Mr. Yang Xinxin

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Fang Jianjun
Mr. Ng Chi Kit

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Jigiang

Prof. Ouyang Minggao

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai

Directors will retire by rotation in accordance with the requirement of the
articles of association of the Company and the Listing Rules. The non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for periods of three years.

A confirmation of independence has been received from each of Mr. Wang
Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang Minggao and Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and the
Company considers each of them is independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests of the Directors and the Company’s
chief executive in the shares or debentures of the Company or associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of Securities and Future
Ordinance (the “SFO”), which will have to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and/or short positions which he/she is taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein
or which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code are set out below:

Interests and short positions in the shares (“Shares”), underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations:

Long positions in the Company

EERRG - HERORES 2E
=
RZZE—NF+ZA=+—8  EFERAERQA]
FEITBABRAR RSB ER(F&
RBEHRBAEEN([EHRBAEEN])EXV
BN SEST - EHREESFRBAERK
PIEXVEPET M8A B AME AR A T&Hﬁ%?&ﬁﬁ
B = (B IR IR A8 5 R B 16 b 3R T 4
*{’E&ﬁ%%“ﬁﬁ’]ﬁéﬁn&/%)\ﬁ kiR
BH R EEIEDIE 35216 BB LR X G FT At &
aaﬂﬁﬂ’\]ﬁéﬁﬁ CARBIRESFRIZEME AR E KR
BT SS I TN RATR ¢

AR T M B AR E B ARG (TR 1) ~ 48
Al MMEFRNER AR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

the Company/
associated
Name of director Capacity/Nature of interest Number of shares corporations
ERRRTE
MEEEE R
EEHE B, EntEg RHHE BRED
Mr. Zhou Mingming 3 Interest in controlled corporations and 401,087,500 39.90%
(“Mr. Zhou”) interest in spouse
JEBRERSE A Re ([ BSR4 1) R EE RS R EER
Ms. Fang Jianjun® Interest in a controlled corporation and 401,087,500 39.90%
FEEZ W interest in spouse
B R R B
Mr. Zhou Longrui® Interest in a controlled corporation and 68,362,500 6.80%
EREm LA interest in spouse
R rEgn R Bk
Ms. Yang Yunfei® Interest in a controlled corporation and 68,362,500 6.80%
BERZLTO interest in spouse
RiEE RS R EER
Mr. Yang Xinxin® Interest in a controlled corporation 20,000,000 1.99%
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Notes:

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Great State
Investments Limited (“Great State”) and is therefore deemed to be interested in
the 242,145,000 Shares held by Great State.

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Jolly Pride (PTC)
Limited (“Jolly Pride”) and is therefore deemed to be interested in the
58,942,500 Shares held by Jolly Pride. In addition, pursuant to a trust deed
dated 14 June 2010 and deeds of exclusion of beneficiaries dated 30 May
2014 and 13 October 2014, entered into between Mr. Zhou and Jolly Pride in
favour of 49 individuals who are employees of the Group (collectively, the “Jolly
Pride Trust Deed”), the economic interest of all the Shares which it holds from
time to time shall belong to the said 49 employees. However, other than the
economic interest in the Shares, all other rights as shareholders (including but
not limited to voting rights and right to participate in shareholders meetings of
our Company) shall not be exercisable by the said 49 employees and shall be
exercised by Jolly Pride exclusively. As Mr. Zhou is the sole director of Jolly
Pride, Mr. Zhou also controls the exercise of the shareholders rights (other than
economic interest) of all the Shares held by Jolly Pride by virtue of the terms of
the Jolly Pride Trust Deed.

Mr. Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun. Pursuant to the SFO, he is also
deemed to be interested in 100,000,000 Shares which Ms. Fang Jianjun is
interested by reason of her being the sole shareholder of Bai Xiang Limited (“Bai
Xiang”).

Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested in the entire issued share capital of Bai Xiang and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the 100,000,000 Shares held by Bai Xiang.
In addition, as Ms. Fang Jianjun is the spouse of Mr. Zhou, pursuant to the SFO,
she is also deemed to be interested in the 242,145,000 Shares and 58,942,500
Shares which Mr. Zhou is interested by reason of his being the sole shareholder
of Great State and Jolly Pride.

Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested in the entire issued share capital of High Joy
Investments Limited (“High Joy”) and is therefore deemed to be interested in
the 32,137,500 Shares held by High Joy. In addition, as Mr. Zhou Longrui is
the spouse of Ms. Yang Yunfei, pursuant to the SFO, he is also deemed to
be interested in the 36,225,000 shares which Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested
by reason of her being the sole shareholder of Shiny Century Limited (“Shiny
Century”).

Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested in the entire issued share capital of Shiny Century
and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 36,225,000 Shares held by
Shiny Century. In addition, as Ms. Yang Yunfei is the spouse of Mr. Zhou
Longrui, pursuant to the SFO, she is also deemed to be interested in the
32,137,500 Shares which Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested by reason of him being
the sole shareholder of High Joy.

Mr. Yang Xinxin is interested in the entire issued share capital of Tong Sheng
Limited (“Tong Sheng”) and is therefore deemed to be interested in the
20,000,000 Shares held by Tong Sheng.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, so far as the Directors were aware, the following
persons have interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares
of the Company which were required to be disclosed to the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, directly or indirectly, interested in
10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group.

Interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Group:

The Company

FERRRAQFRMD REERD
PR RA R

RZZE—MFE+—A=+—H BESHA
AT ATHEREE S RIEEPIEXVEE2
K 37 BPRVESZR T I R R AR 2 R 2 AR
RN ERIORR - RERXFEEENE
BMRABEBER TRASBEERKE RRBIR
RE ERENEARFIRAEET10%3A LR
1

BX

o

R B AR P s SO R

Approximate
Percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of interest Number of shares Shareholding
£ B, ety BRHEE BEREMNES
Mr. Zhou"® Interest in controlled corporations and 401,087,500 (L) 39.90%

& S HEmee

Great State®@

&Fe

Jolly Pride®

BEo

Ms. Fang Jianjun®
FEER L

Bai Xiang“

Gl

Mr. Zhou Longrui®

[EREHR SO

High Joy®

SER

interest of spouse
ZEEE R R BER

Beneficial owner
E=EAA

Beneficial owner
EnEEA

Interest in controlled corporations and
interest of spouse
R EE R R B

Beneficial owner
E=EBA

Interest in a controlled corporation and
interest of spouse
R EE R RSB

Beneficial owner
BB A

242,145,000 (L) 24.09%
58,942,500 (L) 5.86%
401,087,500 (L) 39.90%
100,000,000 (L) 9.95%
68,362,500 (L) 6.80%
32,137,500 (L) 3.20%
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Approximate
Percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of interest Number of shares Shareholding
=18 B RERHE RHEE FREMAES
Ms. Yang Yunfei® Interest in a controlled corporation and 68,362,500 (L) 6.80%
BERZLO interest of spouse

HprEgm R Bk

Shiny Century® Beneficial owner 36,225,000 (L) 3.60%
4 EAe EmBAA

Credit Suisse Group AG" Interest in controlled corporations 130,901,971 (L) 13.02%

R EE 26,073,514 (S) 2.59%

UBS AG® Beneficial owner, person having a 88,883,298 (L) 8.84%

security interest in shares, and interest 19,652,225 (S) 1.95%

in controlled corporations
EniAA > RROFEEETER 2
AT REEAEER

UBS Group AG® Person having a security interest in 87,510,148 (L) 8.70%
shares and interest in controlled 18,833,225 (S) 1.82%
corporations

R R ER RS 2 AT R
R EE R
FIL Limited Investment Manager 50,331,000 (L) 5.01%
REKIE

():  Long position L: R

(S):  Short position S : %A

Notes: 3T

(1) Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Great State and is (1)  ALEERRANZ M ETRATEARE
therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Great State. & 0 B AR AR IR TS B R 2 EP AR F
B -

(2)  Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Jolly Pride and is (@ BEELERKENZHCHEITRA D EE#E

therefore deemed to be interested in the 58,942,500 Shares held by Jolly & B AR R0 8 & T B #958,942,500
Pride. In addition, pursuant to the Jolly Pride Trust Deed, the economic interest PRAR D PR o AN - IRIBEEEER
of all the Shares which it holds from time to time shall belong to the said 49 % - BETRRE FTE R BB T e B
employees. However, other than the economic interest in the Shares, all other R E40BEE « A - BRIRD BB 2
rights as shareholders (including but not limited to voting rights and right to Sh - (ERIRRAOPT A H st (R IE AN RR
participate in shareholders meetings of our Company) shall not be exercisable ARRBRRAGHNREERZEZ NG
by the said 49 employees and shall be exercised by Jolly Pride exclusively. As F) - YA 4095 (B BT - M{E R &
Mr. Zhou is the sole director of Jolly Pride, Mr. Zhou also controls the exercise KETRE - ARALERKENE—ESE
of the shareholders rights (other than economic interest) of all the Shares held BB EEFTRIE 2 65K - B % A TRl s
by Jolly Pride by virtue of the terms of the Jolly Pride Trust Deed. B2 ARG AR (B ERIN)

ROTTIEHE ©
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Mr. Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun. Pursuant to the SFO, he is also
deemed to be interested in all the Shares which Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested
by reason of her being the sole shareholder of Bai Xiang.

Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested in the entire issued share capital of Bai Xiang
and is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Bai Xiang. In
addition, as Ms. Fang Jianjun is the spouse of Mr. Zhou, pursuant to the SFO,
she is deemed to be interested in all the Shares which Mr. Zhou is interested by
reason of him being the sole shareholder of Great State and Jolly Pride.

Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested in the entire issued share capital of High Joy
and is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by High Joy. In
addition, as Mr. Zhou Longrui is the spouse of Ms. Yang Yunfei, pursuant to the
SFO, he is deemed to be interested in all the Shares which Ms. Yang Yunfei is
interested by reason of her being the sole shareholder of Shiny Century.

Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested in the entire issued share capital of Shiny Century
and is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Shiny Century.
In addition, as Ms. Yang Yunfei is the spouse of Mr. Zhou Longrui, pursuant to
the SFO, she is also deemed to be interested in all the Shares which Mr. Zhou
Longrui is interested by reason of him being the sole shareholder of High Joy.

To the best knowledge of the Company, Credit Suisse Group AG is interested
in an aggregate of 130,901,971 Shares through Credit Suisse AG, Credit
Suisse Holdings (USA), Inc., Credit Suisse (USA), Inc., Credit Suisse Securities
(USA) LLC, Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited, Credit Suisse Investments
(UK), Credit Suisse Investments Holdings (UK), and Credit Suisse Securities
(Europe) Limited. In addition, Credit Suisse Group AG has a short position of
26,073,514 Shares in aggregate by reason of the short position in such Shares
through Credit Suisse AG, Credit Suisse Holdings (USA), Inc., Credit Suisse
(USA), Inc., Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, Credit Suisse Investments (UK),
Credit Suisse Investments Holdings (UK), and Credit Suisse Securities (Europe)
Limited.

ARERTEFLLHNER - REZHRB
ERY - FERTEFELLRBHANE R
R B IR AR T EE L T AR
2EEHPEEES -

FRELINBFNE NS BITRATES
o Rt RE SR BEMBEN 2 RN
REEARER o WY AR TREXLRAL
EWERE - RIEEFNMBEED - REEL
ERRAREENME—BIR - EU IR S
RESEERBERENE RO P EAER -

A ENSEN DI BITRATES
R AR AR REMBFEN2 RN
AL o LS ARNERRELEREE
RELEWEE - RIBEES RS GG A
BERL L RLHAME R - BEEA
WEERL T ERRRNDIRMN P EEE

X o

B

BERL RIS EE BITRAS A
% - EU R AR R R
B o WA - MBI ERL T AR
oA B - RIS RS - G
PRI A BRI — R - B IHE
BB A R BB D A
i -

FLAAFIFTAN - Credit Suisse Group AGHH
i Credit Suisse AG * Credit Suisse Holdings
(USA), Inc. ~ Credit Suisse (USA), Inc. »
Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC ~ Credit
Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited * Credit Suisse
Investments (UK) * Credit Suisse Investments
Holdings (UK) F Credit Suisse Securities
(Europe) Limitedi & 130,901,971 A% A% 1%
A RERS o hY) - Credit Suisse Group
AGHE % B Credit Suisse AG * Credit Suisse
Holdings (USA), Inc. » Credit Suisse (USA),
Inc. » Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC
Credit Suisse Investments (UK) - Credit
Suisse Investments Holdings (UK)}&Credit
Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited i 5% S %17
PR KA TR G ££26,073,514 A7 R
KR -
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(8)  To the best knowledge of the Company, UBS AG (i) is beneficial owner
of 15,929,987 Shares; (ii) has security interest in 55,608,248 Shares; and
(iii) is interested in an aggregate of 17,345,063 Shares through UBS Fund
Management (Switzerland) AG, UBS Global Asset Management (Japan) Ltd.
and UBS Securities LCC, all of which are entities controlled by it. In addition,
UBS AG (i) has a short position in 11,827,000 Shares as beneficial owner; and (i)
has a short position of 7,825,025 Shares by reason of the short position in such
Shares of UBS Securities LLC.

(99  To the best knowledge of the Company, UBS Group AG (i) has security interest
in 55,609,098 Shares; and (i) is interested in an aggregate of 31,901,050
Shares through UBS AG, UBS Fund Management (Switzerland) AG, UBS
Global Asset Management (Japan) Ltd. and UBS Securities LCC, all of which
are entities controlled by it. In addition, UBS Group AG has a short position of
18,333,225 Shares by reason of the short position in such Shares of UBS AG
and UBS Securities LLC.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year under review was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable a Director of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior management are set
out on pages 34 to 38.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The Company adopted a share options scheme on 7 June 2010. For the
year ended 31 December 2014, no option has been granted pursuant to the
share options scheme.
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8 HEARXFHA - UBS AG () & 15,929,987
B DBERES A ¢ (i) 55,608,248 i%
f& (R A AR - K (iii) B BUBS Fund
Management (Switzerland) AG + UBS Global
Asset Management (Japan) Ltd. & UBS
Securities LCC(¥ AR ELHIM TR )N A
17,345,063&&@%;&%%5& o th4h - UBS

G (\AE=HEA AFH11,827,000/% A& 17
Mﬁ*ﬁ‘ %72 + K(i)EUBS Securities LLCI?
7,825,025[% B 15 R B K A TR & IR (5 R
WHERA °

9) AR RIFTAN © UBS Group AG ()7255,609,098
BRI S  R(il)iB BUBS AG »
UBS Fund Management (Switzerland) AG + UBS
Global Asset Management (Japan) Ltd. 2UBS
Securities LCC(¥ AR EEHINERE)RNE H
31,901,050 A% & (7 #E B 4% o LEHM - UBS
Group AGAUBS AGXUBS Securities LLCF
18,333,225 X 15 R A K B MR % Z AR
HEEKE -

B Bt % fR 3 R Bk

B EXFBEESN  ARFREAEAMBEAT
o AR A R ) 22 I 2 R (o1 BB FE PO
HRESESREARY  BEAAREETE
BN T S B B 2 AR A K 35 R R

5o
BEENSAEEENEBR
BEENEAEEEBNBREHRN BZE %38
Eo
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ARARZE—ZTFRNA B EMERES
g ARARHE-_TZ—NF+_A=1+—HIt
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHARE HOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions” below
and “Related party transactions” in note 49 to the consolidated financial
statements, no Director or controlling shareholder or any of their respective
subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group, to which the Company, or
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a part,
during the year of 2014.

During the year of 2014, no contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
was made.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director of the Company proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2014, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of its securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the Code throughout
the year under review except for the deviations to the code provision A.2.1.
For details, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on page 39 of
this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee. For details, please refer
to the paragraph headed “Audit Committee” of the Corporate Governance
Report set out on page 44 of this annual report.

EERERBRRNREQOMER

BRI X FEER S | — B RERE M HmAM T
AR TR IMBEEEN  MEEEX
ERRBR AT R B M E A RRARRHE
EEER AR - MEBARXRRMBRRR =
F-FERNFT LT HAREXBMEBERN
EREHNPEERIREREEEA RS -

RZZE—MFER - ERERSREMEHE AR
YERAAREREREMATLEFNERAE
#) e

EERBEH
BN RERRBFASEENAARESMHE
BN RIS E MY B A RIZR AT (E ) 7] (g
ERATR—FARNFECEEMERI) T LA
RIENRTEA K] ©
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers during the financial year ended 31
December 2014 is as follows:

1.90%/8.41%
5.64%/34.32%

The largest customer/supplier
Five largest customers/suppliers in aggregate

At no time during the year under review had the Directors, their associates
or any shareholder of the Company which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any interest in these
major customers and suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 49 to the consolidated
financial statements also constituted connected transactions under the
Listing Rules, and are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The following transactions between certain
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company have
been entered into and/or are ongoing for which relevant disclosure had been
made by the Company in the prospectus of the Company dated 24 June
2010.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions entered into by members of the Group
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company subject to
announcements and reporting requirements but exempt from shareholders’
approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules by reason of any of the
applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) being less than 5%
on an annual basis and the annual cap amount exceeding HK$3,000,000:
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IRFEFRHER
EIBEFRHEEERBE-—2Z—NF+ A
=+ BB R AL A R R
BOERMT :

BREP/HER
hREP,/HERERT

1.90%,8.41%
5.64%,/34.32%

BEARARESR  WENBEALHRESMH
G BB N AR ANE% PA L B (R AT AR ER 7%
CEFEANEFABRERNZETIETEP LIER
A E ks

BHERXS

= TR XS RIE LR B ISR R R E
X5 #HERBERGEPBmRMEON
AR ERAIFE14AERR - ETHEAL
(EER LMRAUERABRA L MRS
B/ RETEEATEARRRI LN TR S
EREET  BEPARRERARRAHA
F-THEXNA-THANBERERAELERE
W

BFEBRERS
THAREERK B R RI#EITR S AR FR Y
BEEEAE D E(FIBLLEFIIN) 5D HE5% K&
FEE R AF3,000,000/8 7T + DA AA T
WIFERRER S - AET ETRAE14AZER
NENARBTEENEERA R -

Description of transaction Parties RGER REEH
1. Purchase of electrode plates Chaowei Power Co., Ltd (“Chaowei Power”) 1. BEEBIR BREREARAR (B
(BEIR) and Pufa Power Co., Ltd. (“Pufa Power”) BER]) REEER
BRAR(ERER])
2. Supply of lead-acid batteries Chaowei Power and Henan Yifeng Industry 2. e SRR T, BEER T ElZE
Group Co., Ltd (“Henan Yifeng E-bikes”) EXEBAERAT
(MAflzEEEHE |)
3. Purchase of plastic battery cases Chaowei Power and Changxing Xiante 3 BEEMBR BRERIRELE
(BIEZR) Plastics Co., Ltd (“Changxing Xiante”) BEARRT
(IRE%RE])
4. Purchase of lead-acid batteries Chaowei Power and Zhejiang Yongda 4 MEEIEREMN R EIR KTk iE
Industry Group Co., Ltd (“Zhejiang EXEEARRQA
Yongda’) (Note) (TmTaxaE]) (h7a)
5. Purchase of processing services Chaowei Power and Zhejiang Yongda 5. BENIRE R EIR KT oKE
(Note) (Het)

Note: Zhejiang Yongda ceased to be a connected person of the Company from 18
November 2013.

Bet - B—F—ZF+—AFNBE  MTKET

B AL EIRIFEAT -
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Purchase of electrode plates

Chaowei Power and Pufa Power entered into an agreement (the “New
Electrode Plates Purchase Agreement”) dated 11 December 2012, by which
Pufa Power has agreed to supply electrode plates to Chaowei Power for a
term of three years from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015, renewable
upon expiry (subject to compliance with the provisions under the Listing
Rules regarding continuing connected transactions). Pufa Power is 100%
owned by independent third parties. However, pursuant to a contracting
agreement (“Pufa Power Contracting Agreement”) dated 18 February 2008
and entered into between Pufa Power on the one part and Ms. Ding Wei,
Ms. Zhang Lingyun, Mr. Wang Yijun, Mr. Dou Changhai and Mr. Wang
Yuxiang (collectively the “Contractors”) on the other part, the Contractors
have taken up the operations of Pufa Power in exchange for an annual
payment. Pursuant to a written confirmation dated 18 February 2008 signed
by the Contractors, Ms. Ding Wei and Ms. Zhang Lingyun, both sisters-
in-law of Mr. Zhou Mingming, the chairman and an executive Director of
the Company, together are required to contribute 30% of the annual fees
payable to the shareholders of Pufa Power, and will be entitled to share 30%
of the profits (if any) generated from the operations of Pufa Power under the
Pufa Power Contracting Agreement. Under the Listing Rules, Ms. Ding Wei
and Ms. Zhang Lingyun are connected persons of the Company. Whilst Ms.
Ding Wei and Ms. Zhang Lingyun are not shareholders of Pufa Power, in
view of the arrangement under the Pufa Power Contracting Agreement, the
Directors considered that, for prudence sake and enhancement of corporate
governance, Pufa Power shall be regarded as an associate of Ms. Ding Wei
and Ms. Zhang Lingyun, and accordingly shall be regarded as a connected
person of the Company. Pursuant to the New Electrode Plates Purchase
Agreement, Pufa Power agreed to supply electrode plates to Chaowei
Power at a price determined by reference to the lowest average price of lead
quoted on the Shanghai Metals Market (www.smm.cn) and a processing fee
of RMB4,400 per tonne which covers the other costs of Pufa Power, such as
the cost of other raw materials required for the production of electrode plates
(e.g. active additives), labour, water and electricity and other miscellaneous
overhead, machinery depreciation, plus a reasonable profit margin of Pufa
Power. The said processing fee of RMB4,400 per tonne is calculated by
reference to the prevailing market price of the above components thus will
be subject to adjustment (which shall not, in any event, be higher than the
processing fee charged by other suppliers of electrode plates of our Group
who are independent third parties). The price of electrode plates provided by
Pufa Power is comparable to that provided by independent third parties. In
view of the above, the Directors consider that it is fair and reasonable and on
normal commercial terms to purchase electrode plates from Pufa Power at
such price, and such transactions are in the interest of the Company and the
shareholders as a whole. For the three years ending 31 December 2015, the
proposed annual cap amounts for the transactions under the New Electrode
Plates Purchase Agreement are set at RMB150 million, RMB150 million and
RMB150 million, respectively.

15 B EER
HERERELTEERIUN-EAHA-E
——F+Z A+ —BniHHR(FEEREE B
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Further details of the said transaction was set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 11 December 2012.

During the year, purchase of electrode plates from Pufa Power amounted to
RMB137,678,000, which is within the 2014 annual cap of RMB150,000,000.

Supply of lead-acid batteries

Chaowei Power and Henan Yifeng E-bikes, a connected person of the
Company by virtue of Rule 14A.07 (4) of the Listing Rules, entered into an
agreement (the “New Batteries Sales Agreement”) dated 11 December
2012, by which Chaowei Power has agreed to supply lead-acid batteries
to Henan Yifeng E-bikes for a term of three years from 1 January 2013 to
31 December 2015, renewable upon expiry (subject to compliance with
the provisions under the Listing Rules regarding continuing connected
transactions). Mr. Chai Chenglei holds 40% equity interest in one of the PRC
non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. Under the Listing Rules, Ms.
Chai Qingaing, Ms. Chai Shuiging and Mr. Chai Zhanan, siblings of Mr. Chai
Chenglei, are connected persons of the Company. As Ms. Chai Qingqging,
Ms Chai Shuiging and Mr. Chai Zhanan hold 100% equity interest in Henan
Yifeng E-bikes in aggregate, Henan Yifeng E-bikes is an associate of Mr.
Chai Chenglei and accordingly a connected person of the Company.

Pursuant to the New Batteries Sales Agreement, Chaowei Power agreed to
supply lead-acid batteries to Henan Yifeng E-bikes at market price which
shall not, in any event, be lower than the price of lead-acid batteries sold
by the Group to other independent third parties. In view of the above, the
Directors consider that it is fair and reasonable and on normal commercial
terms to sell lead-acid batteries to Henan Yifeng E-bikes at such price, and
such transactions are in the interest of the Company and the shareholders
as a whole. For the three years ending 31 December 2015, the proposed
annual cap amounts for the transactions under the New Batteries Sales
Agreement are set at RMB28 million, RMB36 million and RMB47 million,
respectively.

Further details of the said transaction was set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 11 December 2012.

During the year, there were no sales of lead-acid batteries to Henan Yifeng
E-bikes, which is within the 2014 annual cap of RMB36,000,000.
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Purchase of plastic battery cases

Chaowei Power and Changxing Xiante entered into an agreement (the “New
Plastic Cases Purchase Agreement”) dated 11 December 2012, by which
Changxing Xiante has agreed to supply plastic battery cases to Chaowei
Power for a term of three years from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015,
renewable upon expiry (subject to compliance with the provisions under
the Listing Rules regarding continuing connected transactions). Changxing
Xiante is 52% owned by Ms. Ding Wei and Ms. Zhang Lingyun, who are both
sisters-in-law of Mr. Zhou Mingming, the chairman and the executive Director
of the Company. Under the Listing Rules, Ms. Ding Wei and Ms. Zhang
Lingyun are connected persons of the Company and Changxing Xiante is an
associate of Ms. Ding and Ms. Zhang, and accordingly a connected person
of the Company. Pursuant to the New Plastic Cases Purchase Agreement,
Changxing Xiante will supply plastic battery cases to Chaowei Power at
market price which shall not, in any event, be higher than the price of plastic
battery cases sourced by our Group from independent third party suppliers.
In view of the above, the Directors consider that it is fair and reasonable
and on normal commercial terms to purchase battery plastics cases from
Changxing Xiante at such price, and such transactions are in the interest of
the Company and the shareholders as a whole. For the three years ending
31 December 2015, the proposed annual cap amounts for the transactions
under the New Plastic Cases Purchase Agreement are set at RMB33 million,
RMB43 million and RMB56 million, respectively.

Further details of the said transaction was set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 11 December 2012.

During the year, purchase of plastic battery cases from Changxing Xiante
amounted to RMB18,454,000, which is within the 2014 annual cap of
RMB43,000,000.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions of the Group and have confirmed that

these transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.
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The auditors of the Company have reported to the Directors that during the
year under review:

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been approved
by the board of Directors;

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that
the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions;
and

@iy  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value
disclosed in the previous announcement dated 11 December 2012
made by the Company in respect of each of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions.

Compliance with the Deed of Non-competition

Each of Mr. Zhou Mingming, Great State and Jolly Pride (collectively
the “Controlling Shareholders”) has confirmed that for the year ended
31 December 2014, each of them has complied with the deed of non-
competition (“Deed of Non-competition”) dated 7 June 2010 executed by the
Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company. There has not been any
opportunity in any restricted business (being business which is or may be in
competition with the business of any member of the Group from time to time)
being referred by the Controlling Shareholders to the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the compliance of the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2014 and considered the
Controlling Shareholders have complied with the Deed of Non-competition
during the year under review.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group is set out on page 184 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in any business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and/or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, during the year under
review and as at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants
who will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Zhou Mingming
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
31 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte.
/dn
=
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHAOWEI POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of
Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 69 to 183,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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VR Gl

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of its profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEBRRRRAMEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—ZFT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—=E—mF —E—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
{hEsd AR¥TT ARET T
Revenue WA 5 18,187,060 14,973,221
Cost of sales SHERKA (16,140,205) (12,946,514)
Gross profit E7 2,046,855 2,026,707
Other income E AUz A 6 121,640 87,748
Distribution and selling expenses DR EERY (928,808) (565,982)
Administrative expenses THFX (504,240) (436,947)
Research and development expenses RSS2 (417,059) (897,970)
Other expenses and other losses Hipax M EAERE 7 (30,325) (32,699)
Finance costs BE AR 8 (209,570) (152,946)
Share of result of associates Yl /NCTE 3 (5,138) (26,195)
Profit before tax MR ER BT R 9 73,355 501,716
Income tax expense FriSfif sz 12 (35,067) (113,179)
Profit for the year FRFHE 38,288 388,537
Other comprehensive income Hip2mEUWKA
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently  H1i&sk @ &35 A8
to profit or loss: KIER :
Exchange differences on translation of BEGINERS TSR A
financial statements of foreign operations ERER 127 -
Profit and total comprehensive FRFERZEB AL
income for the year 38,415 388,537
(Loss) profit attributable to: AT AT FEAE (B51R) R T
Owners of the Company RARER A (28,955) 310,238
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R A 67,243 78,299
38,288 388,537
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive LA AL RS (B518) FE &
(expenses) income attributable to: 2 (X ) WA
Owners of the Company ViN/NETET =N (28,828) 310,238
Non-controlling interests JEPEARFE RS 67,243 78,299
38,415 388,537
(Losses) earnings per share R (EE)&F 13
- Basic (RMB) — ER(ARET) (0.03) 0.31
— Diluted (RMB) —WE(ARET) (0.03) 0.31
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEMBARILE

At 31 December 2014 HZE -ZT—PUF+_HA=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
PiEE ARETT ARBT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 15 3,447,309 2,947,130
Prepaid lease payments TEHEEFRIE 16 252,375 204,452
Investment properties "B 17 26,160 6,916
Deferred tax assets EEFTHE E 18 211,054 182,365
Deposits paid for acquisition of WEEME - BB R
property, plant and equipment BENIZ S 72,979 122,450
Goodwill [EES 19 49,447 49,447
Intangible assets mEE 20 22,570 -
Interests in associates REEE N R 7 FEEs 22 55,338 12,185
Loan receivables TEWE R 23 5,000 74,000
4,142,232 3,598,945
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories VER= 24 1,722,667 1,461,626
Trade receivables FEUE SRR 25 623,915 464,939
Bills receivable &S 26 775,809 762,022
Prepayments and other receivables TE AN RIE M A USRI 28 558,901 411,996
Amounts due from related parties FEUR BE RS 5 BE 49(c) 91,954 14,637
Prepaid lease payments FERAERE 16 5,490 4,425
Loan receivables FEUWE TR 23 225,000 112,000
Held-for-trading investments BHIEEERE 29 8,514 3,182
Restricted bank deposits ZRRESRITIER 30 275,054 70,087
Bank balances and cash IRITEBR RIS 30 1,016,555 1,120,630
5,303,859 4,425,544
CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBAE
Trade payables B SRR 31 960,620 760,058
Bills payable T EE 32 375,105 91,170
Other payables Hpth pEAF 5018 33 848,260 879,152
Amounts due to related parties e RAEE T =E 49(c) 6,230 6,466
Income tax payable e ETIS RS 36,917 36,798
Provision B 35 441,528 361,245
Bank borrowings RITEE 36 1,926,170 1,300,644
Short term financing note SRk 37 200,000 400,000
Convertible bonds AR E A 39 593,305 -
5,388,135 3,835,533
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS %8 (&&) &&ESE (84,276) 590,011
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERABARG
LIABILITIES 4,057,956 4,188,956
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEMBARE

At 31 December 2014 HZE -ZT—UF+_HA=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR®TT AREET T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARK#E
Share capital R A 40 68,140 68,140
Reserves & 41 2,138,130 2,260,034
Equity attributable to owners of RARHER ANEIERER
the Company 2,206,270 2,328,174
Non-controlling interests IEFE IR i o 575,056 519,239
TOTAL EQUITY HERER 2,781,326 2,847,413
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred income RIEWA 34 153,559 121,149
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBEAE 18 11,584 16,665
Bank borrowings RITIEE 36 518,800 625,950
Corporate bonds TEES 38 592,687 -
Convertible bonds AR ES 39 - 577,779
1,276,630 1,341,543
4,057,956 4,188,956

The consolidated financial statements on pages 69 to 183 were approved  F69E Z F£183EFIEMGAMBHREREN
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2015 and are ZT—RF=A=+—HEESeHE LISET)
signed on its behalf by: WA TNIEERREE -

Zhou Mingming Zhou Longrui
JEFRER JAREH
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BEFE BEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ReEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-A=+—HIFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FRAREAELER
Equity
Convertible attributable
Statutory bonds Exchange to non-
Share Share surplus equity Other  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserves reserve  earnings Total  interests equity
EE  TRRES EXRH FRRER
e BROEE  BRRE  RERE  HERE fie  REEA B EfEE  SiEs
RMB'00  RMBOOO ~ RMB'0C0  RMB'OO0 ~ RMB'000  RMB'OO ~ RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At1 January 2013 RZ5-=%-A-A 68,140 149,872 192,966 50,643 319077 - 131730 2,167,048 459140 2,626,188
Profit and total comprehensive ERFIERZENALE
income for the year - - - - - - 310,238 310,238 78,299 388,587
Capital contrbution from SFARERATE
non-controling interests - - - - - - - - 6,800 6,800
Dividend paid to owners of the ERAAREEARS
Company (Note 14) (F3t14) - (148783 - - - - - (148783) - (148783
Dividend paid tonon-controling B 3ERER RS
interests - - - - - - - - (25,000 (25,000
Derecognition of a subsidiary R FHB A
(Note 48) (Hizk48) - - - - (329) - - (329 = (329)
Transfer to reserves N - - 51,264 = = = (51,264) = = =
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=£+ZR=+- 68140 1089 244230 50643 318748 - 1636324 238174 519239 2847418
(Loss) proftt and total comprehensive () FIBRAE
(expenses) income for the year (Tl hAEE - - - = = 127 (2895  (2882) 67,243 3415
Dividend paid to owners of the ERARAERARS
Company (Note 14) (PrzE14) = - - - - - (93492 (93492 - (93492
Dividend paid to non-controling BffERERRS
interests = = = = = = = = (1,761) (1,761)
Acquiston of additional interest ~ WE-FKBAT
in a subsiciary (Note) BER - - - - 416 - - 416 (9,665 (9249
Transfer to reserves BARE - - 30,028 - = - (30,028) S = =
At 31 December 2014 RZF-ME+-A=1-A 68,140 1,089 274,258 50,643 319,164 127 1483849 2206210 575006 2,781,326

Note: On 18 September 2014, Chaowei Power Co., Ltd. (“Chaowei Power”) acquired — H1z% -
14.12% equity interest in a subsidiary of the Group, Z #1881 FIH G R
2y a] (Anhui Yongheng Power Technology Co., Ltd.) (“Anhui Yongheng”) at a
consideration of RMB9,248,600. After the transaction, Chaowei Power hold

65.12% equity interest in Anhui Yongheng.

R=F—mWFEAA+NA  BREEFERA
A ([#B 13 EIR ) Y g 7 BN 2 Al LK
1BE) BB R A 7] ([ Z#K1E))6714.12%
BR1E - BB RM9,.248,6007T ° X 51 -
BB B R B L RIKIBRI65.12%8 1 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTMEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—ZFT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—=E—mF —ET-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
{hEsd AR¥F T ARETTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEES
Profit before tax MR 5 R A RS 73,355 501,716
Adjustments for: FEE -
Interest income on bank deposits RITHEREF EA 6 (14,472) (14,085)
Interest income on entrusted loans ZREEREH WA 6 (19,484) (12,514)
Finance costs FE AR 8 209,570 162,946
Depreciation of property, ME - BEREEITE
plant and equipment 15 254,455 204,945
Depreciation of investment property WEMENE 17 1,324 747
Amortization of intangible assets A E Y 20 1,188 -
Share of result of associates i NCIE 5,138 26,195
Prepaid lease payments released to STABRMTENEERE
profit or loss 16 4,312 4157
Loss on disposal of property, LEME - BEK
plant and equipment SiEEE 7 4,266 11,503
Loss from changes in fair value DERFEER
of financial assets classified as EHEEATE
held for trading EEEE 7 1,514 207
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RIBARIMER 7 - 1,218
Release of government grants from BRI AR BR Y
deferred income BT Eh 6 (6,430) (2,860)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts FEUE 2 BRFEY
on trade receivables RIZAR A 7 9,688 11,277
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts H b fE U TR IE Y
on other receivables RIBARE S 7 7,313 2,390
Allowance for inventories FERE 9 1,635 -
Provision for warranty RS B 35 583,979 483,599
Operating cash flows before movements in -~ &:& &4 FRIHL =
working capital Rens 1,117,351 1,371,441
Increase in inventories FEEm (262,676) (68,751)
(Increase)/decrease in receivables, deposits — FEUEIE - #&$ RIENR 508
and prepayments (Em),/md (268,859) 54,242
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from JE U Ba s 5 ROE
related parties (m),Fd (76,263) 6,590
Increase/(decrease) in payables, deposits FERFIE - BEdURE K
received and accrued charges TEfRRE AN, CRd) 447,521 (83,366)
Utilisation of provision for warranty ERRFRE 85) (503,696) (368,710)

Decrease in amounts due to related parties

FEAS BB 07 RRIBR

(236) (23,450)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERENER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E-ImF —ET-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P &E AR%T R ARBFIT
Cash generated from operations HEMMEIRS 453,142 887,996
Income tax paid BEFAER (130,886) (151,897)
Net cash from operating activities KEEREATBIR G FE 322,256 736,099
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BBE%3 « = MRE (594,672) (736,176)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WEEME - W= MRE
plant and equipment Fiftie s (72,979) (122,450)
Acquisition of assets through acquisition BRBE KB AT
of a subsidiary IR & E 47 (20,359) -
Addition to prepaid lease payments TR E R IEIE N 16 (53,300) (15,713)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWE - BELRE
plant and equipment Fr{S k1A 821 5,158
Payment of cost on liquidation of a BHE-RWELQFR
subsidiary [DZNEEA 48 = (491)
Acquisition of intangible assets WEETEE (23,758) -
Acquisition of interest in an associate WiiE — KB AR R (31,502) -
Loan advanced to an associate m—REE QR BANER (16,789) -
Government grants received BB HEED 34 38,840 55,880
Interest received B U F B 30,547 26,599
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits RIS R $IER1TE K 622,412 539,939
Placement of restricted bank deposits TR HIRITER (827,379) (408,737)
Proceeds from settlement of HEEMEMSEES
money market funds FTi85E = 20,000
Purchase of held-for-trading investments BEREEERE (6,846) (3,389)
Advance of entrusted loans HEERBT 23 (250,100) (126,000)
Collection of entrusted loans BKETER 23 206,100 -
Advance to related parties [E1 B 7 B3R (1,054) (4,364)

Net cash used in investing activities BB ESTARGFE (1,000,018) (769,744)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERENER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—ZFT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E-ImF —ET-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
{hEsd AR¥F T ARBFIT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEE
New bank borrowings raised HMEERRITEE 2,487,281 2,156,944
Repayment of bank borrowings EBRITHEE (1,968,905) (1,978,485)
Short term financing note raised EERECHRERE 37 200,000 400,000
Repayments of financing note EERERE 37 (400,000) -
Proceeds from issue of corporate bonds BT EBEHFMERIE 38 600,000 -
Payment of transaction costs attributable to {317 EBEFRNL H
issue of corporate bonds BXA (7,800) -
Dividends paid EATALE (93,492) (148,783
Interest paid BAFE (232,514) (162,603)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest B FEEARE =R S (1,761) (25,000)
Acquisition of additional interest in a WHE—RME AR
subsidiary REIMERS (9,249) -
Capital contribution from FEERER T E
non-controlling interests - 6,800
Net cash from financing activities BEEEFEIRS FE 573,560 248,873
Net (decrease) increase in cash and RERFTEED
cash equivalents CRi )1 ins 58 (104,202) 215,228
Cash and cash equivalents at FHReRREEEY
beginning of the year 1,120,630 905,402
Effects of exchange rate changes EREH & 127 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FIEE RREEEY -
the year, represented by bank RTTEBRIRE R TR

balances and cash 1,016,555 1,120,630
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRAME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 18 January 2010 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and its shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect
from 7 July 2010. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the section headed
“Corporate Information” to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
operate (the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries).
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 21.

The Group had net current liabilities of RMB84,276,000 as at 31
December 2014, and its net cash inflow from operating activities and
financing activities amounted to approximately RMB322 million and
RMB574 million, respectively, and its net cash outflow from investing
activities was approximately RMB1,000 million for the year then ended.
The Group recorded a decrease in cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB104 million for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to
maintain adequate cash inflows from operations to meet its debt
obligations as they fall due, and its ability to obtain adequate external
financing to meet its working capital needs and committed future
capital expenditure. With regard to its future capital commitments and
other financing requirements, the Group had unutilised banking facilities
of RMB649 million as at 31 December 2014.

After taking into account the above and based on the cash flow
projection of the Group for the twelve months following 31 December
2014, the directors of the Company are of the view that the Group is
able to meet its debt obligations as they fall due in the normal course
of business and to continue as a going concern.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—ZFT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL 2. HAHIIREEBITERBTERSE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) R (BB iR &5 2Rl )
2.1 Amendments to IFRSs and the new Interpretation that are 21 AEEEEERNEBRGIERE
mandatorily effective for the current year ZAMEET AR R 28
The Group has applied for the first time in the current year the REBRANFE BN A TE
following amendments to IFRSs and a new Interpretation: BB REEBIT AR 2
e
Amendments to IFRS 10,  Investment Entities EEUBREEAE0Y . KEERE
IFRS 12 and IAS 27 BUIRBS TR A BRI 1 0%
REReHENE27H
CHEY
Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and B 2RI 3%, HrBEERS
Financial Liabilities (BFTE) BRE
Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Bl &R RIE30% T TANEE R
Continuation of Hedge (BF1A) HRBMEE
Accounting
IFRIC 21 Levies BRuBRERBRES - HF
RER215
The application of the new and revised IFRSs in the current year REFERBZET T MEEB
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance HIEE: S e [Fapie- A=k
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the AR BEEENBERIR LR
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements. %Xz SR A M SRR ATE A

BREVEEATE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-A=+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 9
IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 11

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 19
Amendments to IAS 27
Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 41

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRSs

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations*

Disclosure Initiative*

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation?

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements#

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Investment Entities: Applying the

Consolidation Exception*

Agriculture: Bearer Plants*

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycles

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle?
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—ZFT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,
with earlier application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with earlier application permitted.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of IFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include
a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b) limited
amendments to the classification and measurement requirements
by introducing a ‘fair value through other comprehensive
income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL 2. HAHIIREEBITERBTERSE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) ER ([ BEREEREELD ) (E)
(CONTINUED)
2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective 22 CEMEEKRERNHTREE

(continued) AT B PR B A i 5 2E Al (4])

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
IAS 39 Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under IFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

° With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable
to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under IAS 39,
the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL 2. HAHIIREEBITERBTERSE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) ER ([ BEREEREELD ) (E)
(CONTINUED)
2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective 22 CEMEEKRERNHTREE

(continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

o The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness
test has been overhauled and replaced with the principle
of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management
activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company are of the view that the expected
credit loss model may result in early and additional provision of
credit losses which are not yet incurred.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In July 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

2.2

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
IFRS 15.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL 2. HAHIIREEBITERBTERSE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
IFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 15 until the Group
performs a detailed review.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of IAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or
value in use in IAS 36.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains control until the date when
the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiary is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on combination.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of SREAENS  BESEEEHER
the relevant cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) W B 1 Rk T B R S ARRA IR B

that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently whenever there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—ZFT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in
which case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. The financial
statement of associates used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—Z—NFE+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognized
separately from goodwill and are initially recognized at their fair value at
the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses/
revalued amounts, being their fair value at the date of the revaluation
less subsequent accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment loss, on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

The licensed technology and trademark are amortised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Deposits received from customers prior to meeting the above criteria
for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statements of
financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—ZFT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes other than construction in progress are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation
is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment properties
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 3. FESBOR(E)
Investment properties (continued) REYE(E)
An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the KREMENEE - kAEALFEHREE

investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
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recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a RAHSFAZ 2D -
straight-line basis.
Leasehold land and building HE L+ REF

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payment can be made
reliably, whilst the building element is classified as property, plant and
equipment or investment property, as appropriate, interest in leasehold
land is accounted for as an operating lease and presented as “prepaid
lease payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position and
is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented
in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (its functional currency, i.e. RMB).

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss for the period
in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Government grants (continued)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants related to depreciable assets are recognised as
deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial position
and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over
the useful lives of the related assets. Other government grants are
recognised as revenue over the periods necessary to match them with
the costs for which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic
basis. Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits schemes,
including state-managed retirement benefits schemes in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme, are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expenses that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—ZFT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax
is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and the deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. When
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
the business combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

U how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, directs labour
costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Provisions

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under the
relevant sale of goods legislation are recognised at the date of sale of
the relevant products, at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the Group’s obligation.

Financial instruments

3.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the MEEEEE AT A LGS TN
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity B amEERSBABREAMEY
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. SRERER o

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transactions costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments, of which interest income is included in other income, other
than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest
income is included in net gain or losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is
either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets and is included in the other expenses
and other losses line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in Note 43(e).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 3. TESTBER(E)
Financial instruments (continued) ERMIE(E)
Financial assets (continued) THEE(B)

Loan and receivables B RIERKHE

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, bills receivable, other receivables, loan receivable, amounts
due from related parties, restricted bank deposits and bank balances)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on loans and receivables below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counter party; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables and
other receivables, that are assessed not to be impaired individually are,
in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period of
15 days, observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables and other receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable and other receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in
which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 3. FESBOR(E)
Financial instruments (continued) ERMIE(E)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments 2HEERERTA

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade payables, bills
payable, other payables, amounts due to related parties, short term
financing note and convertible bonds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both the liability
and conversion option components are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a
fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is classified as
an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceeds of
the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion option for the holder
to convert the convertible bonds into equity, is included in equity
(convertible bonds equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The equity component, representing the option to convert the
liability component into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain
in convertible bonds equity reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible bonds equity
reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible bonds
equity reserve will be released to the retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the convertible
bonds using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 3. FESBOR(E)

Financial instruments (continued) SWMIA(E)

Derecognition AR ULTER

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual AREBEeNEEERTIRSRANEY

rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the R E M SR EENZEER

financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership BREMNBARIDER RO REEE S —

of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains ERE HERIEERSREE - MK

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues E B AREBR INERE T A B A

to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise DR GBI - WS B eEENE

the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises EUREAREEEELX2HAEEEN

an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks EREEEE  REBBEEERESR

and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group E o WAEBNRBEEHZESREEN

continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a FTaREA A REB D R M B3R - AEE

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. HAEEERZERERE + WK ATIER
BFTIS SRR —THEIEMES -

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference RITERRIBESRHEER  EERBEE

between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration HE W REWRRERTZ SRBIARRE

received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been fEEBR AR REABZEZHERN

recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or B fER -

loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the REFENNEEN B EERE - BUS

Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference S E|HRR - AR IEFER S REME o 1R 1E

between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and HRNEE EREAERE N REMNK

the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss. BREFEMNMERER -

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4. A TERERZNEZERR

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4.

(CONTINUED)
Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying
amount of goodwill is RMB49,447,000 (2013: RMB49,447,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in Note 19.

Estimated impairment of receivables

Trade receivables, other receivables and loan receivable are measured
at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit
and loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

In making the estimates, management considered detailed procedures
have been in place to monitor this risk. In estimating whether
allowance for bad and doubtful debts is required, the Group takes into
consideration the aging status and the likelihood of collection. When
there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes into
consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate carrying amount
of trade, other receivables and loan receivables (net of allowance
for doubtful debts), was approximately RMB1,199,033,000 (2013:
RMB873,8883,000). Details of movements of allowance for trade
receivables and other receivables are disclosed in Notes 25 and 28
respectively.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4. f#stTHERZNETERRF(E)

(CONTINUED)
Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2014, deferred tax assets of RMB211,054,000
(2013: RMB182,365,000) in relation to allowances for doubtful debts
and inventories, deferred income, accrual and provision, tax losses and
other temporary differences have been recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the unused tax losses of RMB279,087,000
(2013: RMB35,727,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisation of the deferred tax assets mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are more or less than expected, a material adjustment of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which such an adjustment takes place. Details of
deferred taxation are disclosed in Note 18.

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the residual value, useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment,
as disclosed in Note 15. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual residual value and useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and keen competitions
from competitors. Management will increase the depreciation charge
where residual value or useful lives are less than previously estimated,
or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete assets.

Useful lives of intangible assets

The licensed technology and trademark are amortised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The Group’s management
determines the useful lives of these intangible assets to be 10 years.
The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31 December 2014
was RMB22,570,000 (2013: nil). The Group assesses annually the
useful lives of these intangible assets and if the expectation differs from
the original estimate due to changes in the expected level of usage
and/or technological developments, such difference will impact the
amortisation charge in the year in which such estimate is changed.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4.

(CONTINUED)
Warranty

The Group provides a warranty up to fifteen months on all lead-acid
motive battery products. Under the terms of warranty, the Group
undertakes to repair or replace the battery free of charge in the event
of any malfunctioning within the warranty period.

Estimated costs related to product warranty are accrued at the time
of sale and are based upon past warranty claims and unit sales history
and adjusted as required to reflect actual costs incurred, as information
becomes available. As at 31 December 2014, the Group recognised
provision for warranty amounted to RMB441,528,000 (2013:
RMB361,245,000) and details are disclosed in Note 35.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognized for the amount by which the recoverable amount of
property, plant and equipment being lower than its carrying amount.
As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is RMB3,447,309,000 (2013: RMB2,947,130,000).

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets are allocated to respective cash-generating unit for
the purpose of impairment testing whenever there is indication that
the intangible assets may be impaired. The recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit has been determined based on value in use
calculation. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. Details of the calculation of the recoverable
amount are set out in Note 20. No impairment loss of intangible assets is
recognized in current year. The carrying amount of the intangible assets
as at 31 December 2014 was RMB22,570,000 (2013: nil).
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5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of
lead-acid motive batteries and other related products. The Group’s
revenue primarily represents the amount received and receivable for
sale of lead-acid motive batteries during the year.

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of
internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance. The
information reported to the executive directors of the Company, who is
the Group’s chief operating decision maker for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of performance, does not contain profit
or loss information of each product line and the executive directors
reviewed the gross profit of the Group as a whole reported under the
relevant accounting policies and financial regulations in the PRC (the
“PRC GAAP”), which is the same as the gross profit reported under
IFRSs. Therefore, the operation of the Group constitutes one single
operating segment. Accordingly, no segment information is presented.

No segment assets and liabilities, and related other segment
information were presented as no such discrete financial information is
provided to the chief operating decision maker.

Most of the external revenues of the Group during the year are
contributable to customers established in the PRC, the place of
domicile of the Group’s operating entities. The Group’s non-current
assets are all located in the PRC.

No revenues from a single external customer amounted to 10 percent
or more of the Group’s revenue during the year.
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An analysis of revenue by products is as follows: W AIRE SO -
2014 2013
—E—MEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREBT T
Lead-acid motive batteries LB B
Electric bike battery BEHETEEM 14,683,703 12,581,027
Storage battery fEREE M 108,991 30,954
Electric vehicle battery and special-purpose BEEEMRISHRAR
electric vehicle battery EHEEM 2,748,544 1,852,578
Li-ion batteries SEEETEM 71,148 63,062
Materials include lead and active additives TR (B IR RIE ) 574,674 445,600
18,187,060 14,973,221
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6. OTHER INCOME 6. HfuugA
2014 2013
—E—F —E—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Government grants BT HEBh
— grants related to income (Note) — B A B R B) (BIRE) 68,122 48,607
— grants related to assets (Note 34) — HEEAFBANMEB(MFE34) 6,430 2,860
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF A F BN 14,472 14,085
Interest income on entrusted loans ZEERRF EWA 19,484 12,514
Rental income e 2,932 1,460
Sales of scrap materials S E EER 5,205 1,141
Others Hi 4,995 7,081
121,640 87,748
Note: Government grants include various government subsidies received by the HIaE © BT BY B3 2 BB T i B 7] K 1 /)
Company’s subsidiaries from relevant government bodies in connection KB AN Gl B H B S B PEERE - 7%
with enterprise expansion, technology advancement, environmental HERIFE  RIRE R REDFES
protection measures enhancement and product development. There ZHEBFEE o R-_FE—PFE+—H
were no unfulfiled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants =1+—H ZEFBRAEWESE

and subsidies as at 31 December 2014. ELHIEF B EE -
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7. OTHER EXPENSES AND OTHER LOSSES

HtPAX R H A &R
2014 2013
=k —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Exchange loss ER B 1,693 2,471
Loss on disposal of property, HEWZE  BE &EEDN
plant and equipment (Note) 518 (fiaE) 4,266 11,503
Loss on derecognition of a subsidiary BILER—RMBERFTN
(Note 48) B8 (FfizE48) = 1,218
Depreciation of investment properties EMEDITE 1,324 747
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts FEWE 5 R RIZ AR
of trade receivables 9,688 11,277
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts of other  E th g Uk 3k I8 R BRI
receivables 7,313 2,390
Loss from changes in fair value of financial NERFIEEESRMEE
assets classified as held for trading N EZEEE 1,514 207
Relocation expenses B = 2,290
Donations B 3,126 290
Others Hith 1,401 306
30,325 32,699

Note: During 2014 and 2013, certain of the Company’s subsidiaries upgraded
their production processes to expand production capacity and improve
production efficiency and hence, relevant equipment was disposed of
and replaced by new equipment, resulting in loss on disposal of certain

pieces of equipment.

Bt -
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. EEMRA
2014 2013
—ET-E =4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Interest expenses on: FMERX
Bank borrowings wholly repayable RAFRBEEERN
within five years RITIEE 156,710 112,227
Short term financing note HImE EIE 17,469 16,660
Corporate bonds hEES 18,709 -
Effective interest expense on the AR EHFERF) S
Convertible Bonds (Note 39) s (Ff7E39) 61,418 59,871
Total borrowing costs EERARE 254,306 188,758
Less: amounts capitalised in construction o RERIRRERL
in progress ] (44,736) (35,812)
209,570 152,946
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 December 2014 REBEZZ—NF+-A=+—HLF
arose on the general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a EABRFTEARZEEKRAERE —RKE
capitalisation rate of 6.95% per annum (2013: 6.98% per annum) to BR - WRAEBEEMY6.95% (=%
expenditure on qualifying assets. —=4F : FELEE.98%)NERNF

B EEHE -



/I /I O Chaowei Power Holdings Limited B R &) 2R BERA 7 Annual Report 2014 3k

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRAME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-A=+—HIFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging:

BRB AT R

BB ABE R T 518 -

2014 2013

—=E—NmF —E—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T R ARET T

Wages and salaries TERFS 654,240 522,036

Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRFEFIFT B 24,693 24,055

Labour cost (Note) 8 TRA (BE) 255,743 238,519

Total staff costs BT ANME%E 934,676 784,610

Cost of inventories recognised as expense BRARZNFERAR 15,554,591 12,585,269
Allowance for inventories FEREGIAEERAK)

(included in cost of sales) 1,635 -
Prepaid lease payments released to FFABRATENAEHKIE

profit or loss 4,312 4157

Auditors’ remuneration 2% EREM B & 3,905 3,682

Depreciation of property, Y% - WEREEBITE
plant and equipment 254,455 204,945

Note: The Group has entered into various labor dispatch agreements with
several service organisations which have provided labor service to the

Group.

Wit : AEEHEZ K AL EEH S TR
BYAR TS #EIE AT AL 85 TIRAE 7 % °
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Company during the year are as follows:

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS
Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors of the

10. EERTHRARNE

AR ERERRARTEFL FOBS
BT

Salaries Contribution
and other  to retirement

benefits- benefit
Fees in-kind scheme Total
FeRHEM BARER
e ENEA FHEIHS &5t
RMB’00 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREBFT ARETT
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z-—F+=A
=t+—HIEE
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Zhou Mingming (Note) EIRRRR S A (FTEE) - 1,850 6 1,856
Mr. Zhou Longrui R A - 434 - 434
Ms. Yang Yunfei FERLL - 481 - 481
Mr. Yang Xinxin C Lk (e - 2,119 6 2,125
Non-executive directors: EHITES !
Ms. Fang Jianjun hEEZ L 325 - - 325
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REGEE 325 - - 325
Independent non-executive BUYEHITES :
directors:
Mr. Wang Jigiang T g 325 - - 325
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B 5B 2 2UR 325 - - 325
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai FBRIEA 325 - - 325
Total et 1,625 4,884 12 6,521
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-_Z-—=F+-A
=+—AItFE
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Zhou Mingming (Note) ERRRR A (Pt aE) = 1,491 6 1,497
Mr. Zhou Longrui IEESt g - 523 - 523
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERLLT - 431 - 431
Mr. Yang Xinxin BHIEE = 2,227 6 2,233
Non-executive directors: EHTES:
Ms. Deng Xihong HEait
(resigned on 6 June 2013) (R=E—=%F
NANHEHE) 121 - - 121
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REHBRE 325 - - 325
Ms. Fang Jianjun (appointed on FRELL
17 November 2013) (R=ZT—=F
+—AttHEZRMA) 58 = - 58
Independent non-executive BIYEHTES :
directors:
Mr. Wang Jigiang T A 325 - - 325
Prof. Ouyang Minggao ENCIEESE 6 325 - - 325
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai BRI LA 325 - - 325
Total st 1,479 4,672 12 6,163

Note: Mr. Zhou Mingming is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above also include those for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive Officer.

Bat - BRI SE 4 TR A AR R AR T TIAR L -
T_EX TR R # B 7F E 15 R A5 (E1T
AR EIF o
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11.

12.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS  11.

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year, included
two directors (2013: three directors), details of their emoluments are
set out above. The emoluments of the remaining three individuals for
the year (2013: two individuals) are as follows:

AEESEHALHHE
FRN - ARENES
PER(ZT=F =REF)  HH
SRBENEX - FR BRT=BAL
(ZF—=F: MBADHNBET :

B =) 35T

AL BEM

2014 2013
—E-mF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
Salaries and other allowances e N EAhERY 2,421 1,573
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREAET 2 7 10
2,428 1,583
The above employees’ emoluments were within the following bands: LitEEMESEATEHE -

Number of individuals

ATEE
2014 2013
—F-mF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARBFIT
Nil to Hong Kong Dollar (‘HK$”) 1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007% ([ BT ]) 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7c £ 1,500,000 7T 1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office. None of the directors of the Company waived any
emoluments during the year.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12. FIBHiFAX

TN ARBYEAXAAREFERRS
REHFALTINHNE -
ANAZER BB 70 2D X (EBR B AR (B - F
A BEAR R A EEREEAMNE -

TERIMA KA

2014 2013
—ZT-mF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARET T

The charge comprises: X HEE
PRC current income tax o R B EART 1S R 68,837 156,016
Deferred tax (Note 18) EIEFIE (FI7E18) (33,770) (42,837)
35,067 113,179
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.
The EIT Law provides that qualified dividend income between two
“resident enterprises” that have a direct investment relationship is
exempted from income tax. Otherwise, such dividends will be subject
to a 5% to 10% withholding tax under the tax treaty or the domestic
law. The Group is currently subject to withholding tax at 5%. During
the year ended 31 December 2014, withholding tax on intra-group
dividend amounting to RMB6,887,747 (year ended 31 December 2013:
RMB7,830,680) was paid by the Group to relevant tax authorities.

In accordance with the “Notice of the State Tax Bureau of the Ministry
of Finance Regarding Certain Preferential Treatment Policies on
Enterprise Income Tax”, New and High Technical Enterprise was
subject to income tax at a tax rate of 15%. LB E EIRA R A 7
(Anhui Chaowei Power Co., Ltd.) (“Anhui Chaowei”) was recognised as
New and High Technical Enterprises on 31 October 2012 for 3 years in
accordance with the applicable EIT Law of the PRC and was subject to
income tax at a tax rate of 15% from 2012 to 2014.

STERFRREIEIRAR A7) (Jiangsu Chaowei Power Co., Ltd.) (“Jiangsu
Chaowei”) was recognised as New and High Technical Enterprises on
13 June 2010 for 3 years in accordance with the applicable EIT Law of
the PRC and was subject to income tax at a tax rate of 15% from 2010
to 2012. Jiangsu Chaowei was recognised as New and High Technical
Enterprises on 25 September 2013 for 3 years in accordance with the
applicable EIT Law of the PRC and was subject to income tax at a tax
rate of 15% from 2013 to 2015.

HBEERAMR AT (Chaowei Power Co., Ltd.) was recognised as New
and High Technical Enterprises on 30 December 2011 for 3 years in
accordance with the applicable EIT Law of the PRC and was subject
to income tax at a tax rate of 15% from 2011 to 2013. Chaowei Power
was reconized as New and High Technical Enterprise on 27 October
2014 for 3 years in accordance with the applicable EIT Law of the PRC
and was sbuject to income tax at a tax rate of 15% from 2014 to 2016.

12.
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12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

A BESERAR A A (Henan Chaowei Power Co., Ltd.) (“Henan
Chaowei”) was reoogmsed as New and High Technical Enterprises on
28 July 2011 for 3 years in accordance with the applicable EIT Law of
the PRC and was subject to income tax at a tax rate of 15% from 2011
to 2013. Henan Chaowei was reconized as New and High Technical
Enterprise on 23 October 2014 for 3 years in accordance with the
applicable EIT Law of the PRC and was sbuject to income tax at a tax
rate of 15% from 2014 to 2016.

I EHBEERBER AT (Shandong Chaowei Power Co., Ltd.)
(“Shandong Chaowei”) was recognised as New and High Technical
Enterprises in accordance with the applicable EIT Law of the PRC
and obtained an approval from local tax authority on 1 January 2013
that the income tax rate was reduced to 15% for the year ended
31 December 2012. Shandong Chaowei was recognised as New
and High Technical Enterprises on 11 December 2013 for 3 years in
accordance with the applicable EIT Law of the PRC and was subject to
income tax at a tax rate of 15% from 2013 to 2015.

TR B4 KBS EIRABR AR (Zhejang Changxing jintaiyang Power Co.,
Ltd.) was recognised as New and High Technical Enterprises on 12 August
2013 for 3 years in accordance with the applicable EIT Law of the PRC and
was subject to income tax at a tax rate of 15% from 2013 to 2015.

AT HRRAITTE2AMR AT (Zhejiang Chaowei Chuangyuan Industrial Co.,
Ltd.) was recognised as New and High Technical Enterprises on 12 August
2013 for 3 years in accordance with the applicable EIT Law of the PRC and
was subject to income tax at a tax rate of 15% from 2013 to 2015.

T # ok 2 TR I 1 A BB A A (Jiangsu Yongda Power Co., Ltd.) was
recognised as New and High Technical Enterprises on 3 December 2013
for 3 years in accordance with the applicable EIT Law of the PRC and was
subject to income tax at a tax rate of 15% from 2013 to 2015.

ZHOKIEE HRHABR 2 (Anhui Yongheng Power Technology Co., Ltd.)
was recognised as New and High Technical Enterprises on 21 October
2014 for 3 years in accordance with the applicable EIT Law of the PRC and
was subject to income tax at a tax rate of 15% from 2014 to 2016.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —Z—NF+_-_A=+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12.

Other subsidiaries established in the PRC were subject to income tax
rate of 25% for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: 25%). The
Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI”) and Hong Kong had no assessable profits since their

Frigwim ()

HE-ZNMF+-A=+—HIF
& - AR BIRK 2 ) ELAD BB A R FTS
FHERBW(ZE—=F :25%) o &
RAIRENEBERAHS ([ HEBER

incorporation.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit

RES ) REBTME OB AR
B REME A S DA SR AL 8 FE SR TR A o

FAZFAEHAX AR

AEmRRE

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other b2 T U 25 2R P A R R A FIB S BR a0
comprehensive income as follows: T ¢
2014 2013
—E-OF —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTT ARBFIT
Profit before tax MR % R R 73,355 501,716
Tax at the applicable income tax rate of 25% B FTE B R 25% st E T IE 18,339 125,429
Tax effect of income tax deduction granted Bl Mﬂ‘% N AR AR EE R
to subsidiaries in research and BERMBNE S E
development expenditure (37,688) (20,062)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible DB R RS E 7,302 6,315
Effect of preferential tax rates on income BEREHETWBAR
of certain subsidiaries ON: -7 (19,311) (34,458)
Decrease in opening deferred tax EEARERD <
assets resulting from a decrease FUIRLERIEEER D
in applicable tax rate 2,307 -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognized RERRIEE BN BT E 63,975 5,438
Utilisation of tax losses previously A AIARER 2 T8
not recognised (3,135)
Tax effect of share of loss of associates FE(EERE A REIE E’ﬁﬂlﬁ 2 1,285 6,549
Deferred tax associated with AP BB RARRDH
withholding tax on undistributed profits A E A TEIN R E A %ﬁ ]
of PRC subsidiaries IR IE 1,993 23,968
Income tax expense for the year FRATEHFAY 35,067 113,179

The details of deferred tax for the year are set out in Note 18.

FAREEFRIEMNFBHNHIES -
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13. (LOSSES) EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. ER(EHE)RR
The calculation of the basic and diluted (losses) earnings per share AR HEAEBENEREARES
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following (18 BF| TR IE A T &igst &
data:
2014 2013
—E-MmF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
(Losses) earnings (BBR)ER
(Losses) earnings for the purpose of HEREARAREERNMEH
basic and diluted earnings per share (1) &BF| (28,955) 310,238
2014 2013
—B-MmF —= =+
’000 ‘000
T TFh&
Number of shares RHEEE
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of LA E AR MBS (5518 ) & F
basic and diluted (losses) earnings per share ms @ T@EREE 1,005,290 1,005,290
The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 HE-_ZT—MFE+-A=+—HILFE
December 2014 does not assume the conversion of the Company’s MNERETRMNNGTTER L EBRAD
outstanding Convertible Bonds since their exercise would result in a AR RIARTTEE ARG S R - b T)
reduction in losses per share. HRITFEZEESFBERETREER
Do
14. DIVIDEND 14. KRE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Dividends declared for FASMHIRENRES
distribution during the year:
2013 final dividend — RMBO0.093 per share T =FRERE B
(2012 final dividend — RMB0.148 per share)  AR#0.0937T( =& — — K Hf
B — BRAREO0.1487T) 93,492 148,783
The directors have determined that no dividend will be paid in respect EERETERNEE-_Z—NFE+ =

of the year ended 31 December 2014. A=+—RALFEHRE -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BERRE
Furniture,
Plant and Motor fixturesand Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
& B
BT HERHE RE RERRHE ERIR @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  AREBTRT  ARETR  ARETRT  ARETR  ARETR

CosT KA

At 1 January 2013 RZE-=%5-A—-H 997,435 919,130 58,683 79,281 460,353 2,514,882
Additions NE 43,832 239,493 71,915 28,476 520,616 904,332
Transfers (=N 246,355 99,105 = = (345,460) -
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 48) HE—FHEAR(FH48) (142) (665) (30) 7) = (750)
Disposals e (1,341) (51,312) (5,010) (2,573 - (60,236)
At 31 December 2013 WZZ-=F+-R=+-H 1,286,139 1,205,851 125,552 106,177 635,509 3,358,228
Additions NE 2,522 227,852 36,256 43,589 451,639 761,858
Transfers =N 107,535 200,010 4,808 721 (313,074) -
Disposals e (433) (16,889) (1,916) (762) - (20,000}
At 31 December 2014 RZE-WE+-A=+—-H 12395763 1,616,824 164,700 148,725 774,074 4,100,086
DEPRECIATION i

At 1 January 2013 RZE-=%5-A—H 86,873 110,242 17,097 25,927 - 240,139
Provided for the year EREHE 49,416 113,743 23,220 18,566 - 204,945
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 48) HE—FHB AR (fzH48) (15) (31) 4 2 - (62)
Eliminated on disposals e gk (166) (29,070) (2,780) (1,918) - (33,934)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=5+-A=1+-H 136,108 194,884 37,533 42,573 - 411,098
Provided for the year FNRE 62,651 139,321 30,862 21,621 - 254,455
Eliminated on disposals HER (134) (10,544) (1,726) 872) - (12,776)
At 31 December 2014 RZZF-mF+=A=1+—-A 198,625 323,661 66,669 63,822 - 652,777
CARRYING AMOUNT REE

At 31 December 2014 RZZ-MmE+=A=+—-H 1,197,138 1,293,163 98,031 84,903 774,074 3,447,309

At 31 December 2013 RZZE-=%+-A=+—H 1,150,031 1,010,967 88,019 62,604 635,509 2,947,130
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 15. Y% - BERRZEE)
The buildings are located on land use right in the PRC for a period of ZERFARP BN ABS0F ) i F
50 years. Az k-
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than Lz BERRENIEE - REE
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the TSN - B BEEIRA T F RS
following rates per annum: £
Buildings gF 4.75%-9.5%
Plant and machinery TR K i 25 9.5%
Motor vehicles JaE 19%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment B BEERE MR 9.5-19%
Details of property, plant and equipment pledged are set out in Note EERNME - BEMEENFBIER
44, BizEa4 -
16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. A HERIE
2014 2013
—E-mEF =%
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREET T

At beginning of the year REAT] 208,877 197,321
Additions NE 53,300 15,713
Released to profit or loss as expense FFABRERRX 4,312) (4,157)
At the end of the year RFR 257,865 208,877
2014 2013

—F-mF —T=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT ARETTT

Prepaid lease payments related to BT RENTENEERIE
land use rights analysed for MHREEMDITA :
reporting purposes as:
Current assets MENVEE 5,490 4,425
Non-current assets EMEBEE 252,375 204,452

257,865 208,877
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16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 16. FRSHERIE(E)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group was in the process of RS BRAER - AKEIEANAF R
obtaining land use right certificates for the land in the PRC amounting BEHARKE2,697,000(ZE—=4
to approximately RMB2,697,000 (31 December 2013: RMB7,755,000). +TZA=+—8 : HARK7,755,000
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group is entitled JO) M L P IE RN T AR TF
to lawfully and validly occupy and use the above-mentioned land use B ARREZRE  AEBAESE
rights and not required to incur significant additional cost in obtaining BB A R _Eil P R RE
the land use right certificates for the land in the PRC. B7E AR B A £ SB B A b 55 A 4

ERHAELTRINERER °

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: REERANIEEFBELE
2014 2013
—2-mE —F—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREETTT

Land outside Hong Kong: BBLAINE D, -
Medium-term lease FHAHE 257,865 208,877
Details of land use rights pledged are set out in Note 44. B R i AR IR FAA I 544 o
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REWHE
RMB’000
ARBFIT
CosT B
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 R-ZZE—=F—HA—H —F—=F
+=—A=+—H 10,651
Addition (Note 47) NE (MH5E47) 20,568
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NFE+=-A=+—H 31,219
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2013 R—ZE—=%F—HF—H 2,988
Provided for the year FRNEAE 47
At 31 December 2013 R-Z—=%F+-A=+—H 3,735
Provided for the year FREE 1,324
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NNF+_-_A=+—H 5,059
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NE+=—A=+—H 26,160

At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=%+=-A=+—H 6,916
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 17. REWHE(E)
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December AREEKREMEN_ZT—NFE+_A
2014 was RMB56,555,000. The fair values of the commercial =+—B®RFERARKS6,555,000
properties located in the PRC and Germany have been arrived at JC o R E RIEE  ERYEATFE
based on valuations carried out at 31 December 2014, respectively, Ti BRI R B IR A E L E 1
by #N R E A E L =P (Huzhou Zhongchen Guorui Property Fr(lmMAdR]) REBRFTE(REHS A
Valuation Limited) (“Huzhou Zhongchen”), and America Appraisal, HAREEIWEEENE L EESERG
two independent and professional qualified valuers not connected B R —_E—NE+_A=+—H#
with the Group. Huzhou Zhongchen and America Appraisal have ITHEEER - MNP REERTEL
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation HEEEN BRI EABEBMEREA
of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuations for the PIEEITEE - PRYENGETIR
property located in the PRC were determined by direct comparison BT O EN A ERTSEAE
method based on market observable transactions of similar properties B ESAEBTE  WEERAEURERE
and adjusted to reflect the locations and conditions of the subject VISR HE B kR, o EEI R EEIA
properties. The valuation for the properties located in Germany were FWABERMEGNETE - HRYERAT
determined by capitalisation of net income method, where the market B HEEM 2 MSHESKELRBZER
rentals of all lettable units of the properties are assessed by reference H FH B8 (57 WK ER B FH & LA Rz AR db [ [3) 48
to the rentals achieved in the lettable unites as well as other lettings of Mz HFAE% T ATZ o haTER
similar properties in the neighborhood. The capitalisation rate adopted is ARERLERE  EZEREBRERD
estimated by considering mortgage and equity return requirements, the WESK  BEAWENFR LARR - TR
age and condition of the respective properties, market conditions, and ARG & b BX B8 B 1 ZE T 35 P R A R B b
an overall rate as shown in the general real estate market in the local K o
areas.
The fair value of the Group’s investment property at 31 December REEBKREMEN_ZT—=F+_A4
2013 was RMB31,346,840. The fair value has been arrived at based =+—HHRAFEAARKS1,346,840
on valuations carried out at 31 December 2013 by Huzhou Zhongchen. JC° AFETIMBEINFRR=2Z—=
The valuations were determined by direct comparison method based F+ A=+ BETHEEER - &
on market observable transactions of similar properties and adjusted to BIREMS FEUMENTERR S
reflect the location and condition of the subject property. FREELBEAETE  WEEARNUK
A BB SR B Rk ©
Details of the Group’s investment properties and information of the fair R-ZE—NF+_-_A=+—HBAEEK
value hierarchy as at 31 December 2014 are as follows: BEMENFBERAFEERNERN
T
Fair value as at
31 December
Level 2 2014
R-ZT—MmF
+=A=+—8H
H28% HAFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETIT ARET T
Commercial property unit located in PRC A BRI P A AL 6,169 29,268
Commercial property units located in Germany iz A= B &) 59 B 1 £ & A1 19,991 27,287
The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line FMIREMENEGSFIRAT FRR
basis at the following rates per annum: e
Commercial property units located in PRC R B R R Y S B A7 6.33%
Commercial property units located in Germany AR R P R B AL 5.60%

The investment properties are located on land use right in the PRC for
a period of 50 years and in Germany for freehold.

ZEREMEMANHEANSIME0FN T
AR K AEREZ £ -
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18. DEFERRED TAXATION

The deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised by the Group and the

18. EZEHIA
ARERFAREROELEVREE

movements thereon, during the year are as follows: (BE)REZBHMT
Allowance
for doubtful Fair value
debtsand  Deferred  Accrual/ Tax adjustment Withholding
inventories  income  provision losses Others  onassets tax Total
3 FEHTE/ EENDT
REERE  EERA B HEER 0 fEaz SERIE &t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'OC0O  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETE
At 1 January 2013 RZZ-=F-f-H 2,342 12,462 99,371 7,003 2,390 (565) - 123008
Credit (charge) to profit or loss HENCIEN: 5 2,035 7,464 43,746 4,408 1,144 177 (16137) 428037
Liquidation of a subsidliary —ZHBARER - - - - - (140) - (140)
At 31 December 2013 W_2-=F
+-A=1-H 4377 19926 143117 1,411 3,534 (28  (16,137) 165,700
Credit (charge) to profit or loss EINCIEN:R 3,140 5912 15,628 4,067 (58) 186 4,895 33,770
At 31 December 2014 it Stk
+-A=+-A 7517 2588 188745 15478 3476 (342) (11242 199470

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

AT RRMBRENECHBGEHD

reporting purposes: i
2014 2013
—E-mF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARET T
Deferred tax assets FEFRIAE E 211,054 182,365
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHBEE (11,584) (16,665)
199,470 165,700

Details of the Group’s unused tax losses are as follows:

AEBARBANORBBEFBOT

2014 2013
—F-mF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBFIT

Tax losses already recognised as ERERAEERIBEERN
deferred tax assets HIAEE 61,912 45,644

Tax losses unrecognised for RIERIEE E R AR R

deferred tax assets FHIEE 18 279,087 35,727




/I 22 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited B E 2 hiZRER A F

Annual Report 2014 F 3§

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRAME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-A=+—HIFE

19.

18. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED) 18. EZEFIIE(E)
The unrecognized tax losses will be expired in the following years: REROHEEEENATFEERE
At 31 December
Rt+=—A=+—H
2014 2013
—E-OF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBFIT
31 December 2016 —E—RFt+-_A=+—H 688 688
31 December 2017 —E—+H+-_F=+—H 13,287 13,287
31 December 2018 —E-)N\F+—A=+—H 21,752 21,752
31 December 2019 —ET-hF+=-_A=+—H 243,360 -
Total FE 279,087 35,727
No deferred tax assets have been recognized in relation to certain AR BETERIAR AR TR - B UL
tax losses as shown above due to the unpredictability of future profit MEMETHIEBERRELCHRIEE
streams. Ee
The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with FETBARTARREEREBERR
undistributed earnings of PRC subsidiaries for which deferred AR IKBFEFNREEZZEER
tax liabilities have not been recognised was approximately RMB ZE—NFE+ZA=FT—HHABAR
RMB2,043,992,000 as at 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: #2,043,992,000c( =& —=F + =
RMB1,718,063,000). No deferred tax liability has been recognised A=+—H: # AR#%¥1,718,063,000
in respect of these differences because the Group is in a position to 7)o FRPAZNER (B AJ 28 i) i By 22 ER A0 5
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is EIREREN RBERE@BEEAETE
probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. BB - B SR A R RRER IR
afE -
GOODWILL 19. B8
2014 2013
—=E—NmF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETTT
COST 5%
At beginning and the end of the year REF) R TR 49,447 49,447

Goodwill of the Group was resulted from the acquisition of the

subsidiaries below for the past few years.

AEENEELRANEERFRKE
THIERA] e
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19. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

19. BE(A)

Goodwill
5k
2014 2013
—E-OF —ET—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBFIT
ZHBRERERAF] B ERERAT
(Anhui Chaowei Power Co., Ltd.) ([ZBuEBE )
(“Auhui Chaowei”) 14,956 14,956
ZEKEE HIRHRER QA ZHEKEBNBRAR AT
(Anhui Yongheng Power Technology Co., Ltd.) (T=2BKED
(“Anhui Yongheng”) 9,342 9,342
MNEREERERBRAF MM EEEREREGRAT
(“Huzhou Changguang Haotian Power Co., Ltd.”) ([#MEREEX])
(“Huzhou Changguang Haotian”) 754 754
I REEANGERERAR IR KGERERAT
(“Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang (T EESKE])
Power Co., Ltd.”)
(“Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang”) 576 576
TEKEBRRNOBR AR LEKEERRNHBRAF
(Jiangsu Yongda Power Co., Ltd.) ([TERoKE])
(“Jiangsu Yongda”) 23,524 23,624
ST ERIRER A A ST IRFRIRER A F
(Qinyang Libiao Plate Co., Ltd.) (UBBIZ D
(“Qinyang Libiao”) 295 295
Total 1@t 49,447 49,447

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill set out above has
been allocated to one individual cash-generating unit (“CGU”) as
the six acquired subsidiaries all engaged in manufacturing of motive
batteries or accessories of motive batteries. During the year ended 31
December 2014, management of the Group determines that there is no
impairment of its CGU. The basis of the estimation of the recoverable
amount of the above CGU and the major underlying assumptions are
summarised below:

The recoverable amount has been determined based on a value-in-
use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management of the Group covering

AEITRERF - AR SR
BRARBNES N E MR B N EA M
B8 W ENFAENHEBENDEE @
BYReELEM(TREELEM]) -
REBEE-Z-—WF+-_A=+—HILF
B AEEEREETXREELEN
WHRE - et DR EE B AW
Ol &R A EEN T 2EBERKE AN
T

A EeRERHEERBEME
E o KA ENAERAEEEIEEH
#ERE R F BN BIRE RSN
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19.

20.

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

a 5-year period, and discount rate of 13% (31 December 2013:13%).
The CGU’s cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 5% growth rate in revenue (31 December 2013: 5%).
The growth rate used is based on management’s best estimation on
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant markets. Other key assumptions for the value-in-
use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimation is based
on the unit’s past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are the specific technologies and know-how relating
to the production of start-and-stop batteries for automotive industries
and a licence right to use the brand name of MOLL (see Note 22 for
definition) in the start-and-stop batteries to be produced by the Group
in the future, further details of which are set out in Note 22.

19. HE(H&)

SRETEA - MATRANITEEAE13%
(Z2—=F+=-A=+—8 :13%) °
ZHeELBMAFUEEBRNRSR
EAEBENSHRARERER(ZT—=
F+-A=1+—8 :5%)#HE - AFrikA
)38 = 3 DA B 28 JE SIS R TR MY S (S
SHAMKE - BX T EREETSNTY
REERE - ST EEABEENEMEE
BRERSTA REEH(RIEE
HHEREFNER)BRE - BRAMTEE
REZBABAREREEEHMEEE
Wi - BEBERA - AUZEREN
ARSI EHRRSELENN
REREERKEESRE -

20. BEEE

BN EERABERMEENEEZAA
FFERM R BN - URAEERA
BAEEEZ REEMEAMOLLARE
MB(ERRMTE22) 2 et - ELFIE
AT EE22 o

RMB’000
AREETTT
COST AR
At 1 January 2014 —ET—-NF—F—H -
Addition (Note 22) ANE (HT3E22) 23,758
At 31 December 2014 —E-F+_-_A=+—H 23,758
AMORTISATION ey
At 1 January 2014 —E—lNF—HF—H =
Provided for the year FREE 1,188
At 31 December 2014 —ZEZ—nmWFE+-_A=+—H 1,188
CARRYING AMOUNT BRTE{E
At 31 December 2014 —ZE-E+=-A=+—H 22,570

At 31 December 2013 —B—=5+-A=+—8 _

The useful life of 10 years is used in the calculation of amortization of
these intangible assets.

FEBIEE 2 BHMOFAIEAFR

o
ATE -
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21. SUBSIDIARIES 21. HfiBAT
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period AEBME R R RERLERENER
are as follows: | INNE

Equity interest

Issued and fully attributable to
Place of paid-up the Company as
incorporation/ share capital/ at 31 December
establishment  registered capital b NG|
Name of company AL BRTRBERAE Rt=A=+-8 Principal activity
NGRS R 2 fER il RARER TEEK
2014 2013
—E-mFE —T-=F
% %
Directly held
EERE
Chaowei Power Group Limited BVI US$100 100 100  Investment holding
BERBNEEERAA EBERRHS 1003 7T REER
Indirectly held
HERE
Chaowei Power (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100  Investment holding
BEE N (BE)ERAF B 10,000%7T REER
Chaowei Power Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100  Research and
BEE R ER AT B 10,000/7T development
e
R ERER A E (M) PRC RMB1,063,800,000 100 100  Manufacture of
(Chaowei Power Co., Ltd) (Note i) e AR motive batteries
1,063,800,0007C ELEBNED
REFHERERA A () PRC RMB50,000,000 100 100  Manufacture of
(Changxing Zhongcheng H AR motive batteries
Power Co., Ltd.) (Note ) 50,000,0007T BB NEN
AR ERERA A () PRC RMB10,000,000 60 60 Manufacture of
(Henan Chaowei Power Co., Ltd.) e AR motive
(“Henan Chaowei”) (Note ) 10,000,0007C BB NEN
WRBRERARA R (F5H) PRC RMB100,000,000 100 100  Manufacture of
(Shandong Chaowei Power e AR motive batteries
Co., Ltd.) (Note ) 100,000,0007T BB NEN
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21.

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

21. MBAR R

Equity interest

Issued and fully attributable to
Place of paid-up the Company as
incorporation/ share capital/ at 31 December
establishment  registered capital b /N|
Name of company B4 ERITREBERE Rt+t=—A=+-H Principal activity
NEER FRAZ it B &R LR AR TEER
2014 2013
—E-mf —Z—=F
% %
IER B ERERAR (M) PRC RMB100,000,000 100 100  Manufacture of
(Jiangsu Chaowei Power e AR motive batteries
Co., Ltd.) (Note ) 100,000,0007T BB NEN
ZHERERERLA PRC RMB10,000,000 75 75 Manufacture of
(&R ) (P EEi) F AR# motive batteries
(Anhui Chaowei Power Co., Ltd.) 10,000,0007C BB NEM
(“Anhui Chaowei”) (Note i)
HIRBEE) e R A R A R (L) PRC RMB150,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries
(Zhejiang Chaowei Power e ARE and materials
Energy Co., Ltd.) (Note i) 150,000,0007C HEBNEMRME
IREHEE NaERRR AR AR ()  PRC RMB100,000,000 100 100  Manufacture of
(Jiangxi Xinwei Power Technology H ARE motive materials
Co., Ltd.) (Note i) 100,000,0007T SLEBHNEM
KBS H R AR AR (FEH) PRC RMB65,500,000 65 51 Manufacture of
(Anhui Yongheng Power H ARE motive batteries
Technology Co., Ltd.) (Note i) 65,500,0007T BEENEND
MMREERERER A B () PRC RMB500,000 100 100 Manufacture of
(Huzhou Changguang Haotian e ARE motive batteries
Power Co., Ltd.) (Note i) 500,0007T SLEBHNEM
MIRESARERER A B () PRC RMB10,000,000 51 51 Manufacture of
(Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang e ARE motive batteries
Power Co., Ltd.) (Note i) 10,000,0007T SLEBHNEM
Golden Chaowei Technology Limited BV HK$3,000,000 80 80 Research and
SHERMARAR EBRERARS 3,000,000/ 7 development

DIES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—ZFT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

21. MBAR R

Equity interest

Issued and fully attributable to
Place of paid-up the Company as
incorporation/ share capital/ at 31 December
establishment  registered capital b /N|
Name of company B4 ERITREBERE R+=-B=+—-H Principal activity
NEER FRAZ it B AfER EiERAER TEER
2014 2013
—E-mE —ZT-=F
% %
IR AT E B R AR (M) PRC RMB50,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of
(Zhejiang Chaowei Chuangyuan S ARE motive batteries
Industrial Co., Ltd.) (Note i) 50,000,0007T HEHHE
TEKEBRROERAR(IsKE]) PRC RMB63,000,000 60 60  Manufacture of
Cogza)) H ARE motive batteries
(Jiangsu Yongda Power Co., Ltd.) 63,000,0007T BUEE) HE
(“Jiangsu Yongda”) (Note i)
W R RAR A 7 () PRC RMB63,240,769 85 85  Manufacture of electrode
(Qinyang Libiao Plate Co., Ltd.) S ARE plate dividing paper
(Note ) 63,240,7697T FEEBIRBIRA
REWEERER A B () PRC RMB40,850,000 51 51 Manufacture of plastic
(Changxing Yueda Plastic e ARE battery cases
Co., Ltd.) (Note ) 40,850,0007T SUEE PR
AR ERE R A R (M) PRC RMB120,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of
(Hebei Chaowei Power H AR motive batteries
Co., Ltd.) (Note i) 120,000,0007C JEFHNE
ZRHFEBHEREFERAR (M) PRC RMB20,000,000 100 100  Sales of motive batteries
(Anhui Xinwei Power Trading i AR and materials
Co., Ltd) (Note ) 20,000,0007T HWEHHTORITH
WIFBERE S AR AR (M) PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100  Sales of motive batteries
(Zhejiang Xinwei Power Trading H AR and materials
Co., Ltd.) (Note ) 10,000,0007C HWEHHTORITH
AR E R ERAR AR () PRC RMBE0,000,000 60 60  Manufacture of
(Henan Chaowei Zhengxiao S ARE motive batteries
Power Co., Ltd.) (Note ) 60,000,0007T SEBHEM
0 & B R B AR A B () PRC RMB500,000 100 100  Sales of motive batteries
(Xinhe County Battery Trading e ARE and materials
Co., Ltd.) (Note i) 500,0007C HEBHNEBRME
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21.

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

21. MBAR R

Equity interest

Issued and fully attributable to
Place of paid-up the Company as
incorporation/ share capital/ at 31 December
establishment  registered capital b /N|
Name of company B4 ERITREBERE Rt+t=—A=+-H Principal activity
NEER FRZ it B &R LR AR TEER
2014 2013
—E-mFE —T-=F
% %
Leadnew Co., Ltd(Ff#Ei) BVI USD100 100 ~ Investment holding
Leadnew Co., Ltd (Note ii) RBHERRES 100 TT REER
LR B EERER AT PRC RMB10,000,000 100 - Manufacture of
GEDCED) F ARE motive batteries
(Shandong Chaowei Ciyao Power 10,000,00075 SEHNED
Co., Ltd.) (Note i) (Note ii)
EERREFERAR M) (ki)  PRC RMB10,000,000 100 - Property development
(Ningyang Chaowei Land Co., Ltd.) o AR mEER
(Note i) (Note ii) 10,000,0007T
Moll Grundsticks- und Germany EUR1,500,000 100 - Property investment
Vermdgensverwaltungs =6 1,500,000 7T MERE
GmbH & Co. KG(Ffi #iil)
Moll Grundstticks — und
Vermdgensverwaltungs
GmbH & Co. KG (Note iii)
Notes: Biat -

(i) The English names of these companies are for reference only and have

not been registered.

(ii) Newly established during the year ended 31 December 2014.

(i) Newly acquired during the year ended 31 December 2014.

(iv)  Other than the convertible bonds issued by the Company and the
corporate bonds issued by Chaowei Power, none of the subsidiaries had

issued any debt securities at the end of the year.

()  ERRFFEXEFERRE - WX

CER

(i)

(i)

(i)

REZ-F—F+=/A=+—HI
FREANFLIL

REE—F—MFF—_A=1—Hi
FEAFTHIE -

Br AN 2RI 7T AT AR (& 5 R B
IFRTTH) PR E S, BARNE A A
RFREZRITEFES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR RE
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SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Composition of the Group

Place of incorporation

21.

P e = ()
FEENAE

Number of wholly-owned

Principal activity and operation subsidiaries
FEEK SRR I & E b B 2 EMBRARNEE
2014 2013
—F-mE —T-=F
Investment holding BVI 2 1
TEER REHRARHS
Investment holding Hong Kong 1 1
REZER B
Research and development Hong Kong 1 1
it EE B
Manufacturing motive batteries PRC 9 8
BUEB) NEM [
Sales of motive batteries and material PRC 4 4
SHEB) 1B M R R H
Property investment Germany 1 -
MERE f2E
18 15

Principal activity

Place of incorporation
and operation

Number of non-wholly-
owned subsidiaries

FEEK MR R & E b E F2EMEARNHE
2014 2013

—E—mEF —E—=F

Research and development BVI 1 1

o Es REHERRHS

Manufacturing motive batteries PRC 6 6

SUEEN NN [

Manufacturing of electrode plate dividing paper PRC 1 1

BLEBHRFRIRA F

Manufacturing of plastic battery cases PRC 1 1

BUEEMIER mh
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21. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of
ownership interests
Place of incorporation  and voting rights held

and principal by non-controlling
Name of subsidiary place of business interests at 31 December
W+=BA=t-H
EMR LR FERERRAES
MEARERE TEEXBE LBl R R R RELL B
2014 2013

—B-mE —T=F

21. HBATGHE)
BEAEAFERERNIZEMBLE

S
TREFIAEEGES ERIFERERE
2 EMBATRFIE
Profit (loss) Accumulated
allocated to non- non-controlling
controlling interests interests
at 31 December at 31 December
R+=RA=t+—H
PEEFERERH R+=A=+—HK
B (ESE) Rt R
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-ME —T-=F CZE-NF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR®TT ARBTT ARETR

Henan Chaowei PRC 40% 40%
o R HE
Anhui Chaowei PRC 25% 25%
A B
Jiangsu Yongda PRC 40% 40%
AR KE R
Individually immaterial

subsidiaries with

non-controlling

interests
AR ER R

{ERIFEERMB A

25,023 76,929 357,962 332,939

9,427 6,893 66,017 56,590

20,143 (6,464) 54,465 34,322

96,612 95,388

Total
et

575,056 519,239

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out below.
The summarised financial information below represents amounts
before intragroup eliminations.

AEERBEFERESNZHER
RIRBERE MBS E R DI o THIREES
MBERRKREBA QR EEHATE R
e



Annual Report 2014 &3 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited 8 E ) HiER AR A 7 —] 31

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—ZFT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

21. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 21. MIBATE)
Henan Chaowei SRR
2014 2013
—E—-mEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT ARETTT

Current assets MEVEE 433,048 597,800
Non-current assets JEmMBNEE 797,271 670,974
Current liabilities mEalE 189,063 349,075
Non-current liabilities FRBRIE 146,352 87,352
Equity attributable to owners of the Company &N E#EB AFE(L#EZ 536,942 499,408
Non-controlling interests FEPEAS FE RS 357,962 332,939
2014 2013

—E-mEF —T-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AREET T

Revenue WA 2,342,998 2,772,351

Expenses 53 2,280,440 2,580,030
Profit for the year FAFE 62,558 192,321

Profit attributable to owners of the Company RARER AFEGFIE 37,535 115,392
Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests  FE42 i z5 FE {5 F1) 25,023 76,929
Profit for the year FERFE 62,558 192,321

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT IR R B0 AR B = 20,000
Net cash inflow from operating activities $SSEBNIE £ ASFEE 32,770 321,905
Net cash outflow from investing activities REESHRE R FE (132,018) (165,917)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities @& /&EBNIR &R AGRL ) /F58 469 (563,497)

Net cash (outflow) inflow Bt R FE (98,779) 102,491
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21.

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Anhui Chaowei

21.

B B8~ = (4&)
RHER

2014 2013

—E-MmF —T—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Current assets MEVEE 227,240 206,012
Non-current assets ERBEE 136,484 131,901
Current liabilities mEalE 87,315 99,210
Non-current liabilities ERBBE 12,341 12,341
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AAREA AEEREZ 198,051 169,772
Non-controlling interests IR R T 66,017 56,590
2014 2013

—F-mE =%

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFIT

Revenue WA 802,599 768,799
Expenses Bz 764,893 741,229
Profit for the year FAFHE 37,706 27,570
Profit attributable to owners of the Company RARER AFEGFIE 28,279 20,677
Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests  FE42 i z5 FE {5 F1) 9,427 6,893
Profit for the year FERFE 37,706 27,570
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT IR R B0 AR B = 5,000
Net cash inflow from operating activities RETEEIR &M AR 30,187 11,237

Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities #&&/EFEHRERmACRL ) F5E 27,601 (14,208)

Net cash outflow from financing activities BE TSR R FE (45,899) (697)

Net cash inflow (outflow) WERACKHE)F58 11,889 (3,668)
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SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 21. MIBAR(E&)
Jiangsu Yongda STERKE
2014 2013
—E-MmF =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET R ARBFIT
Current assets mBEE 188,614 160,586
Non-current assets ERBEE 169,135 140,695
Current liabilities nBEE 214,840 208,731
Non-current liabilities ERBBE 6,746 6,746
Equity attributable to owners of the Company N2 BB AEG1ER 81,698 51,482
Non-controlling interests FEFERA A 54,465 34,322
2014 2013
—E-OF ZE—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFIT
Revenue WA 1,245,503 515,620
Expenses 53 1,195,145 531,781
Profit (loss) for the year FRFHE(EE) 50,358 (16,161)
Profit (loss) attributable to owners RARER AFEEFE(EE)
of the Company 30,215 (9,697)
Profit (loss) attributable to the PR R RS FIE (B18)
non-controlling interests 20,143 (6,464)
Profit (loss) for the year FRFE(EE) 50,358 (16,161)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT SEIE AR R BV AR B = -
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEHRESMAFE 76,520 5,749
Net cash outflow from investing activities KEEHE SR FE (59,365) (10,149)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from financing activities BESEBIIR S () 7w AELE (40,129) 14,326
Net cash (outflow) inflow Be(Rb)RAFR (22,974) 9,926
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22,

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

22, AEZEQNTNWRESR

2014 2013

—E—-F —T—=%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETIT

Cost of unlist investments IE LIS E R 89,502 58,000
Share of post-acquisition losses Wi 1% FE(L B 1R (50,953) (45,815)
Share of net assets EBIhEEFE 38,549 12,185
Loan to an associate BT —HEEE QT 16,789 -
55,338 12,185

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had interests in the following
associates:

HE-T-mE+-A=1-8 &%
R TR A AR

Proportion of nominal value

of registered capital
Country of held and voting power
establishment/ held by the Group
Date of incorporation and as at 31 December
establishment/ operation Fully paid-up/ &HZ+=B=t-H4&E
Name of entity incorporation B/ SMHKLKk  registered capital FrSMERNEER Principal activity
ER2H RY/ZMALAY EENEX BR/EMEX FiisREREMLE TEER
2014 2013
“E-mE =%
% %
MIEEERRNERAR 2008 PRC RMB73,728,481 28.12 28.12  Manufacture of
( Hrrimeel ) —TZ-F H AERET73,728,4817T motive batteries
(Zhejiang Zhenlong Power BIEBNE
Co., Ltd.) (“Zhejiang Zhenlong”)
Akkumulatorenfabrik MOL 1945 Germany EUR2,302,000 40 N/A Manufacture of
GmbH & Co. KG ('MOLL")  —hmEF =8 2,302,00081T Tan start-and-stop
batteries
BRI

The associates of the Group are accounted for using the equity method
in these consolidated financial statements.

An unsecured loan was granted by the Group to MOLL in an amount
of EUR2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB16,789,000) at an
interest rate of 4.9% per annum with the maturity date at the end of
2018.

A B O A ISR A S
AR EE -

REERMOLLIE it 72%12,000,000 7T
(FBERH AREE16,789,0007T ) HY K
WE - ENERELI% - BRZT—N
FEREIE -
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 22, ABENTNER(E)

The summariesd financial information in respect of the Group’s B RN BB E N B BT RS B RS B R
associates is set out below. The summarised financial information AT o RHIEBERE B S B B R B I
below represents amounts shown in the associates’ financial BRI 75 3 S AE R AR R A Bt 2 A BT 7%

statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs. TR EREE -

Zhejiang Zhenlong HLIREE

2014 2013
—=E—mF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(REER) (REEER)
Current assets BB E 195,315 231,501
Non-current assets EREEAE 178,561 189,728
Current liabilities mEaE 332,328 366,979
Non-current liabilities FERBBE 2,000 10,918
2014 2013
—E-NmEF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
Revenue WA 720,159 599,820
Loss for the year FEREE (3,783) (93,169)

Total comprehensive expense for the year FRNEMEATAHE (3,783) (93,169)
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22,

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
Zhejiang Zhenlong (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in Zhejiang Zhenlong recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

22.

REE QR RS (B)
ST R RE ()

LR B A AR 6 A T SRR TR
BT IREE AV PR T (A 2R -

2014 2013

—F-mE =%

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

(unaudited) (unaudited)

(REEER) (REFEZ)

Net assets of the associate &N RN EBEFE 39,548 43,332
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest AREB(EINIIRERN

in Zhejiang Zhenlong EERELL 1) 28.12% 28.12%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ARE B AT TIREER

in Zhejiang Zhenlong IR (E 11,121 12,185

MOLL MOLL

2014

—ZT—MF

RMB’000

AR®T T

(unaudited)

(REEER)

Current assets MEEE 100,349

Non-current assets JEREBEE 34,299

Current liabilities BB E 32,511

Non-current liabilities ERBBE 55,232
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 22, ABENTNER(E)
MOLL (continued) MOLL (&)
2014
—Z—MmF
RMB’000
AR¥TRT
(unaudited)
(REEER)
Revenue WA 310,863
Loss for the year (from 15 May 2014 to FABE(EZZ—NOFRATHEAER
31 December 2014) (Note) ZE-MEFZA=F+—H) () (10,185)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FREEMAS B (10,185)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the BT RE B 75 B R AR S B RS Rk PR
carrying amount of the interest in MOLL recognised in the consolidated FRIAMOLLAY#E 75 ) BRE (B $1 B -
financial statements:
2014
—E—mEF
RMB’000
ARET T
(unaudited)
(REBER)
Net assets of the associate BERRNEEFE 46,905
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in MOLL 78 & E{EMOLLEE A L1 40%
Goodwill Gk 8,666
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in MOLL RNEEARMOLLA % K AR & 27,428
Note: During current year, the Group entered into an agreement with MOLL to Biet - RAFEF + KEFHEMOLLEFT I
acquire a 40% equity interest in MOLL and certain licensed technology Z o BIEMOLLZ 0% R #E - A K&
and trademark for the production of start-and-stop batteries solely used B THREFH R BE ([ Fil R AFEF
in Asia (the “Technology and Licences”) for a total cash consideration B ARTENEFRZE -+
of EUR6,512,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB55,260,000). The #BE 2L 18/56,612,0008 7T (1HE R
fair values assigned to the Group’s share of MOLL’s identifiable assets HIA R #56,260,000T) ° BEE K%
and liabilities and the fair values of the Technology and Licences have BIEISMOLLZ Al #FIEER B &2
been arrived at based on valuations carried at 15 May 2014, the date RFERBEMRIFTFEZ RFETS
of completion of the acquisition, by America Appraisal, an independent RIEF T & B 15 EZ G ERTAmerica
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group. Appraisal( #1752 E]ir f fE ) R —F
—PFERA A (W ERR)#

T2 15 1EEE °
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22,

23.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
MOLL (continued)

The initial fair values of the equity interest in MOLL acquired by the
Group and the Technology and Licences acquired by the Group from

22, MAEZENTIMER(F)
MOLL (&)

REBKIBMOLL z B i B ifg M 45 7F
RN STA U B B2 A FE#H 0

MOLL at the date of completion of the acquisition are set out below: T
RMB’000
ARETTT
(unaudited)
(REEEZ)
The equity interest in MOLL FAMOLL 2z i 1 31,502
The Technology and Licences (Note 20) By R AR (Bt 5E20) 23,758
Total consideration BRE 55,260

LOAN RECEIVABLES

(a)

Entrusted loan granted to Chisen Electric Jiangsu Co., Ltd
(“Chisen Electric”)

Chaowei Power, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an entrusted loan agreement with CITIC Trust Co.,
Ltd. (“CITIC Trust”), a fiduciary company incorporated in the PRC,
on 17 December 2012 (the “Chisen Entrusted Loan Agreement”),
pursuant to which, Chaowei Power, through CITIC Trust, would
provide the entrusted loan of RMB200 million (the “Chisen
Entrusted Loan”) to Chisen Electric, a company established in the
PRC with limited liability which was held as to 98% by Zhejiang
Chisen Electric Co., Ltd (“Zhejiang Chisen”) and 2% by Mr. Xu
Kecheng as at the date of the Chisen Entrusted Loan Agreement,
for a term of three years.

The Chisen Entrusted Loan is charged at a fixed rate of interest
of 8% per annum.

Chisen Electric shall repay not less than 25%, 50% and 75% of
the outstanding principal under the Chisen Entrusted Loan on
or before the expiry of the 27th, 30th and 33rd months from the
date of the Chisen Entrusted Loan, with balance repayable in full
upon expiry of the Chisen Entrusted Loan. As at 31 December
2014, Chaowei Power has released an amount of RMB160
million (31 December 2013: RMB74 million) to Chisen Electric
pursuant to the Chisen Entrusted Loan Agreement.

23. EWER

(a)

RTERBRIHFERAT(E
BREFHNETER
RZFE—=—F+=—A+tH &
NA—REEMBARIBEE
B E—RKRAP BRI
AARFEELERETAA
([FEEEDIL—BEZAER
W ((ERELERBE]) &
I BEERGSE BT EEEH
—ERFPERINER AT S E
BER(REBRZAERBERHA
AMIERBERERAR(HIIE
B ) RBRFREREED BIEE8%
F2%) Fefit A R #200,000,0007T
MWETEXR(EBRZAER])
AH=F -

S BB ERIEE T B 8%HF
Y% o

ERERENERZAERAH
MEFE27EA - FOBAKE
BEAEMZBHZAEET
DR 25% ~ 50% K& 75% M) B Bk
ZAEFETHAREERSE -
HERN ERZAEFE MR
HEE BE_ZT—HNE+_A
=+—8 BRERCHREER
ZAERHERESRERERLY
AR #160,000,0007T 8y & 58 (=
T—=F+_"fA=+—0: HA
R#74,000,0007T) °
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23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Entrusted loan granted to Chisen Electric Jiangsu Co., Ltd
(“Chisen Electric”) (continued)

Guarantee and security of the Entrusted Loan

Chisen Electric and Zhejiang Chisen would assume joint and
several obligations regarding the repayment of the principal and
interest of the Chisen Entrusted Loan, in addition to which, the
full repayment of the principal and the interest of the Chisen
Entrusted Loan would be secured by:

@

a pledge of 98% equity interest in the Chisen Electric by
Zhejiang Chisen for a term commencing from the date of
approval of such pledge by the competent governmental
authority up to expiry of the limitation period for action
by CITIC Trust under (i) the loan agreement entered into
between CITIC Trust and Chisen Electric in relation to
the Chisen Entrusted Loan dated 17 December 2012
(“Loan Agreement”) and (i) the joint payment agreement
dated 17 December 2012 entered into between Chisen
Electric, Zhejiang Chisen and CITIC Trust in relation to
the repayment of the Chisen Entrusted Loan (the “Joint
Payment Agreement”);

a pledge of 100% equity interest in Zhejiang Chisen by
Fast More Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liabilities, which was wholly-owned by
Chisen Electric Corporation, a Nevada corporation in the
United States, which was beneficially owned as to 65.8%
by Mr. Xu Kecheng as at the date of the Entrusted Loan
Agreement, for the period up to expiry of the limitation
period for action by CITIC Trust under the Loan Agreement
and the Joint Payment Agreement;

floating charges over the current and future inventory of
each of the Chisen Electric and Zhejiang Chisen for the
period up to expiry of the limitation period for action by
CITIC Trust under the Loan Agreement and the Joint
Payment Agreement;
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23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Entrusted loan granted to Chisen Electric Jiangsu Co., Ltd
(“Chisen Electric”) (continued)

Guarantee and security of the Entrusted Loan (continued)

©)

chattel charges over all the machinery and equipment
of each of the Chisen Electric and Zhejiang Chisen for
the period up to expiry of the limitation period for action
by CITIC Trust under the Loan Agreement and the Joint
Payment Agreement; and

personal guarantee by Mr. Xu Kecheng, the ultimate
beneficial owner of the Chisen Electric, for a term of two
years from the expiry of the Loan Agreement and the Joint
Payment Agreement.

Other commitments of Chisen Electric

Chisen Electric has also agreed that, during the term of the
Chisen Entrusted Loan Agreement:

(@

it shall not increase its registered capital or total investment
in any form unless agreed by Chaowei Power in writing,
except for investment into Chisen Electric made by
Chaowei Power;

it shall accept investment proposals from Chaowei Power;

Chaowei Power shall have the right to appoint one director
to the board of directors of Chisen Electric; and

it shall amend its articles of association to confirm the
director appointment by Chaowei Power.

The aforesaid other commitments undertaken by Chisen Electric
only give Chaowei Power protective rights rather than significant
influence over Chisen Electric. As such, Chaowei Power does not
account for Chisen Electric as an associate.
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23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Entrusted loan granted to Zhejiang Zhenlong Power Co.,
Ltd. (“Zhejiang Zhenlong”)

Chaowei Power entered into five entrusted loan agreements
with Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Huzhou Branch (“Bank
of Communications”) on 15 January 2013, 5 February 2013, 19
February 2013 and 27 February 2013, respectively (the “Zhenlong
Entrusted Loan Agreements”), pursuant to which, Chaowei
Power, through Bank of Communications, would provide the
entrusted loans with an aggregate amount of RMB80 million (the
“Zhenlong Entrusted Loan”) to Zhejiang Zhenlong, a company
established in the PRC with limited liability and is 28.12% owned
by Chaowei Power which is accounted for as an associate of
the Group, with a maturity date on 26 December 2013. Chaowei
Power released in full of the entrusted loans of RMB80 million
to Zhejiang Zhenlong pursuant to the Zhenlong Entrusted Loan
Agreements during 2013. The Zhenlong Entrusted Loan is
charged at a fixed rate of interest of 8% per annum.

Security of the Zhenlong Entrusted Loan

The full repayment of the principal and the interest of the
Zhenlong Entrusted Loan would be secured by:

(i) a pledge of all the machinery and inventories by Zhejiang
Zhenlong;

(i)  a pledge of all the machinery and inventories by Xuzhou
Zhenlong Power Co., Ltd. (“Xuzhou Zhenlong”), a
subsidiary of Zhejiang Zhenlong; and

(i) a pledge of the buildings, land use right and all the
machinery by Huangshan Zhenlong Power Co., Ltd.
(“Huangshan Zhenlong”), a subsidiary of Zhejiang Zhenlong.

The Zhenlong Entrusted Loan Agreements were renewed on 26
December 2013 and the maturity date of Zhenlong Entrusted
Loan was extended to 26 December 2014 which was charged at
a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum and pledged by the same
assets as before. The Zhenlong Entrusted Loan was fully settled
on 26 December 2014.
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23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Entrusted loan granted to Changxing Tiandu Power Co.,
Ltd. (“Changxing Tiandu”)

Chaowei Power entered into two entrusted loan agreements
with Bank of Communications on 4 February 2013 and 25
February 2013 respectively (the “Tiandu Entrusted Loan
Agreements”), pursuant to which, Chaowei Power, through
Bank of Communications, will provide the entrusted loans with
an aggregate amount of RMB32 million (the “Tiandu Entrusted
Loan”) to Changxing Tiandu, an independent third-party
company established in the PRC with limited liability, with a
maturity date on 4 February 2014. Chaowei Power released in
full of the entrusted loans of RMB32 million to Changxing Tiandu
pursuant to the Tiandu Entrusted Loan Agreements during 2013.
The Tiandu Entrusted Loan was charged at a fixed rate of 8% per
annum.

Security of the Tiandu Entrusted Loan

The full repayment of the principal and the interest of the Tiandu
Entrusted Loan would be secured by:

(i) a pledge of inventories amounting to RMB33.3 million and
all machinery by Changxing Tiandu; and

(i)  a pledge of inventories amounting to RMB31.3 million by
Jiangsu Jinchangxing Power Co., Ltd (the “Jinchangxing”),
a related party of Changxing Tiandu.

The Tiandu Entrusted Loan was fully settled on 23 January 2014.

On 28 January 2014, Chaowei Power entered into a new
entrusted loan agreement with Bank of Communications,
pursuant to which, Chaowei Power, through Bank of
Communications, provided new entrusted loan of RMB32 million
to Changxing Tiandu with a maturity date on 27 January 2015,
which was charged at a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum and
pledged by the same assets as before. This entrusted loan was
fully settled on 26 November 2014.
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23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Entrusted loan granted to Changxing Tiandu Power Co.,
Ltd. (“Changxing Tiandu”) (continued)

On 26 November 2014, Chaowei Power entered into an
entrusted loan agreement with CITIC Trust, pursuant to which,
Chaowei Power, through CITIC Trust, provided entrusted loan of
RMB45 million (the “Tiandu 2014 Entrusted Loan”) to Changxing
Tiandu with a maturity date on 27 November 2015, which is
charged at a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum.

Guarantee and security of the Tiandu 2014 Entrusted Loan

Changxing Tiandu and Jinchangxing would assume joint and
several obligations regarding the repayment of the principal and
the interest of the Tiandu 2014 Entrusted Loan, in addition to
which, the full repayment of the principal and the interest of the
Tiandu 2014 Entrusted Loan is secured by:

(i) a pledge of 90% equity interest in the Changxing Tiandu;

(i)  apledge of 95% equity interest in the Jinchangxing;

(i) ~ floating charges over the current and future inventories of
Changxing Tiandu and Jinchangxing;

(iv)  chattel charges over all the machinery and equipment of
Changxing Tiandu and Jinchangxing; and

(v} personal guarantee by Mr. Shen Shaoping, the ultimate
benefical owner of Changxing Tiandu.
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23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Entrusted loan granted to Mingguang Changxing Power
Co., Ltd. (“Mingguang Changxing”)

Chaowei Power entered into two entrusted loan agreements with
Anhui Mingguang Minfeng County Bank (“Minfeng Bank”) on 7
July 2014 and 21 October 2014 respectively (the “Mingguang
Entrusted Loan Agreements”), pursuant to which, Chaowei
Power, through Minfeng Bank, would provide the entrusted loans
with an aggregate amount of RMB15 million (the “Mingguang
Entrusted Loan”) to Mingguang Changxing, an independent third-
party company established in the PRC with limited liability, with a
maturity date on 6 July 2015 and 20 October 2015 respectively,
Chaowei Power released in full of the entrusted loans of RMB15
million to Mingguang Changxing pursuant to the Mingguang
Entrusted Loan Agreements during 2014. The Mingguang
Entrusted Loan is charged at a fixed rate of 8% per annum.

Security of the Mingguang Entrusted Loan

The full repayment of the principal and the interest of the
Mingguang Entrusted Loan would be secured by a pledge of
inventories of RMB35,102,000 by Mingguang Changxing.

Entrusted loan granted to Changxing Yongcheng Power
Co., Ltd. (“Changxing Yongcheng”)

On 26 November 2014, Chaowei Power entered into an
entrusted loan agreement with CITIC Trust, pursuant to which,
Chaowei Power, through CITIC Trust, provided entrusted loan of
RMB5 million (the “Yongcheng Entrusted Loan”) to Changxing
Yongcheng with a maturity date on 29 November 2015, which is
charged at a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum.
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23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(e)

U]

Entrusted loan granted to Changxing Yongcheng Power
Co., Ltd. (“Changxing Yongcheng”) (continued)

Guarantee and security of the Yongcheng Entrusted Loan

The full repayment of the principal and the interest of the
Yongcheng Entrusted Loan is secured by:

(i) a pledge of 60% equity interest in the Changxing
Yongcheng;

(i)  chattel charges over all the machinery and equipment of
Changxing Yongcheng; and

(i)  personal guarantee by Mr. Zou Yongshun, the ultimate
beneficial owner of the Changxing Yongcheng.

Entrusted loan granted to Huangshan Zhenlong

On 26 November 2014, Chaowei Power entered into an
entrusted loan agreement with CITIC Trust, pursuant to which,
Chaowei Power, through CITIC Trust, will provide the entrusted
loan of RMB50 million (the “Huangshan Zhenlong Entrusted
Loan”) to Huangshan Zhenlong for a term of three years.

The Huangshan Zhenlong Entrusted Loan is charged at a fixed
rate of interest of 8% per annum.

As at 31 December 2014, Chaowei Power released an amount
of RMB2.5 million to Huangshan Zhenlong.

Guarantee and security of the Huangshan Zhenlong Entrusted
Loan

Huangshan Zhenlong, Xuzhou Zhenlong and Zhejiang Zhenlong
would assume joint and several obligations regarding the
repayment of the principal and the interest of the Huangshan
Zhenlong Entrusted Loan, in addition to which, the full repayment
of the principal and the interest of the Huangshan Zhenlong
Entrusted Loan is secured by:

(i) floating charges over the current and future inventory of
Huangshan Zhenlong, Xuzhou Zhenlong and Zhejiang
Zhenlong; and
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23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

Entrusted loan granted to Huangshan Zhenlong (continued)

Guarantee and security of the Huangshan Zhenlong Entrusted
Loan (continued)

(i)  chattel charges over all the machinery and equipment of
Huangshan Zhenlong, Xuzhou Zhenlong and Zhejiang
Zhenlong.

Entrusted loan granted to Xuzhou Zhenlong

On 26 November 2014, Chaowei Power entered into an
entrusted loan agreement with CITIC Trust, pursuant to which,
Chaowei Power, through CITIC Trust, will provide the entrusted
loan of RMB30 million (the “Xuzhou Zhenlong Entrusted Loan”) to
Xuzhou Zhenlong for a term of three years.

The Xuzhou Zhenlong Entrusted Loan is charged at a fixed rate
of interest of 8% per annum.

As at 31 December 2014, Chaowei Power has released an
amount of RMB2.5 million to Xuzhou Zhenlong.

Guarantee and security of the Xuzhou Zhenlong Entrusted
Loan

Xuzhou Zhenlong and Zhejiang Zhenlong would assume joint and
several obligations regarding the repayment of the principal and
the interest of the Xuzhou Zhenlong Entrusted Loan, in addition
to which, the full repayment of the principal and the interest of
the Xuzhou Zhenlong Entrusted Loan is secured by:

(i) floating charges over the current and future inventories of
Xuzhou Zhenlong and Zhejiang Zhenlong; and

(i)  chattel charges over all the machinery and equipment of
Xuzhou Zhenlong and Zhejiang Zhenlong.
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23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Set out below are the summary of various entrusted loans:

24,

23.

W ER (&)

TXBHNSEERTEER

2014 2013
—F-mF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBFIT
Chisen Entrusted Loan ERETEK 160,000 74,000
Zhenlong Entrusted Loan RELZTEER = 80,000
Tiandu Entrusted Loan REEZFEER = 32,000
Tiandu 2014 Entrusted Loan R —T—MFETLERK 45,000 -
Mingguang Entrusted Loan AXEEERK 15,000 -
Yongcheng Entrusted Loan KMETLER 5,000 -
Huangshan Zhenlong Entrusted Loan HILREZTER 2,500 -
Xuzhou Zhenlong Entrusted Loan RMNRBEZTER 2,500 -
230,000 186,000
Analysis for reporting purposes as: MBEENDITE

Current assets TRENAE 225,000 112,000
Non-current assets EMENEE 5,000 74,000
230,000 186,000

INVENTORIES 24. BE
2014 2013
—E—-mEF ZE—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBFIT
Raw materials R 303,204 311,125
Work in progress ERHS 1,314,901 967,148
Finished goods SURK o 104,562 183,353
1,722,667 1,461,626
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. EWEZERER

2014 2013

—E—-mF —E—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBT T

Trade receivables FEUNE S8R0 658,380 489,716
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o REREME (34,465) (24,777)
623,915 464,939

The Group normally allows a credit period of 15 days to its trade
customers with good trading history, or otherwise sales on cash terms
are required.

The aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful
debts presented based on the goods delivery date, which is the same
as revenue recognition date, at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

REE—RAZHLHERIFHFT PR
16RMEEH - BRAIHEIREET -

REEHRERE - MRRRBRFERAE
WE ZRFRA KRR D ITIRRE B & (A
WAFERRED 25180 ¢

2014 2013

—ZT-mF —T=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTT

0-15 days 0-15H 140,570 167,736
16 — 90 days 16 - 90H 326,302 227,946
91 - 180 days 91-180H 121,311 42,297
181 - 365 days 181 - 365H 35,732 26,960
623,915 464,939

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will internally assess
the credit quality of the potential customer and define appropriate
credit limits.

Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade receivables
and considers the trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired to be of a good credit quality.

FEERMEMFZLA - NEE AL
HEXFPNEEER  YETEAHNE
EMREE -

EEERTERENEZERFNEEE
% BRAKRIBPEVEREENEKE
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The aged analysis of trade receivables which are past due but not

25. EWE SRR (&)
E R HERRE R U E 2R R D

impaired is as follows: WTF
2014 2013
—T—lmF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT
16 — 90 days 16 -90H 326,302 227,946
91 - 180 days 91 -180H 121,311 42,297
181 - 365 days 181 - 365H 35,732 26,960
483,345 297,203

The Group does not hold any collateral over those balances which are
past due but not impaired.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables, with exposure spread over a large number of counter
parties and customers.

Impairment for trade receivables over credit period are provided for
based on estimated irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods,
determined by reference to past default experience and objective

evidences of impairment.

Details of trade receivables pledged are set out in Note 44.

Movements in allowance for trade receivables during the year:

REBHZEFC R MERBRENHRIL
BB EER

AEENRNE FERYL EEAISEE
AR - BRAREARHRSHFR
B -

AEBE2ZRERRCHERZHRER
B EETHEE M TR ESKIE - B
HBIBE & M e K E Z ARG PR E B
e

EEFEWRE SRANFBIRHANE
44

FARRKE ZEREEZE -

2014 2013

—E-OF —E-=fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBFIT

At beginning of the year F4 24,777 13,500
Provided for the year FANEE 9,688 11,277
At end of the year FR 34,465 24,777

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group
reassesses the credit quality of the trade receivables since the credit
was granted and up to the end of the reporting period. Based on
the historical experience of the Group, the directors of the Company
believe that no further allowance is required.

EHERWE SRR W RIS -
AEBEFFEHRLEEEEERS
HaRFNERESREFEELER - R
BAKENBELR  ARREZHE
WEEHE - FRENTFE
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26. BILLS RECEIVABLE 26. EWEE

2014 2013
—ZT—lmF —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBFIT
Bills receivable AN 775,809 762,022
The aged analysis of bills receivable presented based on the issue date PR B4R - R E IR IR A

at the end of the reporting period is as follows: HIRREC DATLA T :
2014 2013
—E—mEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARBFIT
0 - 90 days 0-90H 389,311 385,112
91 — 180 days 90-180H 386,498 376,910
775,809 762,022

TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 27. BESREE

27.

The following were the Group’s financial assets as at 31 December
2014 that were transferred to suppliers by endorsing those bills
receivable to suppliers on a full recourse basis. As the Group has
not transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to these bills
receivable, it continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the bills
receivable and the corresponding trade payables in the consolidated
statement of financial position accordingly. These financial assets are
carried at amortised cost in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position.

As at 31 December 2014

Bills receivable
discounted
to banks with

UTHASERE_T-—NFE+_A
=t— Eﬁﬂ&%ﬁk%%ﬁ%ﬁ%%
EHtHZERREBRRHERERNS
BEE - mﬁﬁﬁgiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁ
WEREBERNEARR K DR - K&
Eﬁ%mﬁﬁé%ﬁ%%%@ﬁ%ﬁw
EREENREEREBNENE S K
Ko WEREERBHRANAEE
HAR B M ISR R WFIBR o

BE-F-ME+-A=t-8
Bills receivable

endorsed to
suppliers with

full recourse full recourse Total
D2EEREE LE2EBEREREE
EERITRYIE K A ERTRE Y
FEWEE W EE #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T T AR¥T T
Carrying amount of transferred IR
assets BREE 19,591 302,834 322,425
Carrying amount of associated EHABERN
liabilities BREE (19,591) (302,834) (322,425)

Net position JRER
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27. TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 27. BESHMEEGE)
As at 31 December 2013 BHE—_Z—=F+-A=+—8H

Bills receivable
endorsed to
suppliers with

full recourse Total
NEHEBRERE
A R Y
e 45
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Carrying amount of transferred assets EERAEMNREE 156,707 156,707
Carrying amount of associated liabilities BRAaENEREE (156,707) (156,707)
Net position JFEE = =
In addition, included in the bills receivable as at 31 December 2014 o RZFE—mFE+=ZA=1+—8 -
was an amount of approximately RMB18,306,000 (31 December 2013: JEW E BB & 4 A K 18,306,000 7T
RMB13,247,000) which was endorsed with full recourse to third party “E-—=F+-A=1+—H: HAR
suppliers as deposits paid for purchase of machinery and payments for #13,247,00070) A 2 HEB R EERF
construction in progress. The Group continues to recognise the bills =HHER L ERBEERRAMNIES
receivable in the consolidated statement of financial position. MERTIBRMNRK -  AEBGEENLRE

MR RHER KR -

28. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. FEMNMERHMEWRIE
An analysis of prepayments and other receivables is as follows: T FRIE R E A EYGRIBO AT T
2014 2013
—F-mF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREET T

Other receivables HAb fE U FRIE 357,541 228,054
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B B AL EYGRIER

on other receivables REREAE (12,423) (6,110)

345,118 222,944

Prepayments to suppliers TB L FER B KT8 213,783 189,052

558,901 411,996
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28. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. FAIRIERHEMEWRIE(E)

29.

(CONTINUED)

An analysis of other receivables is as follows:

Hitb RUGRIADHTEAT

2014 2013

—E—mEF —ET-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥EF T AREBT T

Value-added tax recoverable EIEE =Y 244,940 190,070
Income tax recoverable AR E TS L 62,168 -
Interest receivable on entrusted loans FEREZEE A8 3,409 1,909
Prepayments to employees TEfTE B 5IE 15,952 19,287
Deposits B"& 8,917 5,150
Others Hi 22,155 11,638
357,541 228,054

Movements in allowance for other receivables during the year:

FA - HtEERRREZEIT

2014 2013
—E—MEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETTT
At beginning of the year REA) 5,110 2,720
Provided for the year F NS 7,313 2,390
At end of the year FR 12,423 5,110
HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 29. BEEERE
Held-for-trading investments include: FHEEBEREPRE
2014 2013
—F-mF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFIT
Listed securities: S
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — RBEBLMHRAES 8,514 3,182
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30. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES 30.

31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR RE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—ZFT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

AND CASH

Restricted bank deposits represent the Group’s bank deposits pledged
to banks to secure certain facilities granted to the Group by banks.

The restricted bank deposits carry market interest rate of 0.35% per
annum as at 31 December 2014 (2013: 0.35%).

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less which are held with banks
and carry interest at prevailing market rate.

Bank balances and cash at 31 December 2014 were mainly
denominated in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in the
international market. The exchange rate of RMB is determined by the
Government of the PRC and the remittance of these funds out of the
PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the Government of
the PRC.

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade
purchases and ongoing costs. The Group normally settles its trade
payables within 30 days from the material receiving date.

Included in the balance of trade payables as at 31 December 2014
of RMB302,834,000 (31 December 2013: RMB156,707,000) aged
within 180 days has been settled by endorsed bills receivable but not
matured at the end of the reporting period (see Note 27).

31.

ZRHEBITERRBITERRR
&
REHIRITEREASEER TRITH
RITER  (ERBITARAKER LS
TRIEHER -

R-ZE—ME+-A=+—08 ' ZRH
RITEFEREMSEMNEIBB (R =
—=%%:0.35%):t 8 °

RITHERMREBRS MRIYA L=
18 A 3k PA AR B9 78 BT SRARRK - Bl sk
TFRURNERTT - WER ISR R -

RZZFE—MOFE+=A=+—8 ' RT74
BEREFEUARETE  MARKE
RAF BB TIS FERERER -
HEXRTBIBNET - MEEHRES
E H P B 78 52 R B BUR B e B SN RR 1]
PR

P B Z B
ENESEREIBZRANNZZER K
FERA - ARE— KRR EHRE R
HIRES0H WBERNE HERNK -

R-Z—NFE+=-—A=+—08 BI&Z
SEFEEHR 2R - BRERTT180B LAY
AR 302,834,000 ( ZE—=F+=
A=+—8 : AR¥156,707,0007T)E
KB B ERKREREE - BERSH
LE R R AR BB (R =E27) -
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31. TRADE PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 31. ENEZERME)

The aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the material NEREHIERE - BN E SERIZEM

receiving date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: AUE R ERERER DT T ¢
2014 2013
—F-mF —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETTT
0 - 30 days 0-30H 476,807 391,823
31 - 90 days 31-90H 166,463 130,585
91 — 180 days 91 -180H 240,013 145,788
181 — 365 days 181 - 365H 49,895 59,707
1 -2 years 1-2% 23,310 29,135
Over 2 years BI2F 4,132 3,020
960,620 760,058

32. BILLS PAYABLE 32. ENEE
The aged analysis of bills payable presented based on the issue date PR BRAE R - BN ERIRE L A
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BIBRES DATEAT

2014 2013
—F-MmF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
0 —-90 days 0-90H 283,840 69,650
91-180 days 91 -180H 91,265 21,520
375,105 91,170
All the bills payable are of trading nature and will mature within six FIERNEEYBR S HEEWiGHED

months from the issue date. A ERBET /& A A EIE] -



Annual Report 2014 F 3§ Chaowei Power Holdings Limited 2R 2 D12 ER A 7 1 55

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—ZFT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

33. OTHER PAYABLES 33. HfttfENRKIA

An analysis of other payables is as follows: EAEARIEAITAT

2014 2013
—E—MEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T
Deposits received from distributors and others  #¢ 5 #8575 K E fth 5 B UKER VIR & 107,666 165,964
Accrued commission fEsHRS 68,058 81,640
Other payables H fth FEAH K08 203,963 181,389
Interest payable on Corporate Bonds (Note 38)  fEfI1b % &5 5 & (HI3E38) 18,709 -
Advance from customers TR E P 5IE 337,837 339,528
Accrued payroll and welfare EstEHE RAER 92,084 80,579
Other tax payables H b pEAHIE 19,943 30,052
848,260 879,152

34. DEFERRED INCOME 34. EEEWA
Arising from
government
grants
REBUFHB
RMB’000
ARET T
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—HF—H 68,129
Additions B 55,880
Release to income (Note 6) T AMA (FF5E6) (2,860)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%+-A=+—H 121,149
Additions NE 38,840
Release to income (Note 6) FEABA (M 5E6) (6,430)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NF+_HA=+—H 153,559

KB ERIT B AR E R A SE s B A &
EE T 0B A R A L b R Sk AR P
ESNBUFMAEA - REaMBRRRA

Deferred income arising from government grants represents the
government subsidies obtained in relation to the acquisition of land
use right or equipment of certain subsidiaries of the Group, which were
included in the consolidated statement of financial position as deferred BRAREWA - SWABEER THE A
income and credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the FE 2 B R E R A (E A F BT AR
lease term of the land use right or the useful life of the equipment. o
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35.

36.

PROVISION 35. e
2014 2013
—2-mE —T—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARBFIT
At beginning of year NG 361,245 246,356
Provision for the year FANEE 583,979 483,599
Utilisation of provision ERREE (503,696) (368,710)
At end of year R 441,528 361,245

The warranty provision represents management’s best estimate of
the Group’s liability within fifteen months’ warranty granted on motive
battery products, based on prior experience for defective products.

BANK BORROWINGS

REBRBREERNBERMESR  AKE
EEREEHYHELERRETREAR
FBFTEER ERREME ©

36. RITEE

2014 2013
—=E—mEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
Secured bank borrowings BEBRITEE 851,172 910,144
Unsecured bank borrowings mIKIRRTITIEE 1,593,798 1,016,450
2,444,970 1,926,594
The borrowings are repayable as follows: ARUTFHEENEE
Within one year —FE R 1,926,170 1,300,644
More than one year, but not —FE P HETHBBMRE
exceeding two years 347,200 385,950
More than two years but not exceeding MELA L ETBBRASF
five years 171,600 240,000
2,444,970 1,926,594
Less: Amount due for settlement within one year i : 7B —FRNEE
and shown under current liabilities 2HRRE A EHRIE (1,926,170) (1,300,644)
Amount due after one year — BB HIR B 518,800 625,950
Total borrowings wEs
— at fixed rates —TE 1,598,172 1,450,594
— at floating rates —FB 846,798 476,000
2,444,970 1,926,594
Analysis of borrowings by currency: BEREEE DI
— denominated in RMB —UAREE 2,397,422 1,888,850
— denominated in HK$ — OB TTATE 47,548 37,744
2,444,970 1,926,594
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BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Fixed interest rate borrowings were charged at the rates ranging from
3.85% to 7.20% (2013: from 3.86% to 8.88%) per annum for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Interest on RMB borrowings at floating rates is calculated based on the
borrowing rates announced by the People’s Bank of China. Floating
interest rate borrowings were charged at the rates ranging from 5.54%
to 7.40% (2013: from 5.54% to 6.77%) per annum for the year ended
31 December 2014. Interests on HK$ borrowings at floating rates are
charged at 2.75% over 3 months Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate.

Details of pledge of assets for the Group’s secured bank borrowings
are set out in Note 44.

SHORT TERM FINANCING NOTE

Pursuant to the registration of Zhong Shi Xie Zhu [2013] No. CP10 (#
M i7E[2013]CP105%) in the National Association of Financial Market
Institutional Investors, Chaowei Power issued a short term financing
note (the “Financing Note”) with principal amount of RMB400,000,000
on 26 February 2013. The Financing Note was unsecured, carrying a
fixed interest rate of 4.90% per annum and would be repayable after
one year from the date of issue. The Financing Note was fully repaid by
Chaowei Power on 26 February 2014.

On 24 January 2014, Chaowei Power issued another short term
financing note (the “2014 Financing Note”) with a principle amount
of RMB200,000,000 under the same registration as set out in the
preceding paragraph. The 2014 Financing Note was unsecured,
carrying a fixed interest rate of 7.70% per annum and would be
repayable after one year from the date of issue. The 2014 Financing
Note was fully repaid by Chaowei Power on 15 January 2015.

CORPORATE BONDS

On 14 August 2014, Chaowei Power issued a six-year term corporate
bonds (the “Corporate Bonds”) in the PRC with a principal amount of
RMB600,000,000. The interest rate of the Corporate Bonds is 7.98%
per annum for the first three years, up to 13 August 2017. At the end
of the third year, on 13 August 2017, the bonds holders have a right to
redeem all or part of the Corporate Bonds to Chaowei Power at its face
value and Chaowei Power has a right to adjust upward the interest
rate of the Corporate Bonds from a range of 1-100 basis points (both
fingers inclusive). The Company has provided an irrevocable guarantee
on the entire principal amount and interest of the Corporate Bonds.

36.

37.

38.

RITEE(HE)

HE_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HIEF
E EREEENT3.85%E7.20% (=
T—=14F : N F3.86%%8.88% ) {4 Fl|

SHEX

FEARBEENFEEFREARRET
NENEENERFAE - HE-T—NF
+—A=1+—HILFE  FEEEEN
T554%ZE7.40%(ZZE—=F : N F
5.54%%6.77%) KIFEF KB o 2 BB
TEEF EE3E A BBRITRER
B2.75%tHE -

AEBEEFRTEENEERTFS
BT EE44 o

EFHmER

BRENFERTEARZMEX A0S
B AR 1 17E[2013]CP103R FRE 1 - #B L
BRR-_E—=F A= +BABETAR
%% A A R #400,000,000 7T 7 52 B &t
BEER(RERE]) - EZRWEIE
1 HREEFFEL490%:T B KGR E
TRERE —FRER - BEERER
—E-MFE A+ HBEEERE

R-ZE—NEF—A=-+WNB BEE
RETS—HESREZEE([=ZZ
—MOFEREZER])  AeFEAARE
200,000,0007T -+ &F ff 4R 5i% B2 Ay B2 P &
EHRE  —E—NFERMEEE AER
o RETEFENET.70%:T 8 - WAER
BEITHHR—FEEER - BRERES
RZE—RAF—A+HAATBEEE_Z
—OFREEE -

hEFESH
R=_ZF—MFENA+TE - BEERR
f BB 1T AR & %8 A A R 600,000,000
TZNFHEXES([REEE]) -
TEEHFE-FHFFERE798% &
E_Z—+tFN\A+T=HL -RE=
K RZFE—tFN\A+=8 " BEFH
BAERELREEREREIRED 23K
HEEES  MEBREREELAGE
BHEHFE - LA F1-100E 2 (BT
BRHET)AR - ARRBEREEESH
ZEREA S R SR EN A E 2
R o
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39. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 39. AERRES

On 24 September 2012, the Company issued a United State Dollar
(“US$”) settled 7.25% convertible bonds due 2017 in an aggregate
principal amount of RMB633,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”). The
Convertible Bonds are listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited. The net proceeds from the issue of Convertible Bonds are
mainly used to fund future expansions of production capacities of the
Group, the upgrade of production facilities, debt repayment, selective
acquisitions and other general corporate purposes.

The Convertible Bonds constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated
and unsecured obligations of the Company, and shall at all times rank
pari passu and without any preference or priority among themselves.

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds are as follows:

(@) Conversion right

The conversion right attaching to any Convertible Bonds may
be exercised, at the option of the holder thereof, at any time on
and after 4 November 2012 up to the close of business (at the
place where the certificate evidencing such bonds is deposited
for conversion) on 17 September 2017 or, if such bonds shall
have been called for redemption by the Company before 24
September 2017 (the “Maturity Date”), then up to the close of
business (at the place aforesaid) on a date no later than seven
business days (both days inclusive and in the place aforesaid)
prior to the date fixed for redemption thereof, or if notice requiring
redemption has been given by the holder of such bonds, then up
to the close of business (at the place aforesaid) on the day prior
to the giving of such notice.

The number of shares to be issued on conversion of the
Convertible Bonds will be determined by dividing the RMB
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds to be converted
(translated into HK$ at the fixed exchange rate of RMB0.8165 =
HK$1.00) by the Conversion Price (as defined below) in effect at
the conversion date.

R-ZZE——FAA-+MA - KAQF]EE
IR & B8 A AR ¥633,000,0007T A
EL((ETHAEER T —FHHL
7.25[E AR ES ([ AT ARG S |) o 7]
BRRESRIINEBEZSAER AR
T o BITAIMRE S B PTG FIRF R
FEARRBBRBAAEEZER - &
MEHAERE  BEF - BERERERE
th—RAFARREES

SR ESBRARR —REE - B
- FREREEIFORY SRR
B2 BNEMR RS EE RS A -
WEBEBFRFHEIEZD

AR ESNHEZHEROT

(a) HEHfaE
ARREFNIFEATEEN
T——_F+—AMBRNUEER
ZE—EFNATEREEER
BRBIE(AFRZESESFBRE
RS E MBS R ET) - SRS
BEHFER-_ZT—+tFNA=-THA
(TEEAR DATE WA R R BRE
Bl - RlE ZTERIEEE D B
AICESEB (RIEERMRRIA
it BRI ) & R B AR A
LECBA bl st BREF R 1) - ki
BESFFHBEARE L ERED
AA EERHZBEMAT—H
EEERFREA R A LE (DA il BE R
FEIET) + PR T{E BT pE AE fr] PTIRAR
BEH A ERIRRE o

EE el R EHF BT R HD &
B 755 B T E R e AT RARE
HFIARBARSRE(RETEEEA
R#¥0.816570=1.00/8 L L1 &
VST ) BR LA B BRI B2 EIR(E
(EER TR -
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39. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

Conversion right (continued)

The price at which shares will be issued upon conversion (the
“Conversion Price”) will initially be HK$5.20 per share, but will
be subject to adjustment for, among other things, consolidation,
reclassification or subdivision, capitalization of profit or reserves,
distributions, rights issues of shares or options over shares,
dividend adjustments and other dilutive events. In the opinion
of the director of the Company, the adjustments to Conversion
Price in those circumstances are all for anti-dilutive purpose to
protect the right of bondholders. In 2013, an adjustment had
been made to the conversion price from HK$5.20 per share to
HK$4.93 per share as a result of the dividends paid. During the
year, an adjustment had been made to the conversion price from
HK$4.93 per share to HK$4.76 per share as during the current
year, a final dividend of RMB0.093 per share in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2013 was declared.

Final redemption

Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and
cancelled, the Company will redeem the Convertible Bonds on
the Maturity Date at the US$ equivalent of their RMB principal
amount together with accrued and unpaid interest thereon. All
amounts due under, and all claims arising out of or pursuant
to, the Convertible Bonds, and/or the trust deed (as amended
or supplemented from time to time, the “Trust Deed”) from
or against the Company shall be payable and settled in US$
equivalent of the RMB amount only.

39. ARIRES ()

(a)

(b)

ERE(E)

HEmimg T EITHKRG EBS
(EBHRE ) EHH 5] BE&S5.20
BT BT EIBEAN TAE
(EBiE) : ROEN  EFH
IR - FRSREEE R
A AR R EERE - A
fREREMEBEEIR - ARFE
ERR - EXFBATELOE
REFEHAREEMIEL - A
REBHFIZEANER - RZF
—=F  ARRIRE - ERE
EHEREN5.208TTARAE
M&A 1D 4.93 7T < £ - ARA
EEEREBE_ZE—=5+_A8
=t+—HIEFERARETRR
HAREE0.093 7 - BIRBEEHE
& % 17 4.93 7 7T A B R/ TR AR 15
4.7678TT °

RERM

FRIFFESERE - BB E Kt
WA ES - BRAIARR AR
BHEREARBREENTTE
BERLERFT RANOFER
FIMEBE AR E S - AR
BEHER SEARE(ETRE
Rl - [ERERE])ETAR
A& Y P8 3R I P EE A Bk IR
HRARRBERN—IIRE - &
AABEERARBFBENETX
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39. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Redemption at the option of the Company

At any time after 24 September 2015 and prior to the Maturity
Date, the Company may, having given not less than 30 nor more
than 60 days’ notice to the bondholders and the trustee, redeem
all, but not some only, of the Convertible Bonds at the US$
equivalent of their RMB principal amount together with interest
accrued on such redemption date, provided, however, that no
such redemption may be made unless the closing price of the
shares (as derived from the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange) translated into RMB at the prevailing rate applicable to
the relevant trading day, for each of 20 consecutive trading days,
the last of which occurs not more than 30 days prior to the date
of such notice, was at least 130% of the Conversion Price then
in effect, translated into RMB at the fixed rate of RMB0.8165 =
HK$1.00.

The Company may, on giving not less than 30 nor more than 60
days’ notice to the trustee and the bondholders, redeem all, but
not some only, of the Convertible Bonds at the US$ equivalent
of their RMB principal amount together with interest accrued
on such redemption date if at any time, prior to the date the
relevant notice is given, at least 90% in principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds has already been converted, redeemed or
purchased and cancelled.

Redemption at the option of the bondholders

On 24 September 2015, the holders of the Convertible Bonds will
have the right, at such holders’ option, to require the Company to
redeem all or some only of the Convertible Bonds of such holders
at the US$ equivalent of their RMB principal amount together
with interest accrued to such date. As the Company does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the Convertible
Bonds in more than twelve months from the end of 2014, the
entire balance of liability component of the Convertible Bonds
was classified as current liabilities as at 31 December 2014.
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39. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

(e)

Negative Pledge

The Company has, among other things, also undertaken that, so
long as any Convertible Bonds remain outstanding (as defined in
the Trust Deed), the Company will not, and will ensure that none
of its subsidiaries will, create or have outstanding, any mortgage,
charge, pledge, lien or other security interest, upon the whole
or any part of their respective present or future undertaking,
assets or revenues (including any uncalled capital) to secure any
Relevant Indebtedness (as defined below), without at the same
time or prior thereto according to the Convertible Bonds the
same security as is created or subsisting to secure any relevant
indebtedness, or any guarantee or indemnity in respect of any
such Relevant Indebtedness as either (i) the trustee shall in its
absolute discretion deem not materially less beneficial to the
interests of the holder of the Convertible Bonds or (i) shall be
approved by an extraordinary resolution (as defined in the Trust
Deed) of holders of the Convertible Bonds.

For the purpose of the negative pledge as described above,
“relevant indebtedness” means any indebtedness which is in
the form of, or represented or evidenced by, bonds, notes,
debentures, loan stock, bearer participation certificates,
depositary receipts, certificates of deposit or other similar
securities or instruments which for the time being are, or are
intended to be or are capable of being, quoted, listed, dealt in
or traded on any stock exchange or over-the-counter or other
securities market.

39. ARIRES ()

(e)

TR
ARFINE (Reh @ iE) A - 14
TR AR R (ER R
fERRE)  ADTASETEY
TR PN e e
A2 MR THHRA AR R
£75 - AERUS (REEARE
BB ) 38T S A AE (T HRS -
W ER - BEELEBER
HES A BE IR (R AT
SO + B R —# R
2 AR 8 AT 4 AR 3 0 AR
40 S LR — A E A (T
EREEOER - ARETRS
HEBR A TS R B (R R
MOEEASEBERATRES
B BT H0R O 5 A B2
() BAE T RS 5 45 A LA 5
KR (R RS E -

s R ERERT S - [HEREE
BlEEA KREBLEEFER
BRfEr ZE - E#EE  E8
EE - TRELEES - Tl
B FREHEMBUESFEX
BOEAER - EREEAES
RBARGIR R EMEHT
B £ BERRS 0 %
THSREMIEL S EA AR o



/I 62 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited B E 2 hiZRER A F

Annual Report 2014 F 3§

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRAME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT—NF+-A=+—HIFE

39. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

(e)

Negative Pledge (continued)

The net proceeds received from the issue of the Convertible
Bonds have been split between a liability component and an
equity component in its initial recognition as follows:

U

(i)

Liability component is initially measured at fair value
amounted to approximately RMB570,891,000, which
represents the present value of the contractually determined
stream of future cash flows discounted at the prevailing
market interest rate at that time applicable to instruments
of comparable credit status and providing substantially the
same cash flows, on the same terms, with the bondholder
redemption option but without the conversion option. It
is subsequently measured at amortised cost by applying
an effective interest rate of 10.55% per annum after
considering the effect of the transaction costs;

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
economic characteristics and risks of the early redemption
options are closely related to the host debt contract of
the Convertible Bonds. Therefore, the Company does not
account for the early redemption options separately; and

Equity component, which is equal to the difference between
the net proceeds received and the fair value of the liability
component, amounted to approximately RMB62,109,000.

39. ARIRES ()

THEMRRE (F)

BT MARES Z SRR FER
RFHERE DR REELRD R
BeAER Sy - P

(e)

(i)

(iii)

BEBIZVERAFE
HEZHEORARE

570,891,0007C * BIRES
NETHARRREREAE
BEACRARE R TRt
HRARESRENTEZRE
RIS R IZ AR 5
H(EBEHFEABRE
EREEIE N RIRERE) T
WHBE - £EEBRHHA
VR - HEERERER
BB T R 10.55% 1% # §4
AR 2

RAREERE  RFEEMD
RS R S R\ L T 40
REFHBETAHNERE
HHEAEY o AR R EAS
RPEREEIAR X

BENEE  TEORARE
62,109,0007T °



Annual Report 2014 F 3§ Chaowei Power Holdings Limited 2R 2 D12 ER A 7 1 63

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—ZFT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

39. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED) 39. TR ES(E)
The movements of the liability component and equity component of the ER - ABREREENBESD RIRAEE
Convertible Bonds for the year are set out below: DEVEEETIAT
Liability Equity
component component Total
=V [N st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETTT ARBTT ARBETT

As at 1 January 2013 R-ZZE—=%F—H—H 563,800 59,643 623,443
Interest charged for the year (Note 8) R E &4 #IF & (Mi3E8) 59,871 = 59,871
Interest paid 2FE (45,892) - (45,892)
As at 31 December 2013 R-E—=%+-_A=+—H 577,779 59,643 637,422
Interest charged for the year (Note 8)  FERNE B AEMF S (H:E8) 61,418 - 61,418
Interest paid DAHFE (45,892) = (45,892)
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NFE+_-_HA=+—H 593,305 59,643 652,948
No conversion or redemption of the Convertible Bonds has occurred BEEZTMFE+=-A=+—H #E
up to 31 December 2014, RS B[O A AR ES o
40. SHARE CAPITAL 40. &=
The details of the Company’s share capital are as follows: RARKIRAFEBAT -
Number Shares
of shares capital
BRHEE [
US$000
FET
Authorised: SEE
Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each BA%0.01 =LA E AR
At 31 December 2013 and —T—=F+"A=t+—8K
31 December 2014 —E—NmE+-A=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITREE :
Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each HAR0.01ETH L BN
At 31 December 2013 and —E—=F+"A=t+—HkK
31 December 2014 —ET—mNF+=-_A=+—H 1,005,290,000 10,053
RMB’000
ARBFIT

i3
514

Presented as pRER: 68,140
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41.

42,

RESERVES

Reserves of the Group other than retained earnings include statutory
surplus reserve, share premium, convertible bonds equity reserve and
other reserves, which form part of the equity holders’ equity.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the articles of association of all subsidiaries
established in the PRC, those subsidiaries are required to transfer
5% to 10% of the profit after taxation reported under the relevant
accounting policies and financial regulations in the PRC to the statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.
Transfer to this reserve must be made before distributing dividends to
equity owners. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up
previous year’s losses, expand the existing operations or convert into
additional capital of the subsidiaries.

Other reserves

Other reserves are mainly arising from (i) the difference between the fair
value of the consideration paid/received and the carrying amount of the
net assets acquired from/disposed to the non-controlling shareholders;
(i) equity-settled share-based payment transactions entered into
and fully vested before 1 January 2007; (i) debt waived by a related
party; and (iv) paid-in capital of Chaowei Power transferred during the
Group’s reorganization made on 9 March 2010 for the purpose of
listing in the Stock Exchange.

Convertible bonds equity reserve

Convertible bonds equity reserve is arising from the initial recognition
of the Convertible Bonds. On the initial recognition, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using the prevailing market interest
of similar non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the Convertible Bonds and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the Convertible Bonds into equity, is included
in equity as convertible bonds equity reserve.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged during the year.

41.

42.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
comprising the bank borrowings disclosed in Note 36, the short term
financing note disclosed in Note 37, the corporate bonds disclosed
in Note 38, the Convertible Bonds disclosed in Note 39, bank
balances and cash and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves as disclosed in Notes 40
and 41, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

42,

43.

ELRBREE(E)
AEENBEARBREFEB(ETE
A SR BRRITEE) - HEES7TH
BHREHRERE  MESsENEE
BE% - MR BRI IR B - RTT
BREA T RRARSEHRANAR
AR ARG HED (B BREMF0R
MFTRENE BITRARERE)

AAREEERERNEARE - FRE
B —%D  EFEZRESHARE
BEAWBEBRR - REEENHEER
5 ARERERRNBE « BITHK
KB O PA R B TR B R T 25
BAGRE -

ERTHE
(@) =WMIAEH

2014 2013
—E—mEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREFIT
Financial assets ERMEE
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) BiBBRIE AT EE
Held-for-trading investments HIEEERE 8,514 3,182
Loans and receivables: B R EWRIE
Trade, bills and other receivables FEUE SRR - B
E=E N H A fE IR FR IR 1,421,782 1,240,548
Loan receivables R E K 230,000 186,000
Amounts due from related parties FE UL BEES 5 0B 18,659 7,665
Restricted bank deposits ZRR BRI TIER 275,054 70,087
Bank balances and cash IRITEBRERS 1,016,555 1,120,630
2,970,564 2,628,112
Financial liabilities TRIEE
Liabilities at amortised cost: ZESER AT EBE ¢
Trade, bills and other payables JERTE SRR - FEfT
RiE R E AN FIE 1,734,121 1,280,221
Bank borrowings RITEE 2,444,970 1,926,594
Convertible Bonds ARRES 593,305 577,779
Corporate Bonds TEESR 592,687 =
Short term financing notes EHRE SRR 200,000 400,000
Amounts due to related parties FETRAESE 5 1B 6,230 6,466
5,571,313 4,191,060
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market
risks, nor the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

(i) Foreign currency risk management

The Company with functional currency of RMB has certain
foreign currency bank balances and cash denominated in
HK$, EUR and US$, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency

43. €T AR

%k

AEENEK T EmMHBRAIE
ERRHR SRR o

(b)

AEFARSHTSERS LS
KEtERENT R EED -
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AR (NEEE BARE)
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SHERINERIT AR R IR
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B o A B AT A HIFT SN
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R R ERINE R o
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denominated monetary assets at the end of the reporting SNEHER B EEREE
period are as follows: 25T
2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
Assets BE
HK$ VBT
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRIRE 7,023 61,002
Us$ Z7T
Bank balances and cash BITRHBRIRE 14,708 52,556
EUR BT
Bank balances and cash RITEBREIRE 1,529 -
Liabilities =L
HK$ PSIT
Bank borrowings RITHER 47,548 37,744
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Market risk (continued)

()

Foreign currency risk management (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation in HK$,
EUR and US$ against RMB.

The directors’ assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rate is 5%, 1% and 5% for
RMB against HK$, USD and EUR respectively (2013:
5%, 5% and nil for RMB against HK$, USD and EUR
respectively), which is also the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel.

For a 5% (2013: 5%) weakening of RMB against HK$,
there will be an decrease in the post-tax profit for the year
of RMB1,520,000 (2013: increase RM872,000) and there
would be an equal but opposite impact on the post-tax
profit for the year for a 5% (2013: 5%) strengthen of RMB
against HKS$.

For a 1% (2013: 5%) weakening of RMB against US$,
there will be an increase in the post-tax profit for the year of
RMB110,000 (2013: RMB1,971,000) and there would be
an equal but opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the
year for a 1% (2013: 5%) strengthen of RMB against US$.

For a 5% (2013: nil) weakening of RMB against EUR, there
will be an decrease in the post-tax profit for the year of
RMB57,000 (2013: Null) and there would be an equal but
opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the year for a 5%
(2013: nil) strengthen of RMB against EUR.

e IR AR RE
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to
its fixed-rate loan receivable, fixed-rate bank borrowings
and the Convertible Bonds. The cash flow interest rate
risk of the Group relates primarily to the restricted bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, variable-rate bank
borrowings, short term financing notes and the Corporate
Bonds. The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
However, management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets
and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
borrowing rates announced by the People’s Bank of China
arising from the Group’s RMB denominated borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments
at the end of the reporting period. For variable-rate bank
borrowings, restricted bank deposits and bank balances
and cash, the analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 27 basis points
(2013: 27 basis points) increase or decrease is used which
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 27 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2014
would increase/decrease by RMB1,206,000 (2013:
RMB1,630,000).
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables, bills receivable, other receivables, loan receivable,
amounts due from related parties, bank balances and restricted
bank deposits. At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counter parties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Other than loan receivables as disclosed in Note 23, the Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk on bills and trade
receivables, with exposure spread over a large number of counter
parties and customers.

The Group’s loan receivables amounting to RMB230,000,000
(2013: RMB186,000,000) (see Note 23 for details) exposed
the Group to concentration of credit risk. The directors of the
Company continue to monitor and assess the financial status of
the counterparties, and they believe the exposure to credit risk
on these receivables is not significant as the loan receivables
are guaranteed and secured, and the borrowers also undertook
various commitments to enable the Group to have reasonably
protective rights.

The credit risk on bank balances and deposits is limited because
the counter parties are various banks and financial institutions
with good credit ratings in the PRC and Hong Kong.
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d)

Liquidity risk management

The Group had net current liabilities of RMB84,276,000 as at 31
December 2014, and its net cash inflow from operating activities
and financing activities amounted to approximately RMB322
million and RMB574 million, respectively, and its net cash outflow
from investing activities was approximately RMB1,000 million for
the year then ended. The Group recorded a decrease in cash
and cash equivalents of approximately RMB104 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability
to maintain adequate cash inflows from operations to meet its
debt obligations as they fall due, and its ability to obtain external
financing to meet its committed future capital expenditure. With
regard to its future capital commitments and other financing
requirements, the Group had unutilised banking facilities of
RMB649 million as at 31 December 2014.

In addition, the Group’s objective is to ensure continuity of
sufficient funding and flexibility by utilizing a variety of bank
borrowings with debt maturities spreading over a range of
periods, thereby ensuring that the Group’s outstanding borrowing
obligation is not exposed to excessive repayment risk in one
year.

After taking into account the above and based on the cash
flow projection of the Group for the twelve months following 31
December 2014, the directors of the Company are of the view
that the Group is able to meet its debt obligations as they fall
due in the normal course of business and to continue as a going
concern.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate at the end of reporting
period.

43. TRMTHA(E)

(d)

REBESRAKREE

KEBRZ-_Z—WOF+=A
=+ HHRBRIEEFEAR
#84,276,0007T * HEFEK @ &
LEEHRBETHZ2HERA
SFEAD R4 A AR 322,000,000
TR AREES574,000,0007 @ Hi%
BEHREREFROAAR
#1,000,000,0007C - NEBEFHE
ZE-WF+ZA=+—HLF
EEReRESEEMRLHOAR
#104,000,0007T °

REBOREES T BIRBHS
R TEBNIR S R A EIE R
EREMNEES - REEINEE
BB REAEZN I HE
Z o BB REAT HFEERE
HMEERE R-_ZT—MNF+=
A=+—8 ' A&EHXRFHAR
TREEEARKECIORETT

o - RNEE 2 BIRERARS
EETRIZMENESERTE
B HERESTEABANAS
RIERBEE - KM RAEE
RAEENEEZHEEA—F
BAXBENEERR -

LER XA - LA RIBIE A S
Bg=-—m&E+=-A=+—H
BEFTZEAMRSRETEA
RRRESERE  AEBERER
¥%BER AR BHaE
£ WIRSEAERELE -

TRFANAKENFTESRE
BIREHEERAMEENGET
BHEHA - ZRDBREAKE
RATEER B RIEF N RFE AN
TREBERMRARSRERE
ZREBEMERAESHIRDR
WA RERFEAE  MEH
BRENRBPREESIRE LM
o
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 43. ERTAE(E)
(d) Liquidity risk management (continued) (d RBESEREE(E)
Weighted Total undis-
average counted
interest On  6months cash flows Total
rate demand or less 6-12 12 2-5 RER carrying

il EEX JEEE months years years  HEHE amount
TR &E T 612088 126 25 &%  4EEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

At 31 December 2014 R=B-mE
+-B=t-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3744 RARE
Fixed-rate bank borrowings EBRIEE 6.25 - 1,004,846 713,965 10,038 - 1728849 1,598,172
Variable-rate bank borrowings FERIRE 6.17 - 27,360 359,597 364,040 191,154 942,151 846,798
Trade payables ERE5ER 20141 553038 117441 = - 960620 960,620
Bills payable EREE - 375,105 - - - 375,105 375,105
Other payables i %306 197283 174817 = - 398396 39839
Amounts due to related parties [E( R 308 6,230 - - - - 6,230 6,230
Convertible Bonds maRES 1.25 - 22,946 652,946 - - 675,892 593,305
Corporate Bonds EES 798 - - 47,880 47,880 647,880 743,640 592,687
Short term financing note RHMETE .10 - 215,400 - - - 215,400 200,000
322,717 2395928 2,066,646 421,958 839,034  6,048283 5571313
At 31 December 2013 R-B-=£
t=B=t-8
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ #fT4££REAR
Fixed-rate bank borrowings EERITEE 6.08 - 756,110 503,896 196,082 48855 1504943 1,450,504
Variable-rate bank borrowings BERTEE 6.07 - 14,397 63,663 220,283 242,163 540,506 476,000
Trade payables ERESESR 305633 33130 101205 - - T0058 760058
Bills payable ENZR - 91,170 - - - 91,170 91,170
Other payables L v 5200 190396 193,387 - - 4899 48993
Amounts due to related parties B R 30E 6,466 - - - - 6,466 6,466
Convertile Bonds RRESR 7.05 - 22,946 22,946 675,892 - 721,784 577,779
Short term financing note RHRERE 490 - 419818 - - - 419818 400,000
357,309 1,847,967 885,187 1,092,257 291,018 4473738 4,191,060
The amounts included above for variable interest rate non- M) R E RS A RIS EE
derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes in RZEMETHEIR - L2 R
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined HITESRBBENESEAEEE -

at the end of the reporting period.
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(e) Fair value

This note provides information about how the Group determines
fair value of certain financial assets.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured at

fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives
information about how of these financial assets are determined (in

particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used).

43. TRMTHA(E)

() AFE

SRR E A R BRI B T A
TermEEND T EREER -

RIEEEMRERL L FETER
FrEETHEEN L FIE
AEEADTHMEENSREH
R AFEFE - TRASHEHR
HAMAEEZEeMEE(LE
R RSETERBARE) -

Fair value as Valuation Significant
Financial assets/ at 31 December 2014 Fair value techniques unobservable
financial liabilities (RMB’000) hierarchy  and key inputs input(s)
R-ZE—NF
+T=ZA=+t—-HK fRERIT R BERRT
LREE SRMAE DAFEARETT) DNFERE FEBAHE BEBAE
Held-for-trading non-derivative  Listed equity securitiesin ~ Level 1 Quoted bid pricesin ~ N/A
financial assets classified Hong Kong: ERE an active market. N
as Held for trading — Manufacture industry JERMIZETREAE -
investments in the statement -RMB8,514
of financial position
REBRRARAR R BB LMRARES
FIEEERENFERE — Lg%
FITEEMEE — AR¥8,5147T
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 43. ERTAE(E)
(e) Fair value (continued) (e) AT EE)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are not measured I HRIEAT E M B I\ FEET
at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosure are ENFEECHEEN L FE(1E
required) A E N FE)
Except as detailed in the following table, the directors of the BRTERMFREIN  RARES
Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets RE  REPBERERPEHERL
and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial SREENSRBENRAEH
statements approximate their fair values: HATERE
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
—E-OF —T-=F
+T=A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
BREE RNEE AREE NFE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBETT ARBTT

(Note) (Note)
(PifEE) (BFF3E)
Financial liabilities SRIBE

Convertible Bonds AT AR E S
(liability component) (BEEHD 593,305 622,112 577,779 639,330
Corporate Bonds TEES 592,687 586,564 = =
Note: Fair value of the Convertible Bonds at the end of the reporting date Bt - AR R IR B4 g >
was estimated based on the quoted bid prices from Bloomberyg, RNFE - TIIRBEEBEHIHEA
which included liability component and equity component of the Bt B s R AR (&%
Convertible Bonds. The equity component of the Convertible BB EE S R tEas 25 o R
Bonds at the end of the reporting date was approximately R T o O R A
RMB59,643,000 (31 December 2013: RMB59,64.3,000). BEES A B A FE 59,643,000

o —FE—=F+=-_FA=+—
A : AR#59,643,0007T)
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44.

45,

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 44, EEIKR
At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s assets MNEEAERRE - AEEEFE TEE
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The EARTAEERITRENER - NE
aggregate carrying amount of the assets of the Group pledged at the WMEHREREE  AEEDEREENE
end of each of the reporting periods is as follows: REEAT
2014 2013
—E—-mF ZE—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Buildings B3 327,550 414,113
Land use rights + it {E FA A 92,085 67,582
Trade receivables FEWE SRR = 153,921
Bills receivable FEMZE I 19,591 -
Restricted bank deposits SR HISRITIER 275,054 70,087
OPERATING LEASES 45. REHE
The Group as lessee AEBERAEA
2014 2013
—E-—mEF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Minimum lease payments paid for the year RERNBRBYESLEHE
under operating leases for premises BERMSERERNK 10,758 10,473

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases which fall due as follows:

RS RS RE - ARBRET A HEHE
RS E R T 2 A R O 0 AR SR AR KA
ENFAELT

2014 2013

—ZT-mF —F—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETT ARET T

Within one year —FR 9,280 8,773
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERNF(BEEEMRSF) 8,326 16,320
17,606 25,093

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its properties. Leases are negotiated for terms of 2 to 5

years.

REMENFEAREREE TYEE
e - BOBMEERFHER -
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45. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED) 45. KEHE(E)
The Group as lessor AEBEREHEA
Property rental income earned for the year ended 31 December BHE-_Z-—NF+-_A=+—HILF
2014 was approximately RMB2,932,000 (2013: RMB1,460,000). B - MEHRSWAL B AKEEE2,932,000
The properties held has committed tenants up to 2015 and 2019 T(ZE—=% : AK¥1,460,0007T) °
respectively. BEMNYEERBEFAR  HRlEE=

F-EER-F-NFL -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with R B R - AEEEMAS R T it
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: RREAREE R KETLOAT

2014 2013

—2-mE —F—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT ARETTT

Within one year —FR 4,852 1,460
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEERTF(BREEEME) 12,313 1,140
17,165 2,600

46. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 46. BEXREE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREETTT

Contracted but not provided for EEESIEESEE]
— acquisition of property, — WEME - BE KRS
plant and equipment 232,142 227,148
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47. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF A 47. BBWHEMBATKWEESE

SUBSIDIARY

In August 2014, the Group acquired all limited partner interests in Moll
Grundstlcks — und Vermdgensverwaltungs GmbH & Co. KG (“MOLL
G+V”) from the former equity holders of MOLL G+V for a consideration
of EUR2,490,280 (equivalent to approximately RMB20,237,000) and
all shares in MOLL Grundbesitz-GmbH, the general partner of MOLL
G+V, for a purchase price of EUR25,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB203,000). MOLL G+V is engaged in property investment and its
principal assets consist of certain buildings which have been leased to
MOLL based on a lease agreement in which MOLL G+V as lessor. The
details of the investment property has been disclosed in Note 17.

The acquisition has been accounted for as an acquisition of assets and
liabilities. The effect of the acquisition is summarised as follows:

RZZE-—EHFENA > XEBURK
E2,490280 L T (MHERHARKE
20,237,0007%) [AIMoll Grundstiicks- und
Vermdgensverwaltungs GmbH & Co.
KG ([ MOLL G+V |) & Al B HE 5 B A UL
BMOLL G+VHIPTBRR A B » I
VA % (B 25,0000 T (B SR AR
203,00070 ) Y BEMOLL G+V— & B
MOLL Grundbesitz-GmbH&I AT A J&17 °
MOLL G+VIt EMERE HX Z2EE
BIERBEMOLL G+VE AR LE
FMOLLEYE TREY - REWMEMNT
THEEAMF7

ZUBEBABEEERBBAR - WEF
BEGAAT -

RMB’000
AREETTT
Net assets acquired: BUEE & EFE
Investment property (Note 17) wEME(MFE17) 20,568
Trade and other receivables B 5 e W BR 5% S E A FE W ke 96
Cash and Bank balance BE NIRTTR R 81
Trade and other payables Z SEMNER R EMENFIE (309)
Total consideration B (E 20,440
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WS EE £ RIR &M FEE
Cash consideration paid BENRSRE 20,440
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B BEREERNIRE KR EEY 81

20,359




Annual Report 2014 F 3§ Chaowei Power Holdings Limited 2R 2 D12 ER A 7 —] 77

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—ZFT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

48. DERECOGNITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 48. ARILBA—FRMBLAHE
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group liquidated a BExr—E—=F5+-_A=1+—BI1&E
subsidiary, Jiangsu Yongheng. & - RNATEHEARLEKEEE
The net assets of Jiangsu Yongheng at the date of liquidation were as RERBH  IHKENEEFEN
follows: T
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Non-current assets EMENEE
Property, plant and equipment YIE - B R 698
Deferred tax assets RIERIIBE EE 140
Current assets mEEE
Other receivables H b fE U IR 801
Current liabilities nEBE
Trade payables BB SRR (201)
Other payables H bR FRE (711)
727
Payment of costs incurred on liquidation B RREE AR A 491
Loss on liquidation TERIEE 1,218
Net cash outflow arising on liquidation: TEREANR SN LIFEE

Payment of costs incurred on liquidation S AHE B E £ R AR 491
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49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Name and relationship with related parties

Name
£

49. FEEARS
(a) BEBSEBREE

Relationship
221E

Az & BB E LSRR N R (DARIZE )
(“Henan Yifeng Elctric Bikes Manufacturing Co., Ltd.”)
(“Henan Yifeng”)
AR ERR AR (D] )
(“Henan Yilin Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd.”)
(“*Henan Yilin”)
EEEREERERAR (DUE=E])
(“Henan Gaoyuan Aluminum Development Co., Ltd.”)
(“Henan Gaoyuan”)
AIGEBFEBAR DA (DDxE])
(“Zhejiang Yongda Industry Group Co., Ltd.”)
(“Zhejiang Yongda”)
REGKEBRAEMR AT ([REDKE])
(Changxing Yongda Power Co., Ltd.)
(“Changxing Yongda”)
HOTHREE
Zhejing Zhenlong
MOLL

HNIREEEIRB R A RI(HRINREED

(Xuzhou Zhenlong Power Co., Ltd.)
(“Xuzhou Zhenlong”)

A LREEIREGR AR &EILREED

(Huangshan Zhenlong Power Co., Ltd.)
(“Huangshan Zhenlong”)

LERR & (“Chai Chenglei”)

RE R (“Wu Rongliang”)

SRIKEF (“Zhang Yongxuan”)

Note: Zhejiang Yongda disposed its equity interest in Jiangsu Yongda on
18 November 2013 and Zhejiang Yongda ceased to be the related

party of the Group from then.

Controlled by non-controlling shareholder of
Henan Chaowei

] o R ) TR IR AR SR A

Controlled by Henan Yifeng

F A F Uz I 45

Controlled by non-controlling shareholder of
Henan Chaowei

P )R] i R ) SR AR IR R A%

Non-controlling shareholder of Jiangsu Yongda
(Note)

TLERNGE R FEFE R AR (B 5E)

Subsidiary of Zhejiang Yongda (Note)

ALGERIMTE D R (M)

Associate

YN

Associate

YN

Subsidiary of Zhejiang Zhenlong
A THREEAI M B R A

Subsidiary of Zhejiang Zhenlong
AT THRBEAV KT B R 7]

Non-controlling party of Henan Chaowei
AR IR
Non-controlling party of Anhui Yongheng
Z UK BRI IEERTT
Non-controlling party of Jiangsu Yongda
TLERACGERIEERR TS

WitE  FTAER = F— =4+ —A
+ /B ER RS RN ER
AEE - BT AET RS
ES T T
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49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 49. BABAE RS (&)

(b) The Group has entered into the following significant transactions (b) AEEH M EEE A EE RS
with its related parties during both years: RN THEARS

2014 2013
—=E—mF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Sales of goods HEEMm
- Henan Yifeng — A Uz - 22,992
— Henan Yilin — JAElZ AR 4,994 4,712
— Zhejiang Yongda — I oKiE - 702
— Changxing Yongda — EEGE = 846
— Xuzhou Zhenlong — BINIREE 306,379 62,438
- Huangshan Zhenlong — & ILREE 134,827 24,657
- Zhejiang Zhenlong — WTIREE - 169,173
446,200 285,520
Purchase of materials BB
- Zhejiang Yongda — WIoKE = 74,450
- Changxing Yongda — REUKE - 75,636
— Xuzhou Zhenlong — RMIREE - 107,232
- Huangshan Zhenlong — ®mILHREE 24,119 37,723
- Zhejiang Zhenlong — WTIREE 440,510 235,783
— Henan Gaoyuan — SR 40 12
464,669 530,836
Provision of the processing services RN T RS
— Xuzhou Zhenlong — &I IREE 126 -
- Zhejiang Yongda —WIKE - 340
126 340
Income earned by the Group AEBERHBER

by provision of rental services TEIEE U A
- MOLL — MOLL 1,472 -
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49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(c) Balances with related parties

49. BEMALRZ ()
(c) PBAEETSKER

2014 2013
—=E—NmF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET R ARBFIT
Amounts due from related parties: U a5 ROR
Trade nature ZEH14E
- Henan Yifeng — Al 315 315
— Henan Yilin — AR IE AR 3,458 2,616
- Huangshan Zhenlong — & LREE 8,950 -
— Xuzhou Zhenlong — fRINIRBE 519 350
— Zhejiang Zhenlong — HTiREE 73,295 6,993
Non-trade nature B HHEE
— Chai Chenglei — KKE = 4,000
- Wu Rongliang — RER 2,417 110
— Zhang Yongxuan — SROKEF 3,000 -
— Xuzhou Zhenlong — BMIREE = 253
Total 1a=t 91,954 14,637

The amounts due from related parties were denominated in

& W BB 7 R IBIA A R B 5

RMB, unsecured, interest free and repayable within one year. B AEER . 2EKKR—FA
8ig -
2014 2013
= =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Amounts due to related parties: JFEAS BAES 5 RUE
Trade nature 25 ML
— Henan Gaoyuan — AmEEER 28 14
— Zhejiang Yongda — WIokE - 1,585
— Xuzhou Zhenlong — BMNIREE 126 -
- Huangshan Zhenlong — &= ILREE 5,751 4,867
— Zhejiang Zhenlong — ATIREE 325 -
Total wast 6,230 6,466

All amounts due to the related parties were denominated in RMB,

unsecured, interest free and to be settled on demand.

P PR RREE 7T VR IBIA A R
FHE - REER  2ERARE

> g3
SJZ%\EI/ﬁ °
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

49. BEMALRZ ()
(d FEEEAESHHE

2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Short term employee benefits RHIEE ST 9,047 7,459
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R Rki& 5T &tk 52 40
9,099 7,499

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME CONTRIBUTIONS

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their employees’ payroll to the
retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme which are calculated
based on 18% to 20% of the employee’s basic salaries during the
year.

In accordance with the relevant mandatory provident fund laws and
regulations of Hong Kong, the Group operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying Hong Kong employees.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
and under the control of an independent MPF service provider. Under
the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified
in the rules. The only obligation of the Group in respect of the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

50. EBRIREFRGHEIAER
AR B BT E A BN E S A B
EEMBESRREMNFTENKE - AR
AHBMNEARAREEF€ETES
tE R R KRR A ET B RUAE RTEFIE
© o AEEHRKEMNFENHE—EFE
RIRBZETEVEL TR AR - RI0IR
EEFAELFT EHI18%E20%:TH °

AEBERBEBOTBRIMEDTESE
PIRRD - BFFERERNELRE
R —IERHIERTES A BI([ B E
g sEBERAKEEED R
B ITARBURESREHERERE -
RIFBTESFENRA - BEREESR
& BRR A RIS TE # LE R A e At 8l
Ko AREHBRESHENE—RIR
BIRZETBIE TR AR o
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51. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 51.

POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

FEARAMBRARRHER

R RERE - BREARRFBEMR

the end of the reporting period includes: FKHEREIE -
2014 2013
—Z=—MF —T—ZfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Office equipment ENEt 49 96
Investment in subsidiaries KB AR E 302,490 302,489
Amount due from subsidiaries B B A R IA 571,351 544,144
873,890 846,729
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TEAT RIE B HoAth BRI 511 991
Held-for-trading investments FHEEERE 8,514 3,182
Dividend receivable FEURR B 44,490 100,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSHT B A B FIE 82,737 21
Bank balances and cash RITHBRES 5,678 106,656
141,931 210,850
CURRENT LIABILITIES REaE
Other payables H b fE(50IE 489 90
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETBT B A RIFIR 12,947 127,685
Short term loan MHAE K 47,548 -
Convertible bonds AR ES 593,305 -
709,326 127,775
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS RE(BE) EEFE (567,395) 83,074
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES HEERRBERE 306,495 929,804
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRHE
Share capital &N 68,140 68,140
Reserves & 238,355 283,885
TOTAL EQUITY RS 306,495 352,025
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES = 577,779
306,495 929,804
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FEARAMBRARRHER

POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE BHNER(E)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Convertible
bonds
Share Share equity Retained
capital premium reserve earnings Total
ARRES
(&N BRADEE EatE REE F et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®TT AR®TT AR®TT AR®BTR
At 1 January 2013 —T—=%—f—H 68,140 149,872 59,643 119,406 397,061
Profit and total comprehensive ilﬁﬂfxﬁ eI ON k]
income for the year - - - 103,747 103,747
Dividend declared by NRARE RS
the Company - (148,783) - - (148,783)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZT—=%
+=—A=+—H 68,140 1,089 59,643 223,153 352,025
Profit and total comprehensive & 715 & 2 E U A 4258
income for the year = = = 47,962 47,962
Dividend declared by KRBT IREE
the Company - - - (93,492) (93,492)
At 31 December 2014 R-Z—MF
+=-—A= 68,140 1,089 59,643 177,623 306,495
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 52. WEHEREIER
On 20 March 2015, Chaowei Power, Chisen Electric and CITIC Trust RZE—RFE=A=+H HEAER
entered into a supplemental entrusted loan agreement to (1) adjust the ERERALFTEERITIHREZRE
principal amount of the Chisen Entrusted Loan from RMB200 million HpE - ((KWEBREXERAEERH
to RMB160 million; and (2) extend the term of Chisen Entrusted Loan A R # 200,000,000 THEE AR
for two years till 17 December 2017 with the first repayment instalment 160,000,0007T & (2 ) ERZTERL
due in March 2017. HREMNESRMFEFE_E—+F+ A
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The following table summarizes the consolidated results, assets and liabilities

TRENAKEREBZEEFO T _A=1—

of the Group for the five years ended 31 December: HIEAEFENGEEE  EERBEBIM
E:
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-MNF —E-=F —E-CF —E2——F —E-ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT ARBFT ARBTT AREFT
Results Sy
Revenue WA 18,187,000 14,973,221 9,559,439 4,932,011 3,224,750
Profit before taxation i B 73,355 501,716 752,471 710,881 369,918
Taxation | (35,067) (113,179) (132,537) (121,058) (66,787)
Profit and total comprehensive FAMER
income for the year FHEHBALE 38,288 388,537 619,934 589,823 303,131
Profit attributable to IR R
non-controlling interests FEAEF)E 67,243 78,299 123,606 134,485 34,936
Loss/profit attributable to owners of ~ AN AIHEA A
the Company Pt (B518),/Fi (28,955) 310,238 496,328 455,338 268,195
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,142,232 3,598,945 2,879,344 1,525,130 767,670
Current assets RENEE 5,303,859 4,425,544 4,238,568 2,996,066 1,919,041
Total assets BEE 9,446,091 8,024,489 7,117,912 4,521,196 2,686,711
Liabilities =l
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (1,276,630) (1,341,543) (868,494) (215,071) (293,567)
Current liabilities mENBE (5,388,135) (3,835,533) (3,623,230) (2,304,672) (937,223)
Total liabilities BAE (6,664,765) (5,177,076) (4,491,724) (2,519,743) (1,230,790
Capital and reserves BRI
Equity attributable to owners VN/NGIE =N
of the Company FE(h RS 2,206,270 2,328,174 2,167,048 1,747,796 1,373,430
Non-controlling interests FERR IR R 575,056 519,239 459,140 253,657 82,491
Total Equity BikEn 2,781,326 2,847,413 2,626,188 2,001,453 1,455,921
Current ratio (current assets/ ROLER(RBEE,/
current liabilities) mEaRE) 0.98 1.15 117 1.30 2.05
Gearing ratio (total bank ARG EL R (AHRT
borrowings, short term financing fBE  mSHpEE
notes corporate bonds and & EBHFR
convertible bonds/total assets) ABkES
BEE) 41% 36% 32% 28% 17%

The results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 and
its assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2014 are set forth on pages 69
to 183, and are presented on the basis set out in note 1 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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